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SELECT KEY EVENTS

Baxter launches
HYQVIA [Immune
Globulin Infusion
10% (Human) with
Recombinant Human
Hyaluronidase]

for treatment of
adults with primary
immunodeficiency
in the U.S.

U.S. Patent 8,846,034
issued for a
companion diagnostic
for PEGPH20

European and
U.S. Orphan Drug
designation for
PEGPH20 for
pancreatic cancer

Dear Halozyme Shareholders,

Our company and shareholders have many reasons to be excited about our 2014
accomplishments. Significant progress was made towards realizing our long-term
vision of developing breakthrough cancer medicines and building a leading
biotechnology company. During the course of the year, after completing a full
assessment of our assets, R&D programs and core capabilities, we charted a course
to focus our efforts on our investigational new drug PEGPH20 (PEGylated form of
rHuPH20) and the ENHANZE™ technology. We believe that these two assets have the
highest potential to meaningfully impact patients’ lives and create value.

PEGPH20

In 2014, we made strong progress in our goal to explore the potential of PEGPH20 in a
full range of solid tumors where accumulation of high levels of hyaluronan (HA) has been
associated with lower survival rates. After the brief clinical hold in the spring, we advanced our
Phase 2 study in newly diagnosed patients with metastatic pancreatic cancer and initiated a
new study in patients with non-small cell lung cancer who had failed their initial treatments.
The significant unmet need that exists in treating pancreatic cancer was recognized by the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) granting Fast Track and Orphan Drug designation.
Additionally, the European Commission, acting on the recommendation from the Committee
for Orphan Medicinal Products of the European Medicines Agency, designated PEGPH20 an
orphan medicinal product for the treatment of pancreatic cancer.

In January 2015, we presented encouraging early efficacy and safety data based on an interim
analysis of our ongoing Phase 2 trial. Study 202 is evaluating PEGPH20 in combination with
gemcitabine and ABRAXANE® (nab-paclitaxel) compared to gemcitabine and ABRAXANE®
(nab-paclitaxel) alone in patients with previously untreated metastatic pancreatic cancer. The
interim analysis of Study 202 has provided insights into the potential clinical benefit and potential
risks of PEGPH20 in patients with metastatic pancreatic cancer whose tumors accumulate
high levels of HA. During the course of 2015, we anticipate expanding and accelerating our
PEGPH20 clinical development efforts with goals of completing Study 202 enrollment, gaining
feedback from regulatory authorities on our plans to initiate a registration trial for PEGPH20
in pancreatic cancer patients whose tumors accumulate high levels of HA and completing
enrollment in the Phase 1b portion of the non-small cell lung cancer trial, PRIMAL. Plans are
also underway to start a new study evaluating PEGPH20 with an immuno-oncology agent.

ENHANZE

The ENHANZE™ platform is based on our patented rHUPH20 enzyme, which, when administered
in combination with other medicines or just before the administration of high volumes of
immune globulin, can allow for subcutaneous administration where previously this was not
possible. | am excited to report multiple value-creating events in 2014 beginning with the
encouraging market reception in Europe to Roche’s Herceptin® SC (trastuzumab) and the
June launch of Roche’s MabThera® SC (rituximab). The uptake of Herceptin SC (trastuzumab),
continues to impress, with Roche reporting increasing share in a number of launch markets with
many still at an early stage and new markets launching each month. In some launch markets
where the healthcare systems have reviewed and recognized the value of subcutaneous
administration, up to 50% of Herceptin intravenous use is now administered subcutaneously.

In September 2014, the FDA approved Baxter's HYQVIA [Immune Globulin Infusion 10%
(Human) with Recombinant Human Hyaluronidase]. This represents the first U.S. approval
of a product utilizing ENHANZE, and for patients, this approval provided a new treatment
option for adult patients with Primary Immune Deficiency. Instead of requiring often 12 to
20 subcutaneous injections to receive the full dose of immune globulin, patients receiving
HYQVIA generally require just the one monthly injection.
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Less than 100 days after receiving FDA approval for HYQVIA, our ENHANZE platform gained
further validation and expansion in the fourth quarter with our announcement of a global
collaboration with Janssen to develop and commercialize subcutaneous products utilizing this
technology. Under the terms of the agreement, we granted Janssen an exclusive worldwide
license to develop and commercialize products for up to five targets combining ENHANZE
with Janssen’s proprietary compounds. Daratumumab, a monoclonal antibody that targets
CD38, is the first of five proprietary compounds at Janssen to be combined with ENHANZE.
This agreement has the potential to lead to the development of a subcutaneous formulation
of daratumumab. Daratumumab is being developed under a collaboration between Janssen
and Genmab A/S since August 2012 when Genmab granted Janssen an exclusive worldwide
license to develop, manufacture, and commercialize daratumumab. Daratumumab, a human
monoclonal antibody that targets CD38 on the surface of multiple myeloma cells, is in clinical
development as a single agent and in combination with standard of care therapies in several
settings of multiple myeloma. Daratumumab may also have potential in other hematologic
malignancies in which CD38 is expressed, including non-Hodgkins lymphoma and various
leukemias. The agreement provides for milestone payments totaling up to $566 million, in
addition to royalty payments based on net sales of products using ENHANZE technology.
Janssen joins Roche, Pfizer and Baxter as a partner in our ENHANZE franchise and it is our goal
to increase the number of ENHANZE partnerships, as well as support our partners’ efforts in
moving new programs into clinical development. Interest from marquee pharmaceutical and
biotechnology companies to license our technology remains high and we look forward to
providing you with an update on these initiatives in the future.

Halozyme ended 2014 with approximately $136 million in cash and we do not anticipate the
need for dilutive financing to fund operations this year. In 2015, we expect our revenues to
increase over the prior year which, in part, will be driven by the increase in royalty revenues we
receive from Roche and Baxter.

By all measures 2014 was one of the strongest performance years in Halozyme history. Patients
are at the center of all that we do and the recognition that patients are waiting is our motivation
to continue to innovate and seek to excel. Our progress would not be possible without the
past or ongoing efforts of members of the Halozyme team, our investigators, patients and
their families. We are very enthusiastic about our ability to make a difference for patients and
their families, and in so doing, create value for our shareholders. Thank you for your support.

Sincerely,

Al Torkl

Helen Torley, M.B. Ch. B., M.R.C.P.
President and Chief Executive Officer
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This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains “forwabking statements” within the meaning of the “shégbor” provisions of Sectic
21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as daterand Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1883mended. All statements, other-
statements of historical fact, included herein nelyag our future product development and regulatevgnts and goals, product collaboratic
our business intentions and financial estimates seuililts are forward-looking statements. Words sastexpect,” “anticipate,” “intend,”
“plan,” “believe,” “seek,” “estimate,” “think,” “ma y,” “could,” “will,” “would,” “should,” “continue,”  “potential,” “likely,” “opportunity”
and similar expressions or variations of such woads intended to identify forwardoking statements, but are not the exclusive med
identifying forwardlooking statements in this Annual Report. Additignastatements concerning future matters suchhasdevelopment
regulatory approval of new products, enhancemeffitexisting products or technologies, third partyrfpemance under key collaborati
agreements, revenue and expense levels and otttem&nts regarding matters that are not historaa forward-looking statements.

Although forwardlooking statements in this Annual Report refleet good faith judgment of our management, suchrsetés can on
be based on facts and factors currently known byCasisequently, forwartboking statements are inherently subject to riskd uncertaintie
and actual results and outcomes may differ matigrilom the results and outcomes discussed in dicipated by the forwardeoking
statements. Factors that could cause or contritateuch differences in results and outcomes incluideout limitation those discussed un
the heading “Risk Factorsin Part I, Item 1A below, as well as those discdsssewhere in this Annual Report. Readers aredirg# to plac
undue reliance on these forwalolking statements, which speak only as of the ofatieis Annual Report. We undertake no obligatmnevist
or update any forwardeoking statements in order to reflect any eventiocumstance that may arise after the date of thimual Repor
Readers are urged to carefully review and consither various disclosures made in this Annual Repahich attempt to advise interes
parties of the risks and factors that may affeatlousiness, financial condition, results of opevat and prospect

"o

References to “Halozyme,” “the Company,” “we,” “us,and “our” refer to Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. and its whalyne
subsidiary, Halozyme, Inc., and Halozyme, Inc.'sliylowned subsidiary, Halozyme Holdings Ltd. Refiees to “Notes'tefer to the Notes
Consolidated Financial Statements included herggfef to Part Il, ltem 8).

PART |
Iltem 1. Business

Overview

Halozyme is seeking to translate our unique knogdedf the tumor microenvironment to create noveldbies that can improve car
survival. Our research focuses on human enzyméslies the extracellular matrix and tumor microeomment. The extracellular matrix i
complex matrix of proteins and carbohydrates surdg the cell that provides structural supporti#sues and orchestrates many impo
biological activities, including cell migration,ggialing and survival. Over many years, we have ldgee unique technology and scient
expertise enabling us to pursue this target-riciirenment for the development of therapies.

Our proprietary enzymes can be used to facilitage delivery of injected drugs and fluids, potemfianhancing the efficacy and -
convenience of other drugs or can be used to altteormal tissue structures for clinical benefit. é&e chosen to exploit our technology
expertise in a balanced way to modulate both ris#t spend by: (1) developing our own proprietarydpieds in therapeutic areas w
significant unmet medical needs, with a focus oootwgy, and (2) licensing our technology to biophaceutical companies to collaborati
develop products which combine our technology it collaborators' proprietary compounds.

The majority of our approved product and producididates are based on rHuPH20, our patented recambhuman hyaluronide
enzyme. rHUPH20 temporarily breaks down hyalurawmid (HA), a naturally occurring substance that imajor component of the extracell
matrix in tissues throughout the body such as akith cartilage. We believe this temporary degradatieates an opportunistic window for
improved subcutaneous delivery of injectable bimsgsuch as monoclonal antibodies and other ldrgmpeutic molecules, as well as s
molecules and fluids. We refer to the applicatidnrtduPH20 to facilitate the delivery of other drugs fluids as Enhanzé& technology
rHUPH20 is also the active ingredient in our fasinmercially approved produédylenex® recombinant.




Our proprietary development pipeline consists prilpaf clinical stage product candidates in onggiland diabetes. Our lead oncol
program is PEGPH20 (PEGylated recombinant humalutgr@dase), a new molecular entity, under develepinfor the systemic treatment
tumors that accumulate HA. When HA accumulatestumaor, it can cause higher pressure in the tuneolycing blood flow into the tumor a
with that, reduced access of cancer therapiesetdgumor. PEGPH20 works by temporarily degrading $t#rounding some cancer cells
results in reduced pressure and increased bloadtidhe cancer with increased amounts of anticatreatments administered concomita
gaining access to the tumor. We are currently iasei? clinical testing for PEGPH20 in metastaticcp@atic cancer (Study 1@%82), and w
have recently initiated a clinical trial in non-dinzell lung cancer (Study 107-201). We have alserbinvestigatinglylenexrecombinant fc
use as pre-treatment in patients with Type 1 desbesing pumps.

Our recent receipt of Fast Track and Orphan Drugjgthations for PEGPH20, new pre-clinical data fertsupporting the patwmoi
potential for PEGPH20 and investigator interesbath pancreatic and lung cancer trials have coefifrREGPH20 as our priority prod
candidate for investment. As a result of ongoingleations to confirm and focus on the highest valpportunities, we have made the deci
to seek collaborations with third parties or explother strategic alternatives in order to expoit diabetes and dermatology programs.

Regarding Enhanze, we currently have collaboratieitis F. Hoffmann-La Roche, Ltd. and Hoffmaha-Roche, Inc. (Roche), Bax
Healthcare Corporation (Baxter), Pfizer Inc. (Pfizand Janssen Biotech, Inc. (Janssen), with ondugt approved in the U.S. and tt
products approved for marketing in Europe from Wuhie are receiving royalties and several othevadbus stages of development.

Future revenues from the sales and/or royaltiesuofproduct candidates which have not been approvédve recently been appro
will depend on the ability of Halozyme and our eblbrators to develop, manufacture, secure regylatoprovals for and commercialize
product candidates. We have incurred net operdtinges each year since inception, with an accuetldeficit of approximately450.:
million as of December 31, 2014 .

Our principal offices and research facilities apeated at 11388 Sorrento Valley Road, San Diegdifo@@a 92121. Our telepho
number is (858) 794-8889 and our e-mail addregdagdhalozyme.comOur website addressyugvw.halozyme.cominformation found on, ¢
accessible through, our website is not a partrad,ia not incorporated into, this Annual ReportFamrm 10K. Our periodic and current repc
that we filed with the SEC are available on our sitshatwww.halozyme.comfree of charge, as soon as reasonably practicdtede we hav
electronically filed such material with, or furnesththem to, the SEC, including our annual repant&arm 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10
Q, current reports on FormK-and any amendments to those reports. Furtheesagithese reports are located at the SEC's PRbfierenc
Room at 100 F Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20548, online ahttp://www.sec.gov

Technology

The majority of our approved product and produatdidates are based on rHuPH20, a patented reconthimanan hyaluronida
enzyme. rHUPH20 temporarily breaks down H& naturally occurring substance that is a majonmanent of the extracellular matrix in tiss
throughout the body such as skin and cartilage. b&leeve this temporary degradation creates an dppistic window for the improve
subcutaneous delivery of injectable biologics, sasihmonoclonal antibodies and other large therapendlecules, as well as small moleci
and fluids. The HA reconstitutes its normal densitighin several days and, therefore, we anticiphtt any effect of rHUPH20 on 1
architecture of the subcutaneous space is temporyPH20 can thus be applied as a drug deliveayfgin to increase dispersion
absorption of other injected drugs and fluids #@uagt injected under the skin or in the muscle themsthancing efficacy or convenience.
example, rHUPH20 can be used to convert drugsntiniat be delivered intravenously into subcutaneajeciions or to reduce the numbe
subcutaneous injections needed for effective therdfe refer to the application of rHUPH20 to faeile the delivery of other drugs or fluids
Enhanze technology. rHUPH20 is also the activeeidignt in our first commercially approved prodityjenexrecombinant.

Additionally, we are expanding our scientific wottx develop other enzymes and agents that targeextracellular matrix's uniq
aspects, giving rise to potentially new moleculatitees with a particular focus on oncology. Foample, we are developing a PEGyl:
version of the rHUPH20 enzyme (PEGPH20), that lfmstan extended period in the bloodstream, and thasefore better target solid tum
that accumulate HA by degrading the surrounding &% reducing the interstitial fluid pressure withiralignant tumors to allow bet
penetration by co-administered agents.




Strategy

During the fourth quarter of 2014, we affirmed atrategy of focusing on developing our PEGPH20 pebadandidate for oncology
well as entering into collaborations for Enhanzechifmlogy. This business model allows for growthwhich revenue garnered fr
collaboration products helps fund our investmerREGPH20 clinical development, with the goal ofiaufe product approval that will supg
sustained growth.

Key aspects of our corporate strategy include alieviing:

¢ Focus on developing PEGPH20 our investigational dewg candidate in multiple different tumors that@amulate hig
levels of HA. PEGPH20 is in phase 2 developmemh@tastatic pancreatic cancer and in phase 1 dewelaipin NonSmal
Cell Lung Cancer. Over time it is our goal to stuatiditional types of cancer and to advance thignam toward regulato
approval and commercial launch.

¢ Focus on Enhanze collaborations. We currently Haue collaborations with three current product apls and addition
product candidates being evaluated for developm@fd. intend to work with our existing collaboratais expand ot
collaborations to add new targets and product cktels under the terms of the operative agreemintsddition, we wil
continue our efforts to enter into new collaborasido further exploit our technology and deriveueatherefrom.

Product and Product Candidates

We have one marketed proprietary product and melfpoprietary product candidates targeting sevieditations in various stages
development. The following table summarizes oupgetary product and product candidates as wefiraducts and product candidates ui
development with our collaborators:

Product, Collaboration
Products and Therapeutic

Product Candidates Area
PROPRIETARY PRODUCT AND PRODUCT CANDIDATES

H & recombinant Adjuvant for subQ fluid delivery &

s o Various dispersion & absorption of other A5 Approved
¢ ) injected drugs
PEGPH20 Oncology Pancreatic Cancer (202)*
PEGPH20 Oncology Pancreatic Cancer (SWOG)™
PEGPH20 Oncology Lung Cancer _
Analog Insulin-PH20 . :
i Endactnokgy  Disbets )

COLLABORATION PRODUCTS AND PRODUCT CANDIDATES
Roche (up s & potential targets)
f ‘EU Approved

Herceptin® S0+ Oncology Breast cancer
MabThers® SC* Oncology Non-Hodgkin's lymphoma ‘EU Approved
Baxter
HYQVIA Immunalagy Primary immunodeficiency
3 Primary & 4 specified (Rivipansel, PCSK-9)
Phizer (upioB potentialtorgetsl  gporiaie care 2 pending [ ]
Janssen (upto 5 potential targets)  Various Undisclosed _

% Investigated for use with gemcitabine and nab-paclitaxe! [ABRAXANES,
**  Inwestigated for use with modified FOLFIRINOX.
*+£*  Fled in other selected countries around the world. Mot filed in 1.5, and Japan.




Proprietary Pipeline
Hylenex Recombinant (hyaluronidase human injection)

Hylenexrecombinant is a formulation of rHUPH20 that hasereed FDA approval to facilitate subcutaneousdfladministration fc
achieving hydration, to increase the dispersion awmbrption of other injected drugs and, in subweas urography, to improve resorptiol
radiopaque agentblylenexrecombinant is currently the number one prescriiradded hyaluronidase.

PEGPH20

We are developing PEGPH20 as a candidate for theersyc treatment of tumors that accumulate HA imisimation with currentl
approved cancer therapies. 'PEG' refers to thehattant of polyethylene glycol to rHUPH20, therelbgating PEGPH20. One of the nc
properties of PEGPH20 is that it lasts for an edéehduration in the bloodstream (one to two daysl), stherefore, can be used to mair
therapeutic effect to treat systemic disease.

Cancer malignancies, including pancreatic, lungabt, colon and prostate cancers, often accumhilgtelevels of HA and therefore
believe that PEGPH20 has the potential to helgeptgiwith these types of cancer when used witreatlyr approved cancer therapies. Am
solid tumors, pancreatic ductal adenocarcinoméahbas reported to be associated with the highestiémecy of HA accumulation.

Over 100,000 patients in the U.S. and EU are disgthavith pancreatic cancer annually and are fratudiagnosed in late stage of
disease. The pathologic accumulation of HA, aloritty wther matrix components, creates a unique raitvvonment for the growth of turr
cells compared to normal cells. We believe thaletamg the HA component of the tumor microenviromineith PEGPH20 remodels the tur
microenvironment, resulting in tumor growth inhibit. Removal of HA from the tumor microenvironmeasults in expansion of previou
constricted blood vessels to allow increased bftmad, increasing the access of activated immunés @ld factors in the blood into the tur
micro environment. If PEGPH20 is administered imjoaction with other anti-cancer therapies, theréase in blood flow may allow anti-
cancer therapies to have greater access to thertuvhach may enhance the treatment effect of thewtip modalities like chemotherapi
monoclonal antibodies and other agents.

Study Halo 109-201

In January 2015, we presented the final resultsrf&tudy 109-201, a multenter, international open label dose escalaticas®
clinical study of PEGPH20 in combination with getabine for the treatment of patients with stageri®tastatic pancreatic cancer at the .
Gastrointestinal Cancers Symposium (also known 8€®@G| meeting). This study enrolled 28 patients witleyiously untreated stage
pancreatic ductal adenocarcinoma. Patients weatettewith one of three doses of PEGPH20 (1.0, 530 g/kg twice weekly for fot
weeks, then weekly thereafter) in combination vg#mcitabine 1000 mg/m2 administered intravenouslythis study, the confirmed over
response rate (complete response + partial respomfiemed on a second scan as assessed by areimieg radiology review) was 29 perc
(7 of 24 patients) for those treated at therapeidie levels of PEGPH20 (1.6 and 3dig). Median progression free survival (PFS) wa4
days (95% CI, 50-166) in the efficacy-evaluable ydapon (n = 24). Among efficacgvaluable patients with baseline tumor HA staining:
17), the median PFS in patients with high baselingor HA staining (6/17 patients) was substantibdlyger, 219 days, than in the patients"
low baseline tumor HA staining (11/17 patients)8 Idays. Median overall survival (OS) was 200 d&85% Cl, 123-370) in the efficacy-
evaluable population (n = 24). Among efficagyaluable patients with baseline tumor HA stair(img 17), the median OS in patients with t
baseline tumor HA staining (6/17 patients) was taiglly longer, 395 days, than in the patientthvdw baseline tumor HA staining (11,
patients), 174 days. The most common treatreemrgent adverse events (occurring>ii5% of patients) were peripheral edema, mi
spasms, thrombocytopenia, fatigue, myalgia, anerai@ nausea. Thromboembolic events were reporte® ipatients (28.6%) a
musculoskeletal events were reported in 21 pati@®i%) which were generally grade 1/2 in severity.




Study Halo 109-202

In the second quarter of 2013, we initiated Stu@9-202, a Phase 2 multicenter randomized clinigal ¢valuating PEGPH20 as a first-
line therapy for patients with stage IV metastaédncreatic cancer. The study was designed to gpati#nts who would receive gemcitak
and nab-paclitaxel (ABRAXANE) either with or without PEGPH20. The primary enitipds to measure the improvement in progressien-
survival in patients receiving PEGPH20 plus genmdita and nab-paclitaxel compared to those who eceiving gemcitabine and nab-
paclitaxel alone. In April 2014, after 146 patiehtsd been enrolled, the trial was put on clinicaldhby Halozyme and the FDA to asse
question raised by the Data Monitoring Committegarding a possible difference in the thromboembelient rate between the groug
patients treated with PEGPH20, nab-paclitaxel aathatabine (PAG arm) versus the group of patiergatéd with nalpaclitaxel an
gemcitabine without PEGPH20 (AG arm). This portagrihe study and patients in this portion are nefenred to as Stage 1. It should be n
that at the time of the clinical hold all patiergsnaining in the study continued on gemcitabine raatglpaclitaxel. In July 2014, the Study 108
202 was reinitiated (Stage 2) under a revised podtavhich excludes patients that are expectedet@tba greater risk for thromboemb
events, provides for prophylaxis of all patientsbioth arms of the study with low molecular weigl#phrin, and adds evaluation of
thromboembolic event rate in Stage 2 patients coetpaith Stage 1 as a co-primary end point. StagéStudy 109202 is designed to enr
an additional 114 patients, to add to the 146 pttialready accrued in the clinical trial, with:& Zandomization for PAG compared to AG.

In January 2015, we disclosed initial efficacy avadety data from an interim assessment of Stagé Stumly 109202. In the safe
evaluable population, i.e. patients who had reckateleast one dose of study drugs in test or coatpaarm, of 135 patients (74 in PAG a
61 in AG arm), the RECIST 1.1 Objective ResponsteRaased on patient data through April 9, 20145 @406 (25/74 patients) in the P,
arm and 23% in the AG arm (14/61 patients) (P=0.AMong the safety evaluable patients with basdlAestaining and at least one protc
specified post base line scan after two cyclesualysdrug to assess tumor response (62 patiehts)plijective response rate was 60% ir
PAG arm (21/35 patients), and 37% in the AG armdZ(atients) (P=0.09). In patients with high blse tumor staining for HA the objecti
response rate was 71% in the PAG arm (12/17 pajiesmhd 29% in the AG arm (5/17 patients) (P=0.0T6)assess PFS data for all Sta
patients who had received at least one dose of d@ndghad a base line HA analysis (106 patientsp das evaluated through Decembe
2014 to allow for sufficient follow up duration. Pte description above, patients in the PAG ardndiatontinued PEGPH20 in April and o
a portion restarted PEGPH20 in July 2014 uponitheflthe clinical hold. The PFS in this populatizvas 5.5 months in the PAG arm vs
months in the AG arm (p=0.086). In patients withthbase line tumor staining for HA, the PFS wasmaaths in the PAG arm (12/25 patie!
vs 4.3 months in the AG arm (15/23 patients) (P30)0

We and the data monitoring committee for Study 202-continue to closely monitor the occurrencéhobmnboembolic events in enroll
patients after the revision to the protocol. Thesed protocol includes prepecified analyses to evaluate the rate of thromibodic event:
and Study 109-202 may be halted again if the podtdeanges do not result in a reduction of thronntlo@lic events in accordance with the pre
specified analyses in the protocol.

SWOG Study S1313

In October 2013, SWOG, a cancer research coopergtvup of more than 4,000 researchers in overiigilutions around the worl|
initiated a 144 patient Phase 1b/2 randomizedddiririal in some of their study centers, examinRE§GPH20 in combination with modifi
FOLFIRINOX chemotherapy (mFOLFIRINOX) compared toF@LFIRINOX treatment alone in patients with metéistapancreati
adenocarcinoma (funded by the National Cancertis)i This study was also placed on clinical higlishporarily at the time of the hold
Study 109202. In September 2014, the FDA removed the clinfedd on patient enrollment and dosing of PEGPHR20this SWOC
cooperative study. The study has resumed undesiseteprotocol, and patient enrollment is contiiguiAs with Study 10202, the occurren
of thromboembolic events will be closely monitoiadenrolled patients, and the continuation of gtisdy may be halted again in accord:
with event rate rules established in the protoaofor other safety reasons.

Other indications outside of pancreatic cancer

Study HALO 107-201, PRIMAL Studyin December 2014, we initiated a Phase 1b/2, tt@mlevaluate PEGPH20 in second lin
combination with docetaxel (Taxotef¢ in Non-Small Cell Lung Cancer (NSCLC) patients. In thisdst, we expect to evaluate and identify
dose, dosing regimen and safety of PEGPH20 plustdrel in previously treated patients with NSCLGQxod identification of the dose &
dosing regimen, we plan to expand the trial to watal safety and efficacy.




Study HALO 107-101, the immuno-oncology trlalthe second half of 2015, we plan to initiateimmuno-oncology trial, exploring tt
combination of PEGPH20 and an immumezology agent such as a PD1/PDL1 inhibitor. Weeekpo evaluate and identify the dose and s
of PEGPH20 plus the immune-oncology agent prigrarking on expansion into multiple tumors inchgdNSCLC and Gastric cancers.

Regulatory.

In September 2014, the FDA granted Fast Track dasion for our program investigating PEGPH20 in bamation with gemcitabine a
nabpaclitaxel for the treatment of patients with mé&dtis pancreatic cancer to demonstrate an impromemeoverall survival. The Fast Tre
designation process was developed by the FDA ititéde the development, and expedite the reviewlrafys to treat serious or litereatenin
diseases and address unmet medical needs.

In October 2014, the FDA granted Orphan Drug degtign for PEGPH20 for the treatment of pancreatincer. The FDA Office «
Orphan Products Development mission is to advameestaluation and development of products (drugdodics, devices, or medical foor
that demonstrate promise for the diagnosis andéatrhent of rare diseases or conditions. In Decer@®24, the European Committee
Orphan Medicinal Products of the EMA designated PHZ0 an orphan medicinal product for the treatnoéptancreatic cancer.

In the first quarter of 2015, we plan to meet witle Health authorities in the U.S., and subseqgyentEurope, to discuss a poten
registration seeking study in stage IV metasta@mqgoeatic cancer patients whose tumors are detedmio have high levels of F
accumulation. In the first half of 2015, we alsamplto engage the health authorities for developmérst companion diagnostic agent
detection and qualification of hyaluronan in thentu tissue of cancer patients.

In October 2014, we announced the issuance of Bafent No. 8,846,034 claiming methods for selecingubject for treatment o
hyaluronan-associated disease with an laysiluronan agent, such as PEGPH20, as well asalitigragents for the detection and quantifice
of hyaluronan in a biological sample in patients.

Ultrafast Insulin Program Evaluation of rHUPH20 andHylenex in Patients with Diabetes

Two distinct opportunities exist for the use of AHRO andHylenexrecombinant in diabetes. We intend to seek to emttm
collaborations with third parties or explore otktategic alternatives in order to exploit thesparpunities.

The first opportunity, Continuous Subcutaneous linsinfusion (CSlI), is focused on assessing thiea§ of pretreating the insuli
infusion site withHylenexrecombinant at the time of infusion site changecéoavery 3 days). Insulin pump therapy is growimghie U.S
among patients with type 1 and type 2 diabeteslamdocus of our program is type 1. We believe thatpretreatment of the infusion site w
Hylenexrecombinant could result in faster onset and shdueation of insulin action.

In the first quarter of 2013, we initiated CONSISVE1, a clinical trial evaluating the safety anficgfcy of Hylenexrecombinant and
new formulation ofHylenex when used as pretreatment of the insulin infusitnis patients with type 1 diabetes. With enrolirheomplete
in the third quarter of 2013, the trial has enmiES6 patients with type 1 diabetes who were rangen3:1 to either rapid acting analog ins
(RAI) delivered by CSII wittHylenexrecombinant pretreatment of the infusion site andard CSII using RAI alone. Subjects randomiz:
the Hylenexrecombinant group were administered 150 unitslyiEnexrecombinant once every three days through eachimfesion cannul:
immediately prior to initiation of insulin deliveryn June 2014, we presented a scientific postgrlighting the CONSISTENT 1 trial results
the 74th Scientific Sessions of the American Diabeissociation in San Francisco. Data reportethénpresentation showed that the stt
primary endpoint of non-inferiority for A1C at sikonths between the useldflenexand the new formulation d¢flylenexin comparison to r
pretreatment, was met. In addition to other trial déta poster also presented data indicating tleaetivas a potential reduction in the rat
some types of hypoglycemic events associated Wwéhuse of thélylenexformulations in comparison to no preatment. The most comrr
treatment related adverse event in thdenexrecombinant groups was mild infusion site discornfdfith this exception, adverse events v
similar across the treatment and control groups.




In parallel with our clinical activities, we haveedn in dialog with the FDA regarding the requireteefor updating theHylene:
recombinant label in a manner that would suppadxir&ipromotion in this indication. While discussiowith the FDA are ongoing, we hi
learned that the FDA will likely request additiorainical data for a label update, translating tiemtially higher projected costs and lor
time to market than we had originally anticipat®de are continuing to seek clarity with the FDA ohaw data will be required, if any.
addition, we determined in the fourth quarter 2@1at with all patients having completed 12 monthghe trial, we did not need additional ¢
contribution from the second year of the CONSISTENTFial, and we stopped the trial and are curyestimmarizing the data for all patie
treated for 12 months. After evaluating our optioms have decided that except for any costs in ection with closing out the CONSISTEI
1 trial, we do not intend to incur substantial aiddial expenses for the program.

The second opportunity, Multiple Daily Injection M), is to combine rHUPH20 with an FDA approved RAlg., insulin lispro (Humalc
®) (Lispro-PH20), insulin aspart (Novol&g (Aspart-PH20) and insulin glulisine (Apidf3 (Glulisine-PH20), (each such combination, analot
PH20), to seek to accelerate their action. A nundfeslinical trials investigating the various awtes of our product candidates have |
completed, with the last study completed in 201ihc& then we have only conducted limited additiodalvelopment work with th

opportunity.

Data from two treatment studie®nre in type 1 diabetes patients and one in typml2etes patients has been published. Copies of
publications can be found http://www.halozyme.com/Technology/Journals-Abssrdmd-Posters/default.aspBoth studies met their prime
endpoints of A1C non-inferiority and improved pgséndial glucose control compared to patients wherewtreated with RAI alor
Additionally, data from the type 1 diabetes treatingtudy indicated that AnaldgH20 formulations reduced hypoglycemia compareRAd
alone.

Collaborations

Roche Collaboration

In December 2006, we and Roche entered into areagnet under which Roche obtained a worldwide, exetulicense to develop a
commercialize product combinations of rHUPH20 wifhto thirteen Roche target compounds (the Roclilalitwation). Roche initially had t
exclusive right to apply rHUPH20 to only three piefined Roche biologic targets with the option xelaesively develop and commercial
rHUPH20 with ten additional targets. As of DecemBEr 2014, Roche has elected a total of five exclusive tgrgad retains the option
develop and commercialize rHUPH20 with three addil targets through the payment of annual licenaimtenance fees.

In September 2013, Roche launched a SC formulatidterceptin (trastuzumab) (Herceptin SC) in Eurégrethe treatment of patiel
with HER2positive breast cancer. This formulation utilizes patented Enhanze technology and is adminisiereso to five minutes, rath
than 30 to 90 minutes with the standard intraverfotra. Roche received European marketing appramaHerceptin SC in August 2013. 1
European Commission’s approval was based on daa Roches Phase 3 HannaH study which showed that the sateoms formulation
Herceptin was associated with comparable efficpaghplogical complete response, pCR) to Herceptiministered intravenously in wom
with HER2-positive early breast cancer and resuitedoninferior trastuzumab plasma levels. Overall, thietyaprofile in both arms of tt
HannaH study was consistent with that expected Btandard treatment with Herceptin and chemotheiraghyis setting. No new safety sigr
were identified. Breast cancer is the most comnater among women worldwide. Each year, about Ildbmnew cases of breast cancer
diagnosed worldwide, and over 450,000 women w#l df the disease annually. In HER@sitive breast cancer, increased quantities ¢
human epidermal growth factor receptor 2 (HER2)paesent on the surface of the tumor cells. Thisi®yn as “HER2 positivity'and affect
approximately 15% to 20% of women with breast cand&R2-positive cancer is reported to be a pddityaggressive form of breast cancer.




In June 2014, Roche launched MabTh®&C in Europe for the treatment of patients with own forms of norHodgkin lymphom
(NHL). This formulation utilizes our patented Enkantechnology and is administered in approximafelg minutes compared to t
approximately 2.5 hour infusion time for intravesoMabThera. The European Commission approved MahT8€& in March 2014. T
European Commission's approval was based primanilgata from Roche's Phase 3 pivotal clinical ssidivhich was recently publishec
The Lancet Oncology. NHL is a type of cancer thiig¢cis lymphocytes (white blood cells). NHL repnetse approximately 85% of |
lymphomas diagnosed and was responsible for appedgly 200,000 annual deaths worldwide in 2012. hlgomas are a cancer of
lymphatic system (composed of lymph vessels, lymptles and organs) which helps to keep the bodilyg fevels balanced and to defend
body against invasion by disease. Lymphoma develMdpn white blood cells (usually Bmphocytes) in the lymph fluid become cance
and begin to multiply and collect in the lymph nseder lymphatic tissues such as the spleen. Somtheske cells are released into
bloodstream and spread around the body, interfevitigthe body's production of healthy blood cells.

Additional information about the Phase 3 Herce@d and Phase 3 MabThera SC clinical trials canobad atwww.clinicaltrials.gor
andwww.roche-trials.com Information available on these websites is nobiporated into this report.

Baxter Collaboration

In September 2007, we and Baxter entered into ageatent under which Baxter obtained a worldwide]uesive license to develop €
commercialize product combinations of rHUPH20 W@AMMAGARD LIQUID (HYQVIA) (the Baxter Collaboration GAMMAGARD
LIQUID is a current Baxter product that is indicdtior the treatment of primary immunodeficiencyaders associated with defects in
immune system.

In October 2014, Baxter announced the launch amstl $hipments of Baxtes’ HYQVIA product for treatment of adult patientsth
primary immunodeficiency in the U.S. HYQVIA was apped by the FDA in September 2014 and is the frdtcutaneous IG treatm
approved for adult primary immunodeficiency patseewith a dosing regimen requiring only one infusignto once per month (every thre:
four weeks) and one injection site per infusion nrost patients, to deliver a full therapeutic dodel®. The majority of primar
immunodeficiency patients today receive intraveniofissions in a doctos office or infusion center, and current subcutaisel® treatmen
require weekly or biveekly treatment with multiple infusion sites pegatment. The FDA's approval of HYQVIA is a sigo#int milestone fc
us as it represents the first U.S. approved BLAcWhitilizes our rHuPH20 platform.

In May 2013, the European Commission granted Bamtarketing authorization in all EU Member States floe use of HYQVI/
(solution for subcutaneous use) as replacemenapliefor adult patients with primary and secondamynunodeficiencies. Baxter launcl
HYQVIA in the first EU country in July 2013 and &dditional EU countries in the second half of 2@h8 in 2014.

Pfizer Collaboration

In December 2012, we and Pfizer entered into aaboHation and license agreement, under which Pfiasrthe worldwide license
develop and commercialize products combining owrRH20 enzyme with Pfizer proprietary biologics diesl to up to six targets in primi
care and specialty care indications. Targets magelexted on an exclusive or nexelusive basis. In September 2013, Pfizer eleittedourtt
therapeutic target on an exclusive basis. In Deeer@b13, Pfizer announced that one of the targefgdprotein convertase subtilisin/ke
type 9, also known as PCSK9. The PCSK9 gene prsvitgructions for making a protein that helps taguthe amount of cholesterol in
bloodstream. Pfizer is also developing Rivipangedaied to another target under the collaboratmtreat vasacclusive crisis in individua
with sickle cell disease.

Janssen Collaboration

In December 2014, we and Janssen entered intdabondtion and license agreement, under which &arisas the worldwide license
develop and commercialize products combining ourRH20 enzyme with Janssen proprietary biologicsctidd to up to five targets. Targ
may be selected on an exclusive or non-exclusigesbdanssen has elected one undisclosed target exclusive basis.

For a further discussion of the material termswfallaboration agreements, refer to Not€dllaborative Agreementso our
consolidated financial statements.




Customers

The following table indicates the percentage dditotvenues in excess of 10% with any single custom

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Roche 57% 64% 45%
Janssen 20% — —
Baxter 3% 10% 17%
Pfizer 1% 1% 22%

For additional information regarding our revenuesrf external customers, refer to Note&S2mmary of Significant Accounting Policies
Concentrations of Credit Risk, Sources of Suppty ignificant Customers

Patents and Proprietary Rights

Patents and other proprietary rights are essentialir business. Our success will depend in paduwrability to obtain patent protecti
for our inventions, to preserve our trade secmetkta operate without infringing the proprietarghis of third parties. Our strategy is to acti
pursue patent protection in the U.S. and certaieido jurisdictions for technology that we belieeebe proprietary to us and that offers 1
potential competitive advantage. Our patent pddfoicludes 20 issued patents in the U.S., 80 sqaents in Europe and other countrie
the world and a number of pending patent applioatidn general, patents have a term of 20 yeam ft® application filing date or earl
claimed priority date. Our issued patents will ezdietween 2022 and 2032. We have multiple patamspatent applications throughout
world pertaining to our recombinant human hyaludase and methods of use and manufacture, incladingsued U.S. patent which expire
2027 and an issued European patent which expir@®24, which we believe cover the products and gbdandidates under our exist
collaborationsHylenexrecombinant, PEGPH20 and our endocrinology prodantlidates. In addition, we have, under prosecuticoughou
the world, multiple patent applications that relgpecifically to individual product candidates undevelopment, the expiration of which
only be definitely determined upon maturation iotr issued patents. We believe our patent filirgggasent a barrier to entry for poter
competitors looking to utilize these hyaluronidases

In addition to patents, we rely on unpatented traeerets, proprietary knotvew and continuing technological innovation. Wek
protection of these trade secrets, proprietary khow and innovation, in part, through confidentiaind proprietary information agreeme
Our policy is to require our employees, directemsultants, advisors, collaborators, outside &fiecollaborators and sponsored researc
other advisors and other individuals and entitesxecute confidentiality agreements upon the stheémployment, consulting or ot!
contractual relationships with us. These agreemprusgide that all confidential information develdper made known to the individual
entity during the course of the relationship ido@kept confidential and not disclosed to thirdtiparexcept in specific circumstances. In
case of employees and some other parties, theragnée provide that all inventions conceived byittgividual will be our exclusive proper
Despite the use of these agreements and our effopgotect our intellectual property, there willvays be a risk of unauthorized use
disclosure of information. Furthermore, our tradersts may otherwise become known to, or be indpely developed by, our competitors.

We also file trademark applications to protect tlanes of our products and product candidates. Téggkcations may not mature
registration and may be challenged by third partifés are pursuing trademark protection in a nundbetifferent countries around the woi
There can be no assurances that our registeredregistered trademarks or trade names will notrigé on rights of third parties or will
acceptable to regulatory agencies.

Research and Development Activities

Our research and development expenses consistrlyirof costs associated with the development arahufacturing of our produ
candidates, compensation and other expenses fearodsand development personnel, supplies and iadaterosts for consultants and rel:
contract research, clinical trials, facility coatsd amortization and depreciation. We charge a#taech and development expenses to oper.
as they are incurred. Our research and developawtintties are primarily focused on the developnafdur various product candidates.




Due to the uncertainty in obtaining the FDA andeottegulatory approvals, our reliance on thirdiparand competitive pressures, we
unable to estimate with any certainty the additi@usts we will incur in the continued developmehbur proprietary product candidates
commercialization. However, we expect our reseaot development expenses for PEGPH20 to increasmiraprogram advances il
additional tumors and later stages of clinical depment.

Manufacturing

We do not have our own manufacturing facility far @roduct and product candidates, or their agtiivermaceutical ingredient (API)
bulk forms, or the capability to package our pradi¥ge have engaged third parties to manufacturk dilPH20 and our produtiylene;
recombinant.

We have existing supply agreements with contraagtufacturing organizations Avid Bioservices, Incv{@ and Cook Pharmica LL
(Cook) to produce supplies of bulk rHUPH20. Thesmufiacturers each produce bulk rHUPH20 under cuff@ed Manufacturing Practic
(cGMP) for clinical and commercial uses. Avid ando& currently produce bulk rHUPH20 for use Hiylenexrecombinant and our ott
collaboration products and product candidates. \&lg on their ability to successfully manufactureegh batches according to proc
specifications. Cook has limited experience martufatg bulk rHUPH20. In addition, we have been vigkto scaledp, validate and quali
Cook as a manufacturer of bulk rHUPH20 for usehm firoduct and product candidates under the Roaleboration. To date, Cook has
been submitted to the European regulatory autBerliy Roche as an approved manufacturer for Hénc8@t and MabThera SC. It is essel
for our business for Cook and Avid to (i) retaireithstatus as cGMBpproved manufacturing facilities; (ii) to succedigf scale up bul
rHUPH20 production; and/or (iii) manufacture thelkbuHuPH20 required by us and our collaborators €@e in our proprietary a
collaboration products and product candidates. dditeon to supply obligations, Avid and Cook willsa provide support for data &
information used in the chemistry, manufacturind aantrols sections for FDA and other regulatolindis.

We have a commercial manufacturing and supply ageeé with Baxter, a cGMBpproved manufacturing facility, under which Ba
provides the final fill and finishing steps in thpeoduction process dflylenexrecombinant. Under our commercial manufacturing sungply
agreement with Baxter, Baxter has agreed to fitl finish Hylenexrecombinant product for us until December 31, 2Gsuhject to furthe
extensions in accordance with the terms of theeagemt. In June 2011, we entered into a serviceseaggnt with another third pa
manufacturer, Patheon Manufacturing Services, LR&tleon), for the technology transfer and manufeacfill, finish or packaging oflylene;
recombinant. In October 2014, we received regwaamproval from the FDA for Patheon to manufactdséenexrecombinant. In Decemt
2014, we entered into a manufacturing serviceseageat with Patheon under which Patheon will protidefinal fill and finishing steps in t
production process dflylenexrecombinant. Under our commercial services agreemith Patheon, Patheon has agreed to fill andsh
Hylenexrecombinant product for us until December 31, 2GLfject to further extensions in accordance withterms of the agreement
2015, we will begin to transition our manufactursigpply to Patheon to achieve higher capacity amgi cost of goods.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution

HYLENEX Recombinant

Our commercial activities currently focus blylenexrecombinant. We have a team of sales specialiatsptiovide hospital and surg:
center customers with the information abditlenexrecombinant and information needed to obtain foemulapproval for, and supp
utilization of, Hylenexrecombinant. Our commercial activities also inclnggrketing and related services and commercial@tiggrvices suc
as commercial operations, managed markets and cmiaihanalytics. We also employ thighrty vendors, such as advertising agen
market research firms and suppliers of marketirdy@her sales support related services to asdistour commercial activities.

We sellHylenexrecombinant in the U.S. to wholesale distributerkp sell to hospitals, ambulatory surgery centexs @her endisers
We have engaged Integrated Commercial SolutionsS)(ICa division of AmerisourceBergen Specialty Group subsidiary ¢
AmerisourceBergen, to act as our exclusive distobfor commercial shipment and distributionHbflenexrecombinant to our customers in
United States. In addition to distribution servicéSS provides us with other key services relatedogistics, warehousing, returns
inventory management, contract administration amargebacks processing and accounts receivable miauead. In addition, we utilize thi
parties to perform various other services for Ugtireg to regulatory
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monitoring, including call center management, ageavent reporting, safety database managememtlaedproduct maintenance services.
Competition

The pharmaceutical industry is characterized bydhgmdvancing technologies, intense competitiod arstrong emphasis on proprie’
therapeutics. We face competition from a numbesairces, some of which may target the same inditsitas our product or prod
candidates, including large pharmaceutical comparsenaller pharmaceutical companies, biotechnologypanies, academic institutio
government agencies and private and public reséastitutions, many of which have greater financegources, drug development experie
sales and marketing capabilities, including largeg|l established sales forces, manufacturing dépeb, experience in obtaining regulat
approvals for product candidates and other ressutwmn us. We face competition not only in the caruialization ofHylenexrecombinan
but also for the in-licensing or acquisition of &@ihal product candidates, and the diaénsing of our Enhanze technology. In additions
collaborators face competition in the commercidiaraof the product candidates for which the calliators seek marketing approval from
FDA or other regulatory authorities.

HYLENEX Recombinant

Hylenexrecombinant is currently the only FDa#pproved recombinant human hyaluronidase on th&ehafhe competitors for Hylen
recombinant include, but are not limited to, Baugch.omb Inc.'s FDA-approved product, Vitrage, an ovine (ram) hyaluronidase, :
Amphastar Pharmaceuticals, Inc.'s product, Amphatiaa bovine (bull) hyaluronidase, which is not curhgimin the market. In addition, sol
commercial pharmacies compound hyaluronidase pm#pas for institutions and physicians even thoegimpounded preparations are
FDA-approved products.

Government Regulations

The FDA and comparable regulatory agencies in goreiountries regulate the manufacture and salbeopharmaceutical products t
we have developed or currently are developing. FR& has established guidelines and safety standaedsare applicable to the laborai
and preclinical evaluation and clinical investigatiof therapeutic products and stringent regulatittrat govern the manufacture and sa
these products. The process of obtaining regulapproval for a new therapeutic product usuallyuness a significant amount of time ¢
substantial resources. The steps typically requiefdre a product can be introduced for humanndade:

« animal pharmacology studies to obtain preliminafgimation on the safety and efficacy of a drug

« laboratory and preclinical evaluationvitro andin vivoincluding extensive toxicology studi

The results of these laboratory and preclinicallis®si may be submitted to the FDA as part of an Bpplication. The sponsor of an Il
application may commence human testing of the ceamg@@0 days after submission of the IND, unlesgiadtto the contrary by the FDA.

The clinical testing program for a new drug typigahvolves three phases:

« Phase 1 investigations are generally conducteckaitthy subjects (in certain instances, Phase liestullat determine the maxim
tolerated dose and initial safety of the producididate are performed in patients with the disease)

* Phase 2 studies are conducted in limited numbessigécts with the disease or condition to be é&ceaind are aimed at determining
most effective dose and schedule of administratieveluating both safety and whether the product atestnates therapeu
effectiveness against the disease; and

» Phase 3 studies involve large, wathtrolled investigations in diseased subjects amedaimed at verifying the safety and effective
of the drug.
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Data from all clinical studies, as well as all ledtory and preclinical studies and evidence of pobdjuality, are typically submitted
the FDA in a new drug application (NDA). The resuif the preclinical and clinical testing of a loigic product candidate are submitted tc
FDA in the form of a BLA, for evaluation to detemei whether the product candidate may be approvecbfomercial sale. In responding 1
BLA or NDA, the FDA may grant marketing approvakquest additional information, or deny the appiarat Although the FDAS
requirements for clinical trials are well estabégdhand we believe that we have planned and cordioeteclinical trials in accordance with
FDA's applicable regulations and guidelines, theseirements, including requirements relating to testime safety of drug candidates, ma
subject to change as a result of recent announdsmegarding safety problems with approved drugidi#onally, we could be required
conduct additional trials beyond what we had plandiee to the FDAS safety and/or efficacy concerns or due to difginterpretations of tl
meaning of our clinical data. (See Part I, Item Risk Factors)

The FDA's Center for Drug Evaluation and Researcistnapprove an NDA and the FDACenter for Biologics Evaluation and Rese
must approve a BLA for a drug before it may be reteld in the United States. If we begin to marketpyoposed products for commercial
in the U.S., any manufacturing operations that fm@yestablished in or outside the U.S. will alscsbbject to rigorous regulation, includ
compliance with cGMP. We also may be subject tale@gn under the Occupational Safety and Health the Environmental Protection A
the Toxic Substance Control Act, the Export Con&ol and other present and future laws of gengplieation. In addition, the handling, ¢
and use of laboratory animals are subject to thielélines for the Humane Use and Care of Laboraforymals published by the Natiot
Institutes of Health.

Regulatory obligations continue pagtproval, and include the reporting of adverse &svernen a drug is utilized in the broader pa
population. Promotion and marketing of drugs i® a#sictly regulated, with penalties imposed foolations of FDA regulations, the Lanh
Act and other federal and state laws, includingféuteral anti-kickback statute.

We currently intend to continue to seek, directhtiorough our collaborators, approval to market prrducts and product candidate
foreign countries, which may have regulatory preessthat differ materially from those of the FDAgeVanticipate that we will rely up
independent consultants to seek and gain appravafarket our proposed products in foreign coustdemay rely on other pharmaceutice
biotechnology companies to license our proposedymis. We cannot assure you that approvals to rharieof our proposed products cat
obtained in any country. Approval to market a pidan any one foreign country does not necessardicate that approval can be obtaine
other countries.

From time to time, legislation is drafted and ilneed in Congress that could significantly charigestatutory provisions governing
approval, manufacturing and marketing of drug potsluln addition, FDA regulations and guidance @ften revised or reinterpreted by
agency or reviewing courts in ways that may sigatffitly affect our business and development of eodyrct candidates and any products
we may commercialize. It is impossible to predidiether additional legislative changes will be eedgctor FDA regulations, guidance
interpretations changed, or what the impact of rgh changes may be.

Segment Information

We operate our business as one segment, whichdeglall activities related to the research, devetg and commercialization
human enzymes. This segment also includes revesmsxpenses related to (i) research and develdpaegimities conducted under ¢
collaboration agreements with third parties anyipfioduct sales oHylenexrecombinant. The chief operating decisioaker reviews tt
operating results on an aggregate basis and matta@eperations as a single operating segment. &lenb foreign based operations ani
long-lived assets located in foreign countries fesnal for the years ended December 31, 2014, 26d2@a12. Refer to the Notes for additiol
financial information regarding our operating segine

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information concerning our executive officers, umihg their names, ages and certain biographid¢atrimation can be found in Part
Item 10,Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goverce. This information is incorporated by referenceiRtart | of this report.
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Employees

As of February 24, 2015 , we had 153 filhe employees. None of our employees are unioraneddwe believe our employee relation
be good.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Risks Related To Our Business

We have generated only limited revenue from prodeates to date; we have a history of net losses aedative cash flow, and we m
never achieve or maintain profitability.

Relative to expenses incurred in our operationshexe generated only limited revenues from prodadts, royalties, licensing fe
milestone payments, bulk rHUPH20 supply paymentsrasearch reimbursements to date and we may gewerate sufficient revenues fr
future product sales, licensing fees and milestosgments to offset expenses. Even if we ultimatidyachieve significant revenues fr
product sales, royalties, licensing fees, resegithbursements, bulk rHUPH20 supply payments andi@stone payments, we expect to ir
significant operating losses over the next few geaWe have never been profitable, and we may néeeome profitable. Throu
December 31, 2014 , we have incurred aggregatesets of approximately $450.4 million .

If our product candidates do not receive and maiimtaregulatory approvals, or if approvals are not @ined in a timely manner, suc
failure or delay would substantially impair our alify to generate revenues.

Approval from the FDA or equivalent health authiestis necessary to manufacture and market phatrtiealeproducts in the U.S. a
the other countries in which we anticipate doingibess have similar requirements. The process lftaiing FDA and other regulatc
approvals is extensive, timmnsuming, risky and costly, and there is no guasathat the FDA or other regulatory bodies wilpagve an
applications that may be filed with respect to afiypur product candidates, or that the timing of anch approval will be appropriate for
desired product launch schedule for a product ckateli We and our collaborators attempt to provididance as to the timing for the filing ¢
acceptance of such regulatory approvals, but silings and approvals may not occur when we or @liaborators expect, or at all. The F
or other foreign regulatory agency may refuse daylapproval of our product candidates for failtmecollect sufficient clinical or anim
safety data and require us or our collaboratorsatmduct additional clinical or animal safety stdighich may cause lengthy delays
increased costs to our programs. For example, we baen in dialog with the FDA regarding the retprg pathway and data requirements
updating the label fadylenexrecombinant for use in CSII but do not have clatdtglate. However, we have learned that additiolaical dat:
will likely be required for a label update. The kaaf clarity has hampered our ability to develog @mommercialize this opportunity and n
impede our future ability to identify a strategiarmer willing to invest in future development, isttgation and commercialization. In additi
the approval of Baxter's HYQVIA BLA was delayed iimte and Baxter provided additional preclinicaltasufficient to address conce
regarding nomeutralizing antibodies to rHUPH20 that were detgaén the registration trial. Although these antiles have not been associt
with any adverse clinical effects, and the HYQVIAMBwas approved by the FDA in September 2014, weoaassure you that they will |
arise and have an adverse impact on future deveopai products which include rHuPH20, future salEklylenexrecombinant, our ability -
enter into collaborations, or be raised by the F@Aother health authorities in connection with itestor approval of products includi
rHUPH20.

Only three of our collaboration product candidedesl one of our proprietary products have been appréor commercialization. V'
have no proprietary product candidates currentipéregulatory approval process. We and our cotkbbrs may not be successful in obtai
approvals for any potential products in a timelynmer, or at all. Refer to the risk factor titledJur proprietary and collaboration prodt
candidates may not receive regulatory approvalsheir development may be delayed for a varietyeasons, including unsuccessful clin
trials, regulatory requirements or safety concefriisr additional information relating to the appmadwf product candidates.

Additionally, even with respect to products whicavh been approved for commercialization, in ordecdntinue to manufacture ¢
market pharmaceutical products, we or our collalosamust maintain our regulatory approvals. If aeany of our collaborators ¢
unsuccessful in maintaining our regulatory appreyvalr ability to generate revenues would be a@eedfected.
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Use of our product candidates or those of our ctitaators could be associated with side effects dverse events.

As with most pharmaceutical products, use of oodpct candidates or those of our collaboratorsacbel associated with side effect:
adverse events which can vary in severity (fromanneactions to death) and frequency (infrequemgrevalent). Side effects or adverse ev
associated with the use of our product candidatéisose of our collaborators may be observed atiamg, including in clinical trials or wher
product is commercialized, and any such side effectadverse events may negatively affect our arcollaborators' ability to obtain
maintain regulatory approval or market our prodtanididates. Side effects such as toxicity or oslaéety issues associated with the use @
product candidates or those of our collaboratotddcequire us or our collaborators to perform &ddal studies or halt development or sal
these product candidates or expose us to prochkmtitly lawsuits which will harm our business. Weaur collaborators may be required
regulatory agencies to conduct additional animahwman studies regarding the safety and efficaoyuofpharmaceutical product candid:
which we have not planned or anticipated. Furtheemiinere can be no assurance that we or our codltdrs will resolve any issues relate
any product related adverse events to the satisfaof the FDA or any regulatory agency in a timalanner or ever, which could harm
business, prospects and financial condition. Fanele, in April 2014, a clinical hold was placed patient enrollment and dosing
PEGPH20 in Study 202 as a result of a possiblewiffce in the thromboembolic event rate that haoh ldserved at that time in the t
between the group of patients treated with PEGP##8us the group of patients treated without PEGPHSe clinical hold was lifted |
FDA in June 2014, and we have resumed enrollmethtdasing of PEGPH20 in Study 202 under a revisatceal protocol. We and the d:
monitoring committee for Study 202 continue to elgamonitor the occurrence of thromboembolic evémtsnrolled patients after the prota
amendments. The continuation of Study 202 may ltedhagain if the protocol changes do not resuli ieduction of thromboembolic eve
in accordance with event rate rules establishedamprotocol, or for other safety reasons.

If our contract manufacturers are unable to manufaere and supply to us bulk rHuUPH20 in the quantignd quality required by us or ot
collaborators for use in our products and producardidates, our product development and commercagiizn efforts could be delayed
stopped and our collaborations could be damaged.

We have existing supply agreements with contraatufecturing organizations Avid Bioservices, Inc.vi@ and Cook Pharmica LL
(Cook) to produce bulk rHUPH20. These manufactuearsh produce bulk rHUPH20 under current cGMP fimioal uses. Avid and Co
currently produce bulk rHUPH20 for useHylenexrecombinant and certain other collaboration proslactd product candidates. In additio
supply obligations, Avid and Cook will also provideipport for the chemistry, manufacturing and aastisections for FDA and ott
regulatory filings. We rely on their ability to stessfully manufacture these batches accordingdduat specifications. Cook has relati
limited experience manufacturing bulk rHUPH20. tidiéion, we have been working to scaip; validate and qualify Cook as a manufactur
bulk rHUPH20 for use in the product and productdidates under the Roche collaboration. To date,kQws not been submitted to
European regulatory authorities by Roche as anoapgrmanufacturer for Herceptin SC and MabTheralSCook is unable to obtain its sta
as an approved European manufacturing facilityif either Avid or Cook: (i) is unable to retain is¢atus as an FDA approved manufactt
facility; (ii) is unable to otherwise successfuligale up bulk rHuUPH20 production to meet corpooateegulatory authority quality standards
(iii) fails to manufacture and supply bulk rHuPH®0the quantity and quality required by us or oallaborators for use in our proprietary
collaboration products and product candidates ifiyr @her reason, our business will be adverselgcggfl. In addition, a significant chang
such parties' business or financial condition coadiversely affect their abilities to fulfill thezontractual obligations to us. We have
established, and may not be able to establish,rdé® arrangements with additional bulk rHUPH20 ufacturers and suppliers of
ingredients necessary to manufacture bulk rHuPH2QIlg the existing manufacturers and suppliers imeconavailable or in the event that
existing manufacturers and suppliers are unabéelémuately perform their responsibilities. We haitempted to mitigate the impact of sug
interruption through the establishment of excedk BuPH20 inventory where possible, but there bamo assurances that this safety ¢
will be maintained or that it will be sufficient @ddress any delays, interruptions or other problexperienced by Avid and/or Cook. #
delays, interruptions or other problems regardivegdbility of Avid and/or Cook to supply bulk rHuR®i on a timely basis could: (i) cause
delay of clinical trials or otherwise delay or peet the regulatory approval of proprietary or dotleation product candidates; (ii) delay
prevent the effective commercialization of promigtor collaboration products; and/or (iii) causeta breach contractual obligations to del
bulk rHUPH20 to our collaborators. Such delays wolikely damage our relationship with our collaltora under our key collaborati
agreements, and they would have a material adedfeset on royalties and thus our business and fihicondition.
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If we or any party to a key collaboration agreemeails to perform material obligations under suchgeeement, or if a key collaboratic
agreement, is terminated for any reason, our busieeould significantly suffer.

We have entered into multiple collaboration agresime@nder which we may receive significant futuagments in the form of milesto
payments, target designation fees, maintenanceafessoyalties. We are dependent on our collabratodevelop and commercialize proc
candidates subject to our collaborations in orderus to realize any financial benefits from thes#iaborations. Our collaborators may
devote the attention and resources to such effoatswe would to such efforts ourselves, changé firemotional efforts or simultaneou
develop and commercialize products in competitmthbse products we have licensed to them. Anyedd actions could not be visible tc
immediately and could negatively impact the beseditd revenue we receive from such collaboratioaddition, in the event that a party f
to perform under a key collaboration agreementf arkey collaboration agreement is terminated, rguction in anticipated revenues cc
delay or suspend our product development activibtesome of our product candidates, as well ascomrmercialization efforts for some or
of our products. Specifically, the termination dfey collaboration agreement by one of our collabms could materially impact our ability
enter into additional collaboration agreements wighv collaborators on favorable terms, if at allcertain circumstances, the termination
key collaboration agreement would require us tasewur corporate strategy going forward and remtal the applications and value of
technology.

Most of our current proprietary and collaboration rpducts and product candidates rely on the rHuPH2Mhzyme, and any advel
development regarding rHUPH20 could substantiallympact multiple areas of our business, including cant and potentie
collaborations, as well as proprietary programs.

rHUPH20 is a key technological component of Enhaeréinology and our most advanced proprietary aldhoration products al
product candidates, including the current and &ippnoducts and product candidates under our R&dleer, Janssen and Baxter collaborati
our PEGPH20 program, our ultrafast insulin progrand Hylenexrecombinant. If there is an adverse developmentrfuPH20 (e.g., €
adverse regulatory determination relating to rHu®@HRPwe are unable to obtain sufficient quantittdsHuPH20, if we are unable to obtair
maintain material proprietary rights to rHuPH2Gfare discover negative characteristics of rHuPH2®)ltiple areas of our business, incluc
current and potential collaborations, as well agppetary programs would be substantially impactedk example, elevated amttuPH2(
antibody titers were detected in the registratidel for Baxter's HYQVIA product as well as in arfioer collaboratos product in a Phase
clinical trial with rHUPH20, but have not been agated, in either case, with any adverse eventsmdfeitor for antibodies to rHUPH20 in «
collaboration and proprietary programs, and alttouge do not believe at this time that the incidenéenon-neutralizing antiHuPH2(
antibodies in either the HYQVIA program or the fantollaboratos program will have a significant impact on ourestproprietary and oth
collaboration product candidates, there can bessarance that there will not be other such occug®lin our other programs or that conc
regarding these antibodies will not also be raibgdthe FDA or other health authorities in the fetuwhich could result in delays
discontinuations of our development or commercéion activities or deter entry into additionalleblorations with third parties.

We routinely evaluate, and may modify, our businestsategy and our strategic focus to only a fewldie or applications of our technolog
which may increase or decrease the risk for potahtiegative impact of adverse developments.

We routinely evaluate our business strategy, ang madify this strategy in the future in light of massessment of unmet medical ne
growth potential, resource requirements, regulaigsyes, competition, risks and other factors. Assalt of these strategic evaluations, we
focus our resources and efforts on one or a fewrpros or fields and may suspend or reduce ourteffor other programs and fields.
example, in the third quarter of 2014, we decidedocus our resources on advancing PEGPH20 andndipga utilization of our Enhan
platform. While we believe these are applicatioriiihe greatest potential value, we have redubeddiversification of our programs ¢
increased our dependence on the success of thewaeeare pursuing. By focusing on one or a fewsanea increase the potential impact o
if one of those programs or product candidates dusssuccessfully complete clinical trials, achieveommercial acceptance or mu
expectations regarding sales and revenue. Ouridedis focus on one or a few programs may alsoaedbe value of programs that are
longer within our principal strategic focus, whicbuld impair our ability to pursue collaborations aiher strategic alternatives for th
programs we are not pursuing.
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Our proprietary and collaboration product candidatemay not receive regulatory approvals or their dBpment may be delayed fo
variety of reasons, including unsuccessful clinictilals, regulatory requirements or safety concerns

Clinical testing of pharmaceutical products is agpexpensive and uncertain process, and thedailudelay of a clinical trial can occu
any stage. Even if initial results of preclinicaldanonclinical studies or clinical trial resultegromising, we or our collaborators may ok
different results in subsequent trials or studies fail to show the desired levels of safety affidacy, or we may not, or our collaborators r
not, obtain applicable regulatory approval for aietg of other reasons. Preclinical, nonclinicaldaclinical trials for any of our proprietary
collaboration product candidates could be unsuéglesshich would delay or preclude regulatory apmiband commercialization of t
product candidates. In the U.S. and other jurigatist regulatory approval can be delayed, limiteshat granted for many reasons, includ
among others:

» clinical results may not meet prescribed endpdimtshe studies or otherwise provide sufficientadtat support the efficacy of ¢
product candidates;

» clinical and nonclinical test results may revealeseffects, adverse events or unexpected safetgssassociated with the us¢
our product candidates; for example, in April 20&4clinical hold was placed on patient enrollmemd aosing of PEGPH20
Study 202 as a result of a possible differenceh@ethromboembolic event rate that had been obsetédat time in the tri
between the group of patients treated with PEGPH268us the group of patients treated without PEGPHRe clinical hold we
lifted by FDA in June 2014, and we have resumedldnent and dosing of PEGPH20 in Study 202 undeewased clinice
protocol;

* regulatory review may not find a product candidsgée or effective enough to merit either contintesting or final approve

* regulatory review may not find that the data froraqtinical testing and clinical trials justifies@pval.

» regulatory authorities may require that we changrestudies or conduct additional studies which migyificantly delay or mal
continued pursuit of approval commercially unattira; for example, we are currently in dialog buat mbt have clarity from tt
FDA regarding the data that we will need for a latbenge foHylenexrecombinant to be used in CSlI;

* a regulatory agency may reject our trial data aragiee with our interpretations of either clinitahl data or applicab
regulations;

* a regulatory agency may approve only a narrow dseuo product or may require additional safety ntoming and reportin
through Risk Evaluation and Mitigation StrategiBEMS) or conditions to assure safe use program;

» the cost of clinical trials required for productpapval may be greater than what we originally apéte, and we may decide to
pursue regulatory approval for such a product;

e aregulatory agency may not approve our manufagjypsrocesses or facilities, or the processes dliti@e of our collaborator
our contract manufacturers or our raw material Sapp

e a regulatory agency may identify problems or otteficiencies in our existing manufacturing procesee facilities, or th
existing processes or facilities of our collaborat@ur contract manufacturers or our raw matsugbpliers;

e aregulatory agency may change its formal or infdrapproval requirements and policies, act contraugrevious guidance, adi
new regulations or raise new issues or concerasiahe approval process; or

e a product candidate may be approved only for iriiina that are narrow or under conditions that @léce product at
competitive disadvantage, which may limit the salad marketing activities for such product candidat otherwise adverse
impact the commercial potential of a product.

If a proprietary or collaboration product candidetenot approved in a timely fashion on commergialbble terms, or if development
any product candidate is terminated due to diffiealor delays encountered in the regulatory amdrprocess, it could have a material adv
impact on our business, and we would become maperdient on the development of other proprietargadiaboration product candida
and/or our ability to successfully acquire otheodurcts and technologies. There can be no assurdimaesany proprietary or collaborat
product candidate will receive regulatory apprawah timely manner, or at all. For example, we iardialog but have not reached agreer
with the FDA regarding the requirements for updatineHylenexrecombinant label for use in CSIl. There can bassurance that we will
able to gain clarity as to the FD&\requirements or that the requirements may besfigatiin a commercially feasible way, in which cass
ability to enter into collaborations with third pias or explore other strategic alternatives tol@kphis opportunity will be limited or may n
be possible.
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We anticipate that certain proprietary and collation products will be marketed, and perhaps mantuifad, in foreign countries. T
process of obtaining regulatory approvals in faneiguntries is subject to delay and failure formd&sons set forth above, as well as for re:
that vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. The @val process varies among countries and jurisaistand can involve additional testing. -
time required to obtain approval may differ fronatthequired to obtain FDA approval. Foreign reguiatagencies may not provide appro
on a timely basis, if at all. Approval by the FDAab not ensure approval by regulatory authoritiesther countries or jurisdictions, ¢
approval by one foreign regulatory authority does ensure approval by regulatory authorities ireotioreign countries or jurisdictions or
the FDA.

Our third party collaborators are responsible forqviding certain proprietary materials that are esstial components of our collaboratic
products and product candidates, and any failuresdopply these materials could delay the developnerd commercialization efforts fc
these collaboration products and product candidatesl/or damage our collaborations.

Our development and commercialization collaboratans responsible for providing certain proprietamaterials that are essen
components of our collaboration products and prbdacdidates. For example, Roche is responsiblprfmtucing the Herceptin and MabTh
required for its subcutaneous products and Basteesponsible for producing the GAMMAGARD LIQUIDrfits product HYQVIA. If ¢
collaborator, or any applicable third party serviimevider of a collaborator, encounters difficudtim the manufacture, storage, delivery,
finish or packaging of the collaboration productipooduct candidate or component of such produgroaduct candidate, such difficulties ca
(i) cause the delay of clinical trials or otherwiglay or prevent the regulatory approval of cal@bion product candidates; and/or (ii) dela
prevent the effective commercialization of colladttn products. Such delays could have a matedisrae effect on our business and final
condition.

We rely on third parties to prepare, fill, finishral package our products and product candidates, ahduch third parties should fail t
perform, our commercialization and development etfofor our products and product candidates could delayed or stopped.

We rely on third parties to store and ship bulk PH20 on our behalf and to also prepare, fill, fingsid package our products and pro
candidates prior to their distribution. If we ameable to locate third parties to perform these fions on terms that are acceptable to us, or
third parties we identify fail to perform their afphtions, the progress of clinical trials could Helayed or even suspended and
commercialization of approved product candidatesiccde delayed or prevented. In addition, we are¢hin early stages of scaling up
manufacturing of PEGPH20 with a third party to sapp@dditional clinical trials, including a poss®hiegistratiorenabling trial, and ultimatel
if approved, potential commercial supply. If ount@ct manufacturer is unable to successfully mactufe and supply PEGPH20, the proc
of our clinical trials could be delayed or halted & period of time.

If we are unable to sufficiently develop our salesarketing and distribution capabilities or ententio successful agreements with th
parties to perform these functions, we will not bble to fully commercialize our products.

We may not be successful in marketing and promatingapproved producHylenexrecombinant, or any other products we develc
acquire in the future. Our sales, marketing anttidigion capabilities are very limited. In ordercommercialize any products successfully
must internally develop substantial sales, marketind distribution capabilities or establish cadlediions or other arrangements with t
parties to perform these services. We do not hatensive experience in these areas, and we mapeable to establish adequatehimist
sales, marketing and distribution capabilities ngage and effectively manage relationships withdtiparties to perform any or all of st
services. To the extent that we enter intgpoomotion or other licensing arrangements, our pebdevenues are likely to be lower than if
directly marketed and sold our products, and argmaes we receive will depend upon the efforthtitparties, whose efforts may not v
our expectations or be successful. These thirdgsawould be largely responsible for the speed soupe of sales and marketing efforts,
may not dedicate the resources necessary to maxipnaduct opportunities. Our ability to cause thédel parties to increase the speed
scope of their efforts may also be limited. In diddi, sales and marketing efforts could be negbtirepacted by the delay or failure to obt
additional supportive clinical trial data for ouroplucts. In some cases, third party collaboratees@sponsible for conducting these additi
clinical trials, and our ability to increase théoefs and resources allocated to these trials nealjntited. For example, in January 2011, we
Baxter mutually agreed to terminate the collaboratigreement for the marketing rightd-yfienexrecombinant and the associated agreem

17




If we or our collaborators fail to comply with redatory requirements applicable to promotion, saled manufacturing of approve
products, regulatory agencies may take action agdins or them, which could significantly harm ousiness.

Any approved products, along with the manufacturprgcesses, postpproval clinical data, labeling, advertising anerpotiona
activities for these products, are subject to el requirements and review by the FDA, state faneign regulatory bodies. Regulat
authorities subject a marketed product, its marufac and the manufacturing facilities to continteliew and periodic inspections. We,
collaborators and our respective contractors, seigbnd vendors, will be subject to ongoing reuiarequirements, including complyi
with regulations and laws regarding advertisinggnpotion and sales of drug products, required suionis of safety and other pasarke
information and reports, registration requiremen@GMP regulations (including requirements relatiogjuality control and quality assurar
as well as the corresponding maintenance of recardk documentation), and the requirements regartliegdistribution of samples
physicians and recordkeeping requirements. Regylaigencies may change existing requirements gptatw requirements or policies. \
our collaborators and our respective contractarspkers and vendors, may be slow to adapt or nmybe able to adapt to these change
new requirements.

In particular, regulatory requirements applicaldgoharmaceutical products make the substitutioaugipliers and manufacturers co
and time consuming. We have minimal internal mactuféng capabilities and are, and expect to b&énftiture, entirely dependent on cont
manufacturers and suppliers for the manufacturewf products and for their active and other ingeati. The disqualification of the
manufacturers and suppliers through their failereed@mply with regulatory requirements could neggltivimpact our business because
delays and costs in obtaining and qualifying alégrsuppliers (if such alternative suppliers amlakle, which we cannot assure) could d
clinical trials or otherwise inhibit our ability toring approved products to market, which wouldéhavmaterial adverse effect on our busi
and financial condition. Likewise, if we, our cdilarators and our respective contractors, suppdiedsvendors involved in sales and promc
of our products do not comply with applicable laaval regulations, for example défbel or false or misleading promotion, this condterially
harm our business and financial condition.

Failure to comply with regulatory requirements magult in any of the following:

e restrictions on our products or manufacturing psseg

e warning letters

» withdrawal of the products from the marl

* voluntary or mandatory rece

» fines

» suspension or withdrawal of regulatory appro»

* suspension or termination of any of our ongoingicél trials
« refusal to permit the import or export of our prot

» refusal to approve pending applications or supptem® approved applications that we suk
e product seizuri

e injunctions; o

« imposition of civil or criminal penaltie

We may wish to raise additional capital in the futiand there can be no assurance that we will béeatb obtain such funds.

We may wish to raise additional capital in the fatto continue the development of our product cdengis or for other current corpor
purposes. Our current cash reserves and expesteduss during the next few years may not be sefficior us to continue the developmer
our proprietary product candidates, to fund genepmrations and conduct our business at the leesiret. In addition, if we engage
acquisitions of companies, products or technologiesrder to execute our business strategy, we megyl to raise additional capital. We 1
raise additional capital in the future through amemore financing vehicles that may be availableusoincluding (i) the public or prive
issuance of securities; (ii) new collaborative agnents; and/or (iii) expansions or revisions ts#xg collaborative relationships.

In view of our stage of development, business protsp the nature of our capital structure and génmarket conditions, if we &
required to raise additional capital in the futuhey additional financing may not be available andfable terms, or at all. If additional capite
not available on favorable terms when needed, Mldbwirequired to raise capital on adverse terms or
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significantly reduce operating expenses through restructuring of our operations. If we raise addil capital, a substantial numbel
additional shares may be issued, and these shétellute the ownership interest of our currenvéstors.

We currently have significant debt and failure bysuto fulfill our obligations under the applicableohn agreements may cause
repayment obligations to accelerate.

In December 2013, we entered into an Amended amsthiel Loan and Security Agreement (the Loan Agesgnwith Oxford Financ
LLC (Oxford) and Silicon Valley Bank (SVB) (colleetly, the Lenders), amending and restating iritsrety our original loan agreement v
the Lenders, dated December 2012. The Loan Agregpnevided for an additional $20 million principaiount of new term loan, bringing
total term loan balance to $50 million. The proceatk to be used for working capital and generain@ss requirements. In January 201E
entered into the Second Amendment to the AmendddRastated Loan and Security Agreement and Firstridment to Disbursement Le
(the “Amendment”)with the Lenders, amending and restating the lcayment schedules of the Amended and Restated LmadrSacurit
Agreement. The amended and restated term loan megrayschedule provides for interest only paymemtsugh January 2016, followed
consecutive equal monthly payments of principal amdrest in arrears starting in February 2016 aadtinuing through the previou:
established maturity date of January 2018. The detkrand restated term loan facility is secured udystantially all of the assets of
Company and its subsidiary, Halozyme, Inc., ext¢leat the collateral does not include any equitgnests in Halozyme, Inc., any intellect
property (including all licensing, collaborationcasimilar agreements relating thereto), and ceudéier excluded assets. The Loan Agree
contains customary representations, warrantiescaadnants by us, which covenants limit our abil@yconvey, sell, lease, transfer, assig
otherwise dispose of certain of our assets; engag®y business other than the businesses currenggged in by us or reasonably rel
thereto; liquidate or dissolve; make certain manay# changes; undergo certain change of contraitsyereate, incur, assume, or be i
with respect to certain indebtedness; grant cetiams; pay dividends and make certain other mstli payments; make certain investme
make payments on any subordinated debt; and amteitransactions with any of our affiliates outsmfethe ordinary course of busines:
permit our subsidiaries to do the same. In addjtubject to certain exceptions, we are requireth&intain with SVB our primary depa
accounts, securities accounts and commoditiest@ud the same for our domestic subsidiary. Compglyvith these covenants may mak
more difficult for us to successfully execute ousimess strategy.

The Loan Agreement also contains customary indecatién obligations and customary events of defanttiuding, among other thing
our failure to fulfill certain of our obligationsnder the Loan Agreement and the occurrence of amabadverse change which is defined
material adverse change in our business, operatioosndition (financial or otherwise), a mateiiapairment of the prospect of repaymer
any portion of the loan, or a material impairmenttie perfection or priority of lenderlien in the collateral or in the value of sucliateral. Ir
the event of default by us under the Loan AgreentbetLenders would be entitled to exercise thainedies thereunder, including the rigt
accelerate the debt, upon which we may be requaedpay all amounts then outstanding under thenl&greement which could harm «
financial condition.

If proprietary or collaboration product candidatesre approved for marketing but do not gain marketceptance, our business may suf
and we may not be able to fund future operations.

Assuming that our proprietary or collaboration prodcandidates obtain the necessary regulatoryoap|sr for commercial sale, a num
of factors may affect the market acceptance ofettegsting product candidates or any other prodwtish are developed or acquired in
future, including, among others:

» the price of products relative to other therapaglie same or similar treatmel

» the perception by patients, physicians and othenibees of the health care community of the effectéss and safety of the
products for their prescribed treatments relativether therapies for the same or similar treatsjent

» our ability to fund our sales and marketing effatal the ability and willingness of our collaboratto fund sales and market
efforts;

» the degree to which the use of these productsideted by the approved product lal

» the effectiveness of our sales and marketing effmnt the effectiveness of the sales and markeffogs of our collaborator

» the introduction of generic competitors; .

» the extent to which reimbursement for our prodwuid related treatments will be available from thpatty payors includir
government insurance programs (Medicare and Mat)icaid private insurers.
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If these products do not gain market acceptancenasenot be able to fund future operations, inalgdhe development or acquisitior
new product candidates and/or our sales and magkefforts for our approved products, which wouddige our business to suffer.

In addition, our proprietary and collaboration proticandidates will be restricted to the labelsrappd by FDA and applicable regulat
bodies, and these restrictions may limit the mamkeand promotion of the ultimate products. If #pproved labels are restrictive, the sales
marketing efforts for these products may be negitiaffected.

Developing and marketing pharmaceutical products ftuman use involves significant product liabilitsisks for which we currently hav
limited insurance coverage.

The testing, marketing and sale of pharmaceuticadlycts involves the risk of product liability alas by consumers and other tt
parties. Although we maintain product liability imance coverage, product liability claims can kghhin the pharmaceutical industry, and
insurance may not sufficiently cover our actuabiliies. If product liability claims were to be ma against us, it is possible that the liabil
may exceed the limits of our insurance policy, or imsurance carriers may deny, or attempt to deoyerage in certain instances. If a lawn
against us is successful, then the lack or ingeffity of insurance coverage could materially andeeskly affect our business and finan
condition. Furthermore, various distributors of phaceutical products require minimum product ligpihsurance coverage before purchas
acceptance of products for distribution. Failuresatisfy these insurance requirements could impedebility to achieve broad distribution
our proposed products, amigher insurance requirements could impose additicnsts on us. In addition, since many of ouratmiratiol
product candidates include the pharmaceutical mtsdaf a third party, we run the risk that problemwi¢h the third party pharmaceuti
product will give rise to liability claims agaings.

Our inability to attract, hire and retain key managnent and scientific personnel could negativelyeft our business.

Our success depends on the performance of key raarar and scientific employees with relevant exgrexe. For example, in ordet
pursue our current business strategy, we will tee@cruit and retain personnel experienced in lmgyodrug development which is a hig
competitive market for talent. We depend substiytan our ability to hire, train, motivate and aét high quality personnel, especially
scientists and management team. Particularly iwdEthe small number of employees on our staffdeer our numerous programs and
functions, if we are unable to retain existing pargel or identify or hire additional personnel, way not be able to research, deve
commercialize or market our products and produntictates as expected or on a timely basis and wenoiabe able to adequately sup)
current and future alliances with strategic collabors.

Furthermore, if we were to lose key managementopers, we would likely lose some portion of ourtingional knowledge and technit
know-how, potentially causing a substantial delay in onenore of our development programs until adequegpdacement personnel could
hired and trained. We currently have a severandieypapplicable to all employees and a change intrab policy applicable to seni
executives. Other than for vesting provisions iniiggbased awards, we have not adopted any othkcigs or entered into any ott
agreements specifically designed to motivate offiae other employees to remain with us.

We do not have key man life insurance policieshanlives of any of our employees.

Our operations might be interrupted by the occuriemof a natural disaster or other catastrophic eten

Our operations, including laboratories, offices ander research facilities, are located in fourldogs in San Diego, California. v
depend on our facilities and on our collaboratoasitractors and vendors for the continued operatfarur business. Natural disasters or ¢
catastrophic events, interruptions in the supplynafural resources, political and governmental gkanwildfires and other fires, floo
explosions, actions of animal rights activists teguakes and civil unrest could disrupt our operatior those of our collaborators, contrac
and vendors. Even though we believe we carry comialyr reasonable business interruption and ligbitisurance, and our contractors t
carry liability insurance that protect us in camtavents, we may suffer losses as a result of bssimterruptions that exceed the cove
available under our and our contractors' insurgraicies or for which we or our contractors do have coverage. Any natural disaste
catastrophic event could have a significant negaitivpact on our operations and financial resulterédver, any such event could delay
research and development programs.
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If we or our collaborators do not achieve projectddvelopment, clinical, regulatory or sales goatsthe timeframes we publicly announ
or otherwise expect, the commercialization of oupgucts and the development of our product candieatmay be delayed and, as a res
our stock price may decline, and we may face lausuélating to such declines.

From time to time, we or our collaborators may miplarticulate the estimated timing for the accdistpment of certain scientifi
clinical, regulatory and other product developmgmdls. The accomplishment of any goal is typichlged on numerous assumptions, an
achievement of a particular goal may be delayedafor number of reasons both within and outside wfamntrol. If scientific, regulator
strategic or other factors cause us to not meetad gegardless of whether that goal has been gyldrticulated or not, our stock price n
decline rapidly. For example, the announcementpril/014 of the temporary halting of our Phasdi@ical trial for PEGPH20 caused a ra
decline in our stock price. Stock price declines/raiso trigger direct or derivative shareholderdaits. As with any litigation proceeding,
eventual outcome of any legal action is difficaltgredict. If any such lawsuits occur, we will in@xpenses in connection with the defens
these lawsuits, and we may have to pay substatdialages or settlement costs in connection withrasglution thereof. Although we he
insurance coverage against which we may claim ryoagainst some of these expenses and costanthunaof coverage may not be adeq
to cover the full amount or certain expenses arstiscmay be outside the scope of the policies wataiai In the event of an adverse outc
or outcomes, our business could be materially hdrfr@m depletion of cash resources, negative impacbur reputation, or restrictions
changes to our governance or other processes thatesult from any final disposition of the lawsWtoreover, responding to and defenc
pending litigation significantly diverts managenisrttention from our operations.

In addition, the consistent failure to meet pullishnounced milestones may erode the credibilityusfmanagement team with respe
future milestone estimates.

Future acquisitions could disrupt our business amérm our financial condition.

In order to augment our product pipeline or otheeastrengthen our business, we may decide to a&cqditional businesses, prodi
and technologies. As we have limited experiencevaluating and completing acquisitions, our ability an organization to make s
acquisitions is unproven. Acquisitions could regusignificant capital infusions and could involvamy risks, including, but not limited to, 1
following:

* we may have to issue convertible debt or equitysiées to complete an acquisition, which wouldutdl our stockholders a
could adversely affect the market price of our camratock;

* an acquisition may negatively impact our resultspérations because it may require us to amortizerite down amounts relat
to goodwill and other intangible assets, or inauagsume substantial debt or liabilities, or it ncayse adverse tax consequer
substantial depreciation or deferred compensatianges;

 we may encounter difficulties in assimilating amdeprating the business, products, technologiessopeel or operations
companies that we acquire;

e certain acquisitions may impact our relationshiphwéxisting or potential collaborators who are cetitiye with the acquire
business, products or technologies;

e acquisitions may require significant capital infuss and the acquired businesses, products or tlegji@® may not gener:
sufficient value to justify acquisition costs;

« we may take on liabilities from the acquired compaunch as debt, legal liabilities or business vi$lch could be significar

e an acquisition may disrupt our ongoing businesgrtliresources, increase our expenses and distiactanagemer

e acquisitions may involve the entry into a geograpribusiness market in which we have little opnior experience; ar

* key personnel of an acquired company may decidéonwbrk for us

If any of these risks occurred, it could adversdfect our business, financial condition and opegatesults. There is no assurance the
will be able to identify or consummate any futuogaisitions on acceptable terms, or at all. If veepdrsue any acquisitions, it is possible
we may not realize the anticipated benefits frochsacquisitions or that the market will not vievekwacquisitions positively.
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Security breaches may disrupt our operations andteour operating results.

The wrongful use, theft, deliberate sabotage orahgr type of security breach with respect to ahgur information technology store
and access systems could result in disclosure ssediination of our proprietary and confidentialoinfiation that is electronically stor
including research or clinical data, resulting imaterial adverse impact on our business, opera¢isigjits and financial condition. Our sect
and data recovery measures may not be adequatetecipagainst computer viruses, bréadk- and similar disruptions from unauthori
tampering with our electronic storage systems. Hewrhore, any physical break- or trespass of our facilities could result ine
misappropriation, theft, sabotage or any other typseecurity breach with respect to our proprietang confidential information, includi
research or clinical data or damage to our researzh development equipment and assets. Such adeffesds could be material a
irrevocable to our business, operating resultsfiwahcial condition.

Risks Related To Ownership of Our Common Stock

Our stock price is subject to significant volatiit

We participate in a highly dynamic industry whiditea results in significant volatility in the markerice of common stock irrespective
company performance. As a result, our high anddales prices of our common stock during the twetemths ended December 31, 2@iddre
$18.18 and $6.88respectively. We expect our stock price to camito be subject to significant volatility and addition to the other risks a
uncertainties described elsewhere in this AnnualdReon Form 1K and all other risks and uncertainties that atieeginot known to us at tt
time or which we deem to be immaterial, any offtiilowing factors may lead to a significant dropaar stock price:

» the presence of competitive products to those baévgloped by u

» failure (actual or perceived) of our collaboratéosdevote attention or resources to the developroertommercialization
product candidates licensed to such collaborator;

» a dispute regarding our failure, or the failureook of our third party collaborators, to complywthe terms of a collaborati
agreement;

» the termination, for any reason, of any of ouraoadiration agreemen

» the sale of common stock by any significant stodl#tég including, but not limited to, direct or imdctt sales by members
management or our Board of Directors;

» the resignation, or other departure, of membemariagement or our Board of Direct

» general negative conditions in the healthcare itmg)

» general negative conditions in the financial masi

» the failure, for any reason, to obtain regulatgrpraval for any of our proprietary or collaboratiproduct candidate

» the failure, for any reason, to secure or defendrdellectual property positio

» for those products that are not yet approved fonroercial sale, the failure or delay of applicaldgulatory bodies to apprc
such products;

» identification of safety or tolerability issu

» failure of clinical trials to meet efficacy endptsi

« suspensions or delays in the conduct of clinigalsor securing of regulatory approv:

» adverse regulatory action with respect to oud anr collaboratorsproducts and product candidates such as clinichdsl
imposition of onerous requirements for approvgbrmduct recalls;

» our failure, or the failure of our third party caitlorators, to successfully commercialize produgfs@ved by applicable regulat
bodies such as the FDA,;

» our failure, or the failure of our third party calfiorators, to generate product revenues anticifigtéavestors

» problems with a bulk rHUPH20 contract manufactarea fill and finish manufacturer for any productpoduct candidat

» the sale of additional debt and/or equity seciitig us

» our failure to obtain financing on acceptable tera

e arestructuring of our operatio
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Future transactions where we raise capital may négaly affect our stock price.

We are currently a “Well-Known Seasoned Issugnt may file automatic shelf registration statermeait any time with the SEC.
addition, we currently have the ability to offerdasell additional equity, debt securities and watgato purchase such securities, e
individually or in units, under an effective autaimahelf registration statement. Sales of sub&haiounts of shares of our common stoc
other securities under our shelf registration stetets could lower the market price of our commantisiand impair our ability to raise cap
through the sale of equity securities. In the fefuwwe may issue additional options, warrants oertterivative securities convertible into
common stock.

Our rights agreement and antiakeover provisions in our charter documents and |[B&are law may make an acquisition of us mi
difficult.

We are party to a Rights Agreement designed ta éébtasive takeover tactics and to encourage préispexcquirers to negotiate with
board of directors rather than attempt to acquiréta manner or on terms that our board deemsceptable, which could delay or discour
takeover attempts that stockholders may consideréble.

In addition, antitakeover provisions in our charter documents anidiere law may make an acquisition of us more diffi First, ou
board of directors is classified into three classedirectors. Under Delaware law, directors ofaporation with a classified board may
removed only for cause unless the corporation'sficate of incorporation provides otherwise. Ounended and restated certificate
incorporation, as amended, does not provide otlserwn addition, our bylaws limit who may call sigéaeneetings of stockholders, permitt
only stockholders holding at least 50% of our aurtding shares to call a special meeting of stoddrsl Our amended and restated certif
of incorporation, as amended, does not includeoaigipn for cumulative voting for directors. Undamimulative voting, a minority stockholc
holding a sufficient percentage of a class of shanay be able to ensure the election of one or miveetors. Finally, our bylaws establ
procedures, including advance notice procedurdh, igard to the nomination of candidates for @ecas directors and stockholder propos

These provisions may discourage potential takeattempts, discourage bids for our common stock giteanium over market price
adversely affect the market price of, and the \gp#nd other rights of the holders of, our commarlst These provisions could also discou
proxy contests and make it more difficult for stbolders to elect directors other than the cand&ateninated by our board of directors.

In addition, because we are incorporated in Delaware are governed by the provisions of Section @D3e Delaware Gene
Corporation Law, which may prohibit large stockheslfrom consummating a merger with, or acquisitirus.

These provisions may deter an acquisition of usrtlight otherwise be attractive to stockholders.

Risks Related to Our Industry

Our products must receive regulatory approval befothey can be sold, and compliance with the exteasgjovernment regulations
expensive and time consuming and may result in theday or cancellation of product sales, introduati® or modifications.

Extensive industry regulation has had, and willtoare to have, a significant impact on our businédk pharmaceutical companis
including ours, are subject to extensive, compbastly and evolving regulation by the health retprgagencies including the FDA (and v
respect to controlled drug substances, the U.Sg Bnforcement Administration (DEA)) and equivalémteign regulatory agencies and s
and local/regional government agencies. The Fedayat, Drug and Cosmetic Act, the Controlled Sulxsta Act and other domestic
foreign statutes and regulations govern or inflgettee testing, manufacturing, packaging, labelstgring, recordkeeping, safety, appro
advertising, promotion, sale and distribution of puoducts. We are dependent on receiving FDA ahdragovernmental approvals priol
manufacturing, marketing and shipping our produ€@snsequently, there is always a risk that the F@Aother applicable governmer
authorities will not approve our products or mayogse onerous, costly and timensuming requirements such as additional clirdcanima
testing. Regulatory authorities may require thataliange our studies or conduct additional studidgch may significantly delay or ma
continued pursuit of approval commercially unattirse We are currently in dialog but do not havarity from the FDA regarding the path
a labeling update to include key efficacy and safistta prior to initiatinglylenexrecombinant for use in CSIl. There can be no assertéha
we will be able to gain clarity as to the FDA'suggments. The FDA or other foreign regulatory agemay,
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at any time, halt our and our collaborators' dgmelent and commercialization activities due to safencerns. In addition, even if our prodt
are approved, regulatory agencies may also takegppsoval action limiting or revoking our ability teell our products. Any of the
regulatory actions may adversely affect the econdmanefit we may derive from our products and tfeeecharm our financial condition.

Under certain of these regulations, we and ourrechtsuppliers and manufacturers are subject tmgierinspection of our or the
respective facilities, procedures and operatiomgarihe testing of products by the FDA, the DEAI ather authorities, which conduct peric
inspections to confirm that we and our contractplieps and manufacturers are in compliance withapplicable regulations. The FDA a
conducts pre-approval and pegiproval reviews and plant inspections to deternvitiether our systems, or our contract supplierd
manufacturers' processes, are in compliance witdiR@nd other FDA regulations. If we, or our contrawpplier, fail these inspections,
may not be able to commercialize our product imefty manner without incurring significant additelrcosts, or at all.

In addition, the FDA imposes a number of complegutatory requirements on entities that advertisd promote pharmaceutic
including, but not limited to, standards and retjates for direct-to-consumer advertising, off-lapebmotion, industrysponsored scientific a
educational activities, and promotional activitiegolving the internet.

We may be subject, directly or indirectly, to varbroad federal and state healthcare laws. If we ainable to comply, or have not fu
complied, with such laws, we could face civil, ciiml and administrative penalties, damages, mongtdines, disgorgement, possil
exclusion from participation in Medicare, Medicai@nd other federal healthcare programs, contractudhmages, reputational harr
diminished profits and future earnings and curtailemt or restructuring of our operations, any of whiccould adversely affect our abili
to operate.

Our business operations and activities may be tiirear indirectly, subject to various broad fedesad state healthcare laws, incluc
without limitation, antikickback laws, false claims laws, civil monetanynplty laws, data privacy and security laws, tracingl tracking law
as well as transparency laws regarding paymentshar items of value provided to healthcare progd@&hese laws may restrict or prohik
wide range of business activities, including, bot himited to, research, manufacturing, distribatigricing, discounting, marketing &
promotion and other business arrangements. Thesentay impact, among other things, our currentviets with principal investigators a
research subjects, as well as sales, marketingdinchtion programs. Many states have similar healthfraud and abuse laws, some of w
may be broader in scope and may not be limitetetas or services for which payment is made by a&gowent health care program.

Efforts to ensure that our business arrangemetitgovhply with applicable healthcare laws may inbkubstantial costs. While we h
adopted a healthcare corporate compliance progtasmpossible that governmental and enforcemetitaities will conclude that our busin
practices may not comply with current or futureugies, regulations or case law interpreting apple#fraud and abuse or other healthcare |
If our operations or activities are found to beviolation of any of the laws described above or ather governmental regulations that app
us, we may be subject to, without limitation, ciwiriminal and administrative penalties, damagesnetary fines, disgorgement, poss
exclusion from participation in Medicare, Medicaidd other federal healthcare programs, contrackalages, reputational harm, diminis
profits and future earnings and curtailment orreestiring of our operations, any of which could exbely affect our ability to operate.

In addition, any sales of products outside the Wi#.also likely subject us to foreign equivalemtsthe healthcare laws mentioned ab
among other foreign laws.

We may be required to initiate or defend againstjdé proceedings related to intellectual propertghits, which may result in substanti
expense, delay and/or cessation of the developraadtcommercialization of our products.

We primarily rely on patents to protect our intetleal property rights. The strength of this pratact however, is uncertain. For exam
it is not certain that:

» we will be able to obtain patent protection for punducts and technologi

» the scope of any of our issued patents will beigefit to provide commercially significant exclugy for our products ar
technologies;

» others will not independently develop similar dieahative technologies or duplicate our technolegied obtain patent protect
before we do; and
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« any of our issued patents, or patent pending agics that result in issued patents, will be heltid, enforceable and infring
in the event the patents are asserted againssother

We currently own or license several patents and hive pending patent applications applicable taPt#H20 and other propriet:
materials. There can be no assurance that ouirrexigatents, or any patents issued to us as at r&salr pending patent applications, 1
provide a basis for commercially viable products| provide us with any competitive advantageswailt not face third party challenges or
the subject of further proceedings limiting thedioge or enforceability. Any weaknesses or limitagion our patent portfolio could haw
material adverse effect on our business and fimdmcindition. In addition, if any of our pendingtgat applications do not result in iss
patents, or result in issued patents with narrovirited claims, this could result in us having ap limited protection against generic
biosimilar competition against our product candidaihich would have a material adverse effect arbasiness and financial condition.

We may become involved in interference proceedingee U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, or othiec@edings in other jurisdictiol
to determine the priority, validity or enforceatyilof our patents. In addition, costly litigatioould be necessary to protect our patent position

We also rely on trademarks to protect the namesuofproducts (e.gHylenexrecombinant). We may not be able to obtain tradk
protection for any proposed product names we selecaddition, product names for pharmaceuticaldpods must be approved by he
regulatory authorities such as the FDA in additionmeeting the legal standards required for tradkmeotection and product names
propose may not be timely approved by regulatognatgs which may delay product launch. In additaur, trademarks may be challengec
others. If we enforce our trademarks against thadies, such enforcement proceedings may be exgens

We also rely on trade secrets, unpatented propyiéiaow-how and continuing technological innovation that seek to protect wi
confidentiality agreements with employees, considtaand others with whom we discuss our businegspules may arise concerning
ownership of intellectual property or the applidéypior enforceability of these agreements, andmight not be able to resolve these disput
our favor.

In addition to protecting our own intellectual pesty rights, third parties may assert patent, tnzalé or copyright infringement or ott
intellectual property claims against us. If we bmeoinvolved in any intellectual property litigatiowe may be required to pay substa
damages, including but not limited to treble dansag#torneys' fees and costs, for past infringenfeintis ultimately determined that c
products infringe a third party's intellectual peoly rights. Even if infringement claims againstaue without merit, defending a lawsuit ta
significant time, may be expensive and may diveanagement's attention from other business concEunther, we may be stopped fr
developing, manufacturing or selling our productgiluve obtain a license from the owner of the valg technology or other intellect
property rights. If such a license is availablaljtit may require us to pay substantial royaltesther fees.

Patent protection for proteirbased therapeutic products and other biotechnolagyentions is subject to a great deal of uncertainand it
patent laws or the interpretation of patent lawsariges, our competitors may be able to develop amroercialize products based on ¢
discoveries.

Patent protection for proteimased therapeutic products is highly uncertain iamdlves complex legal and factual questions. Ilcere
years, there have been significant changes in pienincluding the legal standards that govemgbope of protein and biotechnology pat:
Standards for patentability of fulbngth and partial genes, and their correspondintgjms, are changing. Recent court decisions hzage i
more difficult to obtain patents, by making it mat#ficult to satisfy the patentable subject mattequirement and the requirement of nor
obviousness, have decreased the availability ahttjons against infringers, and have increasedikbhéhood of challenging the validity of
patent through a declaratory judgment action. Takgether, these decisions could make it moreadiffiand costly for us to obtain, license
enforce our patents. In addition, the Le&@mith America Invents Act (HR 1249) was signed ilaw in September 2011, which among o
changes to the U.S. patent laws, changes patenitprirom “first to invent” to “first to file,” implements a poggrant opposition system 1
patents and provides for a prior user defenseftmgement. These judicial and legislative chanlyage introduced significant uncertainty
the patent law landscape and may potentially negigtimpact our ability to procure, maintain andane patents to provide exclusivity for
products.
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There also have been, and continue to be, polisgudsions concerning the scope of patent protectivarded to biotechnolo
inventions. Social and political opposition to leichnology patents may lead to narrower patent giiote within the biotechnology indust
Social and political opposition to patents on gesnas proteins and recent court decisions concenpagntability of isolated genes may lea
narrower patent protection, or narrower claim iptetation, for isolated genes, their correspondireins and inventions related to their
formulation and manufacture. Patent protectiontiraiato biotechnology products is also subject great deal of uncertainty outside the L
and patent laws are evolving and undergoing rewigiamany countries. Changes in, or different iptetations of, patent laws worldwide n
result in our inability to obtain or enforce patenand may allow others to use our discoverieseteeldp and commercialize competil
products, which would impair our business.

If third party reimbursement and customer contracase not available, our products may not be accepire the market.

Our ability to earn sufficient returns on our protiuwill depend in part on the extent to which reimsement for our products and rel:
treatments will be available from government healtlministration authorities, private health insarenanaged care organizations and ¢
healthcare providers.

Third-party payors are increasingly attempting to linattbthe coverage and the level of reimbursememte®f drug products to cont:
costs. Consequently, significant uncertainty exast$o the reimbursement status of newly approeadtiicare products. Third party payors |
not establish adequate levels of reimbursemerthfoproducts that we commercialize, which couldtltimeir market acceptance and result
material adverse effect on our financial condition.

Customer contracts, such as with group purchasiggnizations and hospital formularies, will oftest wffer contract or formulary stat
without either the lowest price or substantial gnoclinical differentiation. If our products arenepared to animadlerived hyaluronidases
these entities, it is possible that neither of ¢hesnditions will be met, which could limit markatceptance and result in a material ady
effect on our financial condition.

The rising cost of healthcare and related pharmadieal product pricing has led to cost containmentgssures that could cause us to
our products at lower prices, resulting in less sswe to us.

Any of the proprietary or collaboration productatthave been, or in the future are, approved bybBwe may be purchased or reimbur
by state and federal government authorities, peivegalth insurers and other organizations, sucheath maintenance organizations
managed care organizations. Such third party payjaneasingly challenge pharmaceutical productipgic The trend toward manag
healthcare in the U.S., the growth of such orgditima, and various legislative proposals and eneetsto reform healthcare and governr
insurance programs, including the Medicare PresoripDrug Modernization Act of 2003, could signéiatly influence the manner in wh
pharmaceutical products are prescribed and purdhassulting in lower prices and/or a reductiord@mand. Such cost containment mea
and healthcare reforms could adversely affect bilityato sell our products.

In March 2010, the U.S. adopted the Patient Priatecand Affordable Care Act, as amended by the tHe@lare and Educati
Reconciliation Act (the Healthcare Reform Act). §kaw substantially changes the way healthcaraénted by both governmental and pri
insurers, and significantly impacts the pharmacatindustry. The Healthcare Reform Act contaimsienber of provisions that are expecte
impact our business and operations, in some casemys we cannot currently predict. Changes that affect our business include th
governing enrollment in federal healthcare programasnbursement changes, fraud and abuse and enferd. These changes will img
existing government healthcare programs and willtein the development of new programs, includiigdicare payment for performar
initiatives and improvements to the physician gyatporting system and feedback program.

Additional provisions of the Healthcare Reform Atay negatively affect our revenues in the futuia. &ample, the Healthcare Refc
Act imposes a nodeductible excise tax on pharmaceutical manufacweimporters that sell branded prescription drtigU.S. governme
programs that we believe will impact our revenuesnf our products. In addition, as part of the Headte Reform Act's provisions closin
funding gap that currently exists in the MedicaatPD prescription drug program, we will also bguieed to provide a 50% discount
branded prescription drugs dispensed to benefesarnder this prescription drug program. We expetthe Healthcare Reform Act and o
healthcare reform measures that may be adoptéa ifuture could have a material adverse effectwriralustry generally and on our ability
maintain or increase our product sales or succssfommercialize our product candidates or coirditl or eliminate our future spending
development projects.
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Furthermore, individual states have become incnghsaggressive in passing legislation and implaemgrregulations designed to con
pharmaceutical product pricing, including price patient reimbursement constraints, discounts, icéisins on certain product acce
importation from other countries and bulk purchgsihegally mandated price controls on payment arteoby third party payors or ott
restrictions could negatively and materially impauat revenues and financial condition. We anti@ghgat we will encounter similar regulat
and legislative issues in most other countriesidetthe U.S.

We face intense competition and rapid technologichlnge that could result in the development of duets by others that are superior
our proprietary and collaboration products under delopment.

Our proprietary and collaboration products have erwous competitors in the U.S. and abroad includiagrong others, maj
pharmaceutical and specialized biotechnology firamsyersities and other research institutions tiate developed competing products.
competitors foHylenexrecombinant include, but are not limited to, VateRaharmaceuticals International, Inc. and AmphaBtermaceutical
Inc. For our ultrafast insulin product candidatesch competitors may include Biodel Inc., Eli Liganofi Aventis, Novo Nordisk Inc. a
Mannkind Corporation. For our PEGPH20 product cdatdi, such competitors may include major pharmaémduiand specialize
biotechnology firms. These competitors may deveémhnologies and products that are more effectiaier, or less costly than our currer
future proprietary and collaboration product caatiéd or that could render our technologies andymtochndidates obsolete or noncompeti
Many of these competitors have substantially marsources and product development, manufacturing raarketing experience a
capabilities than we do. In addition, many of oampetitors have significantly greater experien@nttve do in undertaking preclinical tes
and clinical trials of pharmaceutical product caladés and obtaining FDA and other regulatory apgdsoef products and therapies for us
healthcare.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

None.

Item 2. Properties

Our administrative offices and research faciliggs currently located in San Diego, California. \Wase an aggregate of approxime
76,000 square feet of office and research spaca fioonthly rent expense of approximately $145,00€ of costs and property taxes assoc
with the operation and maintenance of the subleta®lities. We believe the current space is adegit@ our immediate needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

From time to time, we may be involved in disputasjuding litigation, relating to claims arising toof operations in the normal courst
our business. Any of these claims could subjedbustly legal expenses and, while we generalliebe that we have adequate insuranc
cover many different types of liabilities, our imance carriers may deny coverage or our policytirmay be inadequate to fully satisfy
damage awards or settlements. If this were to hapgpe payment of any such awards could have ariabselverse effect on our consolide
results of operations and financial position. Attdially, any such claims, whether or not successfulld damage our reputation and busit
We currently are not a party to any legal procegslithe adverse outcome of which, in managersentinion, individually or in the aggrege
would have a material adverse effect on our codatdid results of operations or financial position.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securitit

Market Information

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ GlobalegeMarket under the symbol “HALOThe following table sets forth the high ¢
low sales prices per share of our common stoclkaguwrach quarter of the two most recent fiscal years

2014 2013
High Low High Low
First Quarter $18.1¢ $11.2¢ $8.5¢ $5.1¢
Second Quarter $12.9° $6.8¢ $8.4¢ $5.0:
Third Quarter $10.7( $8.5¢ $12.1¢ $6.51
Fourth Quarter $10.0( $7.5] $16.3¢ $9.3:

On February 24, 2015 , the closing sales priceuofoommon stock on the NASDAQ Global Select Markas $15.0(Qper share. As

February 24, 2015 , we had approximately 17,006kstoiders of record.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid any dividends orcommon stock. We currently intend to retain avddacash for funding operatiol
therefore, we do not expect to pay any dividendsoon common stock in the foreseeable future. Initamtg the provisions of our Lo
Agreement limit, among other things, our abilitypay dividends and make certain other payments. fatwre determination to pay divider
on our common stock will be at the discretion of board of directors and will depend upon, amorgeofactors, our results of operatic
financial condition, capital requirements, contnatrictions, business prospects and other factordoard of directors may deem relevant.
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Stock Performance Graph and Cumulative Total Return

Notwithstanding any statement to the contrary iy ahour previous or future filings with the SE@e tfollowing information relating -
the price performance of our common stock shallbeotieemed to be “filed” with the SEC or to be fisiting material” under the Securitit
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchaogeaid it shall not be deemed to be incorporatgddierence into any of our filings unt
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the dhgd Act, except to the extent we specificallyrpmate it by reference into such filing.

The graph below compares Halozyme Therapeutics;slmumulative fiveyear total shareholder return on common stock i
cumulative total returns of the NASDAQ Compositddr and the NASDAQ Biotechnology Index. The gragtcks the performance of a $:
investment in our common stock and in each of tliexes (with the reinvestment of all dividends)rir®ecember 31, 2009 to December
2014. In addition, we have provided supplementrination showing the comparative returns for aditwhal period through February :
2015. The historical stock price performance inellich this graph is not necessarily indicativeuttife stock price performance.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN FROM 12/31/09 THROUGH 2/24/15*

Among Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc., The NASDAQ Composite Index
And The NASDACQ Biotechnology Index
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s ’jééjfé‘;:; %
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50 T . : . .
12/34/2008 123172010 1273472011 1213412042 1213412013 123112014 212412015
—O— Halozyme Therspeutics Inc —— NASDAQ Composite —o— MASDAR Biotechnology
3100 invested on 12/31/3 in stock or index_ including reinvestment of dividends
12/31/2009  12/31/2010  12/31/2011  12/31/2012  12/31/2013  12/31/2014  2/24/2015
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. $100 $135 $162 $114 $255 $164 $256
NASDAQ Composite $100 $118 $117 $137 $193 1$22 $232
NASDAQ Biotechnology $100 $115 $129 $171 $284 $381 $421
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Item 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The selected consolidated financial data set foeflbow as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , and fofifical years endeldecember 3.
2014, 2013 and 2012are derived from our audited consolidated finahsfatements included elsewhere in this reporis Ffiormation shoul
be read in conjunction with those consolidatedrfaial statements, the notes thereto, and witMiahagemens Discussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operatic.” The selected consolidated financial data set foeflow as of December 31, 2012, 2011
2010, and for the fiscal years ended December 811 &and 2010, are derived from our audited conatgl financial statements that
contained in reports previously filed with the SEGt included herein.

Summary Financial Information

Year Ended December 31,

Statement of Operations Data: 20149 2013%@ 20129 2011® 2010

(in thousands, except for per share amounts)
Total revenues $ 7533« $ 54,79¢ $ 42328 $ 56,08¢ $ 13,62«
Net loss $ (68,37H) $ (83,479 $ (53,55) $ (19,770 $ (53,24)
Net loss per share, basic and diluted $ (0.5¢) $ 0.79) $ (0.4¢) $ (0.19) $ (0.56)
Shares used in computing net loss per share, dadic
diluted 122,69( 112,80! 111,07 102,56t 94,35¢

As of December 31,
Balance Sheet Data: 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

(in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents and available-for-satkatable

securities $ 135620 $ 71,500 $ 9950 $ 52,37¢ $ 82,75¢
Working capital $ 136,99 $ 70,29 $ 111,68 $ 46,23¢ $ 73,65¢
Total assets $ 16597 $ 101,79 $ 134,728 $ 6575¢ $ 91,34¢
Deferred revenue $ 5463¢ $ 53,14: $ 4384 $ 4088 $ 58,09
Long-term debt, net $ 49,.86( $ 49,77 $ 29,66: — —
Total liabilities $ 12462 $ 121,78 $ 8587t $ 5485¢ $ 70,99
Stockholders’ equity (deficit) $ 4135 $ (19,99) $ 4885 $ 10,90 $ 20,35

(1) Revenues in 2014 included a $15.0 million licereseffom the Janssen Collaborat

(2) Revenues in 2013 reflected increases in supplyulk rHUPH20 to Roche and product saledHgfenexrecombinant, which wi
relaunched in December 2011.

(3) Revenues in 2012 included $9.5 million in licensesffrom the Pfizer Collaboratit

(4) Revenues in 2011 included $18.0 million in licefeses from collaboration agreements with ViroPhatrm@rporated and Intrex
Corporation and $18.1 million related to recogmitiof unamortized deferred prepaid prodbased payments and unamort
deferred upfront payment in connection with thanti@eation of the collaboration with Baxter for thearketing rights oHylene:
recombinant in July 2011.
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operatio

In addition to historical information, the followgndiscussion contains forwaldeking statements that are subject to risks
uncertainties. Actual results may differ substdhtirom those referred to herein due to a numbkfactors, including but not limited to ris
described in the Part I, Item 1A, Risks Factorg] atsewhere in this Annual Report. References tmtébl' are Notes included in our Notes
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Overview

Halozyme is seeking to translate our unique knogdedf the tumor microenvironment to create noveldpies that can improve car
survival. Our research focuses on human enzyméslies the extracellular matrix and tumor microeomment. The extracellular matrix i
complex matrix of proteins and carbohydrates surdg the cell that provides structural supporti#sues and orchestrates many impo
biological activities, including cell migration,ggialing and survival. Over many years, we have ldgee unique technology and scient
expertise enabling us to pursue this target-riciirenment for the development of therapies.

Our proprietary enzymes can be used to facilitage delivery of injected drugs and fluids, potemfianhancing the efficacy and -
convenience of other drugs or can be used to altteormal tissue structures for clinical benefit. Wé&e chosen to exploit our technology
expertise in a balanced way to modulate both ris#t spend by: (1) developing our own proprietarydpieis in therapeutic areas w
significant unmet medical needs, with a focus oootwgy, and (2) licensing our technology to biophaceutical companies to collaborati
develop products which combine our technology whith collaborators' proprietary compounds.

The majority of our approved product and producididates are based on rHUPH20, our patented recamiiiuman hyaluronida:
enzyme. rHUPH20 temporarily breaks down hyalurawmid (HA), a naturally occurring substance that imajor component of the extracell
matrix in tissues throughout the body such as akith cartilage. We believe this temporary degradatieates an opportunistic window for
improved subcutaneous delivery of injectable bimsgsuch as monoclonal antibodies and other ldrgmpeutic molecules, as well as s
molecules and fluids. We refer to the applicatidnrtduPH20 to facilitate the delivery of other drugs fluids as Enhanzé technology
rHUPH20 is also the active ingredient in our fasinmercially approved produdtylenex® recombinant.

Our proprietary development pipeline consists prilpaf clinical stage product candidates in onggland diabetes. Our lead oncol
program is PEGPH20 (PEGylated recombinant humatutgr@dase), a new molecular entity, under develepinfor the systemic treatment
tumors that accumulate HA. When HA accumulatestumaor, it can cause higher pressure in the tuneolycing blood flow into the tumor a
with that, reduced access of cancer therapiesetdgumor. PEGPH20 works by temporarily degrading $t#rounding some cancer cells
results in reduced pressure and increased bloadtidhe cancer with increased amounts of anticatreatments administered concomita
gaining access to the tumor. We are currently iasBI® clinical testing for PEGPH20 in metastaticopeatic cancer (Study 1@92) , and w
have recently initiated a clinical trial in non-dinzell lung cancer (Study 107-201). We have alserbinvestigatindgdylenex recombinant fc
use as pre-treatment in patients with Type 1 desbesing pumps and recombinant human cathepsiT-gBll) for the treatment of cellulite.

Our recent receipt of Fast Track and Orphan Drugjgiations for PEGPH20, new pre-clinical data fertsupporting the patwmol
potential for PEGPH20 and investigator interesbath pancreatic and lung cancer trials have coefifrREGPH20 as our priority prod
candidate for investment. As a result of ongoingleations to confirm and focus on the highest valportunities, we have made the deci
to seek collaborations with third parties or explother strategic alternatives in order to expait diabetes and dermatology programs.

Regarding Enhanze, we currently have collaboratieitis F. Hoffmann-La Roche, Ltd. and Hoffmaha-Roche, Inc. (Roche), Bax
Healthcare Corporation (Baxter), Pfizer Inc. (Pfjzand Janssen Biotech, Inc. (Janssen), with oondugt approved in the U.S. and tt
products approved for marketing in Europe from Whi@ are receiving royalties and several otheva@bus stages of development.
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Our operations to date have involved: (i) buildinfrastructure for and staffing our operations) #icquiring, developing and secur
proprietary protection for our technology; (iii)\woping our proprietary product pipeline; (iv) enihg into and supporting our collaborati
with other companies to advance licensed produetlidates; and (v) selling our own approved comna¢nsiroduct,Hylenexrecombinan
Currently, we have received only limited revenuwerirthe sales dflylenexrecombinant, in addition to other revenues fromaallaborations.

Future revenues from the sales and/or royaltiesuofproduct candidates which have not been approvédhve recently been appro
will depend on the ability of Halozyme and our eblbrators to develop, manufacture, secure regylatoprovals for and commercialize
product candidates. We have incurred net operdtinges each year since inception, with an accuetldeficit of approximately450.:
million as of December 31, 2014 .

Our 2014 and recent key accomplishments and eaeatas follows:

e In January 2015, we disclosed initial efficaacydasafety data from an interim assessment of Stagé Study 10202, a Phase
multicenter, randomized clinical trial evaluating®PH20 as a firdine therapy for patients with stage IV metastpanicreatic cance
Refer toPEGPH20section under Part |, Item Business for further discussion of Study 1@®2 data. We also presented the -
results from Study 109-201, a mutgénter, international open label dose escalati@s®fb clinical study of PEGPH20 in combina
with gemcitabine for the treatment of patients widtage |V metastatic pancreatic cancer at the 2BaStrointestinal Cance
Symposium (also known as ASCO-GI meeting). RefdPEa&PH20section under Part |, Item Business for further discussion
Study 109-202 data.

* In December 2014, we and Janssen entered intdabomtion and license agreement, under which &anisas the worldwide licer
to develop and commercialize products combining Brinanze technology with Janssen proprietary bictodirected to up to fi
targets. Targets may be selected on an exclusiveooexclusive basis. We received $15 million for theefise of one specifi
exclusive target and four additional targets whiahssen has the right to elect upon payment ofiaddli fees. We are also eligible
receive additional payments upon Janssen's achanteaf specified development, regulatory and shéesed events, totaling up
$566 million.

* In November 2014, we announced we had completegrporate strategy review, including a portfolio ieav, which resulted in
decision to focus our resources on advancing PEGRI# to expand utilization of our Enhanze platfofiihe recent Fast Track &
Orphan Drug designations for PEGPH20, new preddindata further supporting the pamor potential for PEGPH20, &
investigator interest in both pancreatic and luageer trials have confirmed PEGPH20 as our prigrityduct for investment. Wi
respect to our program investigatiflylenexrecombinant for use with insulin pumps, we belivat additional clinical data will |
required and are continuing to seek clarity with thS. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) on whatadwill be required, if an
Once we receive clarity, we intend to seek to eintercollaborations with third parties or explarer strategic alternatives in orde
exploit this opportunity. We completed a reductiommur workforce of approximately 13% to align withese strategic priorities.
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e In October 2014, Baxter announced the launch arsd $hipments of HYQVIA [Immune Globulin Infusior0% (Human) witl
rHUPH20], Baxter's subcutaneous immunoglobulinttneat for adult patients with primary immunodefiwig in the U.S. HYQVI/
was approved by the FDA in September 2014, antidasfitst subcutaneous immune globulin (IG) treattregsproved for primau
immunodeficiency patients with a dosing regimerumggg only one infusion up to once per month (gvilaree to four weeks) and ¢
injection site per infusion to deliver a full mohtttherapeutic dose of IG. The majority of primamymunodeficiency patients tod
receive intravenous infusions in a doctor’s offmeinfusion center, and current subcutaneous I@trirents require weekly or bi-
weekly treatment with multiple infusion sites pegatment. The FDA's approval of HYQVIA was a sigraht milestone for us as
represented the first U.S. approved Biologics LsseApplication (BLA) which utilized our rHUPH20 piarm.

e In July 2014, we resumed enrollment and dosihgatients in our ongoing Study 1@®2 evaluating PEGPH20 in patients \
pancreatic cancer under a revised clinical prototieé study had previously been placed on clirticddl in April 2014 pending revie
by the independent Data Monitoring Committee (DM@)the study and by the FDA of a possible diffeein the thromboembo
event rate between the patients treated with PEGRid&us the patients treated without PEGPH20artrthl.

« In June 2014, Roche launched the subcutanedisf¢®8nulation of MabTher& (rituximab) using rHUPH20 (MabThera SC) in Eur
for the treatment of patients with common formsioh-Hodgkin lymphoma (NHL). Roche received Europeankmting approval i
March 2014. The first commercial launch of MabTh&& triggered a $5 million milestone payment untlee License ar
Collaboration Agreement between Halozyme and RoebBowing the launch of HerceptfhSC in September 2013, MabThera S
the second novel subcutaneous formulation of oriRoghe's oncology products using our patented Exghtathnology to be launct
in Europe.

* In March 2014, Roche received European marketmgroval for Roche's SC formation of MabThéituximab) for the treatment
patients with common forms of ndtedgkin lymphoma (NHL). This is the second Europegaproval for a novel subcutane
formulation of one of Roche's oncology productaigsiur rHuPH20 technology.

Results of Operations

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2014, 20182012

Product Sales, Net— Product sales increased in 2014 compared to 201%1B.4 million, or 55%, primarily due to a $9.8llipn
increase in product sales of bulk rHuPH20 for Rootiaboration products and a $4.1 million incremsproduct sales dflylenexrecombinan
Hylenexrecombinant product sales increased to $13.2 miitio2014 from $9.0 million in 2013. Product sailesreased in 2013 comparec
2012 by $21.6 million, or 746%, primarily due to4$d million in product sales of bulk rHUPH20 for ¢d@ and Baxter collaboration produ
Herceptin SC and HyQvia. The increase was alsotdwe $6.8 million increase in product salesHyflenexrecombinant. Subsequent to
receipt of the European marketing approval of Rechierceptin SC product in August 2013 and MabTI&€aproduct in March 2014 a
Baxter's HYQVIA product in May 2013, revenue fromllbbrHuPH20 supply for these collaboration produstss recorded as product si
revenue, instead of revenues under collaborativeeagents.

Royalties— Royalty revenue was $9.4 million in 2014 compared$83,000 in 2013. Royalties relate primarily tdesaof Roche
Herceptin SC. The increase was mainly due to theda of Herceptin SC in September 2013. We recegnizalties on sales of 1
collaboration products by the collaborators indarter following the quarter in which the corresging sales occur.
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Revenues Under Collaborative Agreements Revenues under collaborative agreements for thes yaradeddecember 31, 2014, 20
and 2012 were as follows (in thousands):

2014 Change 2013 Change 2012
Upfront payments, license maintenance fees andtaration of deferred
upfront and license fees:
Janssen $ 15,00( nle $ — —  $ —
Roche 3,02¢ 31% 2,30¢ 14% 2,01¢
Pfizer 1,00(¢ (33%) 1,50( (84%) 9,50(
Baxter 765 27% 604 25% 482
Other — (10C%) 2,00( (18%) 2,42¢
19,79: 20<% 6,417 (56%) 14,42¢
Milestone payments:
Roche = — = (100%) 8,00(
Reimbursements for research and development seraiw supply of bul
rHuPH20:
Roche® 6,927 (64%)  19,08¢ 115% 8,897
Baxter® 1,20¢ (70%) 4,05¢ (40%) 6,74z
Pfizer 121 (79%) 58¢ n/e —
Other 40 (78%) 181 (87%) 1,371
8,29:¢ (65%) 23,91t 41% 17,01(
Total revenues under collaborative agreements $ 28,08¢ (7%) $ 30,32 (23%) $39,43¢

(1) Subsequent to the European approvals of Rochetseplim SC product in August 2013 and MabThera Sgelyet in March 201
and Baxter's HYQVIA product in May 2013, revenuenfr supply of bulk rHUPH20 for those products to tudlaborators we
recorded as product sales.

In 2014, we recognized $15.0 million in license fegenue in connection with the Janssen Collabmratn 2012, we recognized $
million in license fee revenue in connection witle Pfizer Collaboration. In 2012, we also recogthi$8.0 million upon achievement of cerl
regulatory milestones under the Roche Collaborafrevenue from reimbursements for research anda@went services and bulk rHuPt
supply decreased in 2014 compared to 2013 maindy tdurevenue from supply of bulk rHUPH20 for Rodudlaboration products bei
recognized as product sales revenue in the cupesidd, as opposed to revenue from reimbursemente$earch and development servict
the same period in 2013. The decrease was als@aodaedecrease in reimbursements for manufactungices to support the launches
Roche and Baxter. Revenue from reimbursementseg@arch and development services and bulk rHuR#lysincreased in 2013 compa
to 2012 due to the increase in reimbursements &orufacturing services to support the launches IghBoResearch and development ser
rendered by us on behalf of our collaborators dr¢ha request of the collaborators; therefore, aheount of future revenues relatec
reimbursable research and development serviceswgpuly of bulk rHUPH20 is uncertain. We expect tioa+reimbursement revenues un
our collaborative agreements to continue to fluituia future periods based on our collaborat@isilities to meet various clinical a
regulatory milestones set forth in such agreemamdsour abilities to obtain new collaborative agneats.

Cost of Product Sales— Cost of product sales increased in 2014 compare2Di@, by $16.5 million, or 264%, primarily due ttee
increased product sales of bulk rHUPH20 for Helioe€. Cost of product sales increased in 2013 evetpto 2012, by $5.2 million, or 471
primarily due to a $2.8 million increase in costppbduct sales related to the increablgtenexrecombinant product sales and $2.3 millio
cost of product sales related to the product s#lesilk rHUPH20 for Herceptin SC.

34




Prior to European marketing approvals of Rochdlalgoration products, Herceptin SC in August 2048 MabThera SC in March 20:
and Baxter's collaboration HYQVIA product in May 13) all costs related to the manufacturing of bikiPH20 for these collaborati
products were charged to research and developmpenses in the periods such costs were incurreerefdre, cost of product sales of t
rHUPH20 for these collaboration products in 2013 weaterially reduced due to the exclusion of thaufecturing costs that were charge
research and development expenses in the periaid@receiving marketing approvals.

Cost of product sales of bulk rHuUPH20 for collaliimma products in 2014 excluded $1.0 million in méwturing costs, of which $C
million and $0.1 million were charged to researcid @evelopment expenses for 2013 and 2012, resphctiCost of product sales of b
rHuPH20 for collaboration products in 2013 excludd.0 million in manufacturing costs, of which @dnillion and $1.0 million wel
charged to research and development expenses &l 2012, respectively. The estimated sellingepdf the zeraost inventory of bul
rHuPH20 for Herceptin SC on hand as of December2813, was approximately $1.3 million. We sold @llthis inventory in 2014. Goit
forward, the cost of product sales is expectede@pproximately 83% of bulk rHUPH20 product salgenue. There was no HyQvia /
inventory on hand as of December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Research and Development Research and development expenses incurred fgetrs ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2@t
as follows (in thousands):

2014 Change 2013 Change 2012
Programs
Product Candidates:
PEGPH20 $ 34,85' 8€% $ 18,74: 50% $ 12,47¢
Ultrafast insulin program 22,42« (9)% 24,72 371% 5,251
Hylenex recombinant 5,31¢ (50)% 10,73« (8)% 11,68:
HTI-501 1,44 (47)% 2,712 38% 1,96z
Enhanze collaboratiort8 6,79¢ (78)% 31,10¢ 19 % 26,15:
rHUPH20 platformi? 5,807 ()% 5,89¢ (29)% 7,70%
Other 3,04 12% 2,73( (43)% 4,81z
Total research and development expenses $ 79,69¢ (18)% $ 96,64 38% $ 70,04

(1) Subsequent to the European approvals of Rochetseplim SC product in August 2013 and MabThera Syt in March 201
and Baxter's HYQVIA product in May 2013, the marutfsing costs of bulk rHuPH20 for these collabamatiproducts we
capitalized as inventory.

(2) Includes research, development and manufacturipgreses related to our proprietary rHUPH20 enzyrhes& expenses were
designated to a specific program at the time tipeeses were incurred.

Research and development expenses relating toE@PHR20 program in 2014 increased by 86%, compar@®13 primarily due to tl
increased clinical trial activities mostly relatitgStudy 109-202. Research and development expeakging taHylenexrecombinant progra
decreased in 2014 by 50% compared to 2013 mairdytduhe completion of the technology transfer aalidation campaign with a secc
manufacturer foHylenexrecombinant at the end of 2013. Research and dawelot expenses relating to our Enhanze collabosiio 201
decreased by 78%, primarily due to a $12.0 millesrease resulting from capitalizing manufactudasts for approved collaboration prodi
in the current period, an $8.1 million decreasetimer outsourced regulatory and manufacturing giets/to support Roche and a $2.5 mil
decrease in preclinical activities to support Bax&ibsequent to the European approvals of Roetexiseptin SC product in August 2013
MabThera SC product in March 2014 and Baxter's HYQYroduct in May 2013, the manufacturing costsbofik rHuPH20 for thes
collaboration products were capitalized as inventdve expect research and development costs tedserin future periods as we conti
with our clinical trial programs and continue tosdp and manufacture our product candidates.
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Research and development expenses increased inc2@i@ared to 2012 by $26.6 million, or 38%. Researnd development expen
relating to our ultrafast insulin and PEGPH20 pemgs increased in 2013 compared to 2012 by $19Jtomilor 371%, and $6.3 million,
50%, respectively, primarily due to the increaskiaal trial activities relating to the CONSISTENTand ongoing Phase 2 PEGPH20 clini
trials. Research and development expenses rel@tiogr Enhanze collaborations increased in 2013pewead to 2012 by $5.0 million, or 19
primarily due to a $9.8 million increase in manuéeing activities to support Roche's preparationtf@ launches of its collaboration proc
and product candidates; offset in part by a $4.6ianidecrease in manufacturing expenses to supBaxter's launch of its collaborati
product.

Selling, General and Administrative— Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expeniseseased in 2014 compared to 201:
$3.6 million, or 11%, due to the increase in congagion costs, including a $2.3 million increasstimck-based compensation.

SG&A expenses increased in 2013 compared to 2017ty million, or 30%, primarily due to a $3.9 nwh increase in compensat
costs, including a $0.9 million increase in stdiglsed compensation, mainly resulting from an irsgeéa headcount and higher bonus accr
and a $1.8 million increase in marketing activifiesHylenexrecombinant product.

Interest Expense— Interest expense included interest expense andtiaat@mn of the debt discount related to the laegn debt acquire
in December 2012. The increase of $2.3 millionM.42 as compared to 2013 was due to the $20.0 milficrease in the principal balanct
December 2013.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity are our existiogsh, cash equivalents and available-for-sale etale securities. As december 3:
2014, we had cash, cash equivalents and marketableitiesof approximately $135.6 million. We will cnue to have significant ca
requirements to support product development a@szifThe amount and timing of cash requirementsdejpend on the progress and succe
our clinical development programs, regulatory ararkat acceptance, and the resources we devoteséargdh and other commercializa
activities.

We believe that our current cash, cash equival@msmarketable securities will be sufficient todusur operations for at least the r
twelve months. We currently anticipate total nettcaurn of approximately $35 million to $45 milliéor the year ending December 31, 2(
depending on the progress of various preclinicdl @dmical programs, the timing of our manufactgrscale up and the achievement of vai
milestones and royalties under our existing coltabee agreements. We expect to fund our operatgmiag forward with existing ca
resources, anticipated revenues from our existotiglzorations and cash that we may raise througirduransactions. We may finance fu
cash needs through any one of the following finagicvehicles: (i) the public offering of securitie§i) new collaborative agreemer
(iii) expansions or revisions to existing collaktbra relationships; (iv) private financings; and(e} other equity or debt financings.

In February 2012, we filed an automatic shelf regtion statement on Form S-3 (Registration No.-B33444) with the SEC, whi
allows us, from time to time, to offer and sell #gudebt securities and warrants to purchase drsuch securities, either individually or
units. We may, in the future, offer and sell equigbt securities and warrants to purchase anyaf securities, either individually or in ur
to raise capital to fund the continued developmanbur product candidates, the commercializationoof products or for other gene
corporate purposes.

Our existing cash, cash equivalents and marketsdaterities may not be adequate to fund our opemtimtii we become cash fli
positive, if ever. We cannot be certain that add#i financing will be available when needed oravhilable, financing will be obtained
favorable terms. If we are unable to raise suffitiinds, we may need to delay, scale back or eétei some or all of our research
development programs, delay the launch of our ppbdandidates, if approved, and/or restructureop@rations. If we raise additional funds
issuing equity securities, substantial dilutionetdsting stockholders could result. If we raiseiiddal funds by incurring debt financing,
terms of the debt may involve significant cash pegtrobligations, the issuance of warrants that oiéignately dilute existing stockholde
when exercised and covenants that may restricability to operate our business.
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Cash Flows
Operating Activities

Net cash used in operations was $47.5 million ib42€ompared to $49.3 millioof net cash used in operations in 2013. The $1ligom
decrease in utilization of cash in operations waiiy due to the receipt of a $15.0 million licerise payment from the Janssen Collabora
offset in part by the timing of the collection afc@unts receivable and the payment of accountshfmya

Net cash used in operations was $49.3 million ib6ompared to $64.3 millioof net cash used in 2012. The $15.0 million deerée
utilization of cash in operations was mainly duedoeipts of the first commercial sale milestongnpants totaling $14.0 million in 2013 frc
Roche and Baxter and timing of the collection afamts receivable and the payment of accounts feyab

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $33.0ianilin 2014 compared to $47.9 million 2013 and $1.4 million in 2012. This decre
in 2014 compared to 2013 was primarily due to a$53llion increase in proceeds from maturitiesrarketable securities; offset in part t
$39.9 million increase in purchases of marketabtristies in 2014. The increase in net cash us@uvesting activities in 2013 as compare
2012 was primarily due to the purchases of marketsdcurities of $48.9 million in 2013.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $51mhillion in 2014 compared to $25.1 milliom 2013 and $112.8 million in 2012. 1
cash provided by financing activities in 2014 cetesil of $107.7 million in net proceeds from theesafl our common stock in February 2!
and $6.8 million in net proceeds from option ex@si Net cash provided by financing activities @12 consisted of net proceeds of $.
million from the amended longerm debt and $5.1 million in net proceeds fromiapexercises. Net cash provided by financing & in
2012 consisted of net proceeds of $81.5 milliomfithe sale of our common stock in February 2012pnaceeds of $29.7 million from long-
term debt, and $1.7 million in net proceeds frortiapexercises.

Long-Term Debt

In December 2013, we entered into an Amended amstaRel Loan and Security Agreement (the Loan Agesghwith Oxford Financ
LLC (Oxford) and Silicon Valley Bank (SVB) (colleetly, the Lenders), amending and restating iritsrety our original loan agreement v
the Lenders, dated December 2012. The Loan Agregpnevided for an additional $20 million principaiount of new term loan, bringing
total term loan balance to $50 million. The procead: to be used for working capital and generainass requirements. The amended
loan facility matures on January 1, 2018. The amniding term loan was $49.9 million as of Decembkr 214, net of unamortized d
discount of $0.1 million.

In January 2015, we and the Lenders entered isecand amendment to the Loan Agreement (the Amemiramending and restati
the loan repayment schedule of the Loan Agreenfdrg.amended and restated loan repayment schedwlelgs for interest only payments
arrears through January 2016, followed by conseewtgual monthly payments of principal and intenestrrears starting in February 2016
continuing through the previously established nmigtwate. Consistent with the original loan, theahcAgreement provides for a 7.55% inte
rate on the term loan and a final interest paynmegpial to 8.5% of the original principal amount,$dr25 million, which is due when the te
loan becomes due or upon the prepayment of thiétyad/e have the option to prepay the outstandiatance of the term loan in full, subj
to a prepayment fee of 1% to 3% depending upon wineprepayment occurs.

The amended and restated term loan facility isreechy substantially all of the assets of the Camymnd Halozyme, Inc., except that
collateral does not include any equity interest$lalozyme, Inc., any intellectual property (inclagiall licensing, collaboration and sim
agreements relating thereto), and certain othefudgd assets. The Loan Agreement contains customggmesentations, warranties
covenants by us, which covenants limit our abiidyconvey, sell, lease, transfer, assign or otterwlispose of certain of our assets; enga
any business other than the businesses currerghged in by us or reasonably related thereto;d@f@i or dissolve; make certain managel
changes; undergo certain change of control evergafe, incur, assume, or be liable with respecettain indebtedness; grant certain liens:
dividends and make certain other restricted payspent
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make certain investments; make payments on anydimaded debt; and enter into transactions with @ngur affiliates outside of the ordin:
course of business or permit our subsidiaries tthdessame. In addition, subject to certain excegtiove are required to maintain with SVB
primary deposit accounts, securities accounts anthwdities, and to do the same for our domestisididry.

The Loan Agreement also contains customary indecatiibn obligations and customary events of defantiuding, among other thing
our failure to fulfill certain of our obligationsnder the Loan Agreement and the occurrence of amahtdverse change which is defined
material adverse change in our business, operatioosndition (financial or otherwise), a mateiiapairment of the prospect of repaymer
any portion of the loan, or a material impairmenttie perfection or priority of lenderlien in the collateral or in the value of suchiateral. Ir
the event of default by us under the Loan AgreentaetLenders would be entitled to exercise theinedies thereunder, including the rigk
accelerate the debt, upon which we may be requaredpay all amounts then outstanding under thenl&greement, which could harm «
financial condition.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2014we did not have any relationships with unconsabd entities or financial partnerships, such asies ofter
referred to as structured finance or special pwemstities, which would have been establishedHerpurpose of facilitating otfalance she
arrangements or other contractually narrow or Balipurposes. In addition, we did not engage inirgadctivities involving norexchang
traded contracts. As such, we are not materialpos&d to any financing, liquidity, market or credttk that could arise if we had engage
these relationships.

Contractual Obligations

As of December 31, 2014 , future minimum payments uhder our contractual obligations are as follwshousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less than More than

Contractual Obligations ¢ Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Long-term debt, including intere'$ $ 62,366 $ 3,77¢ $ 5859: $ — % =
Operating leas€® 6,51¢ 2,13¢ 4,38¢ — —
License payments 25C 25C — — —
Third-party manufacturing obligatioff$ 13,10¢ 13,10« — — —
Purchase obligations 45€ 23C 22¢ — —
Total $ 82698 $ 1949 $ 63,200 $ — 3 —

(1) Does notinclude milestone or contractual payméfiggations contingent upon the achievement of aeirtdlestones or events if t
amount and timing of such obligations are unknowmiricertain. Our idicense agreement is cancelable with written notid@in
90 days. We may be required to pay up to approxin®9.3 million in milestone payments, plus saglties, in the event that
scientific research under these agreements is ssftite

(2) Longterm debt obligations include future monthly insrpayments based on a fixed rate of 7.55% andak fiayment of $4.:
million for our long-term debt due in January 2018.

(3) Includes minimum lease payments related tsdeaof our office and research facilities and @ertaitos under nonancelabl
operating leases.

(4) We have contracted with third-party manufaetsrfor the supply of bulk rHUPH20 and fill/finighi Hylenexrecombinant. Und
these agreements, we are required to purchaséncgui@ntities each year during the terms of theagents. The amounts prese
represent our estimates of the minimum requiredngags under these agreements.

(5) Excludes contractual obligations already recordedwr consolidated balance sheet as current ligisi
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Contractual obligations for purchases of goodseawvises include agreements that are enforceablelemadly binding on us and tt
specify all significant terms, including fixed orimmmum quantities to be purchased; fixed, minimumvariable price provisions; and -
approximate timing of the transaction. For obligati with cancellation provisions, the amounts idelliin the preceding table were limite:
the non-cancelable portion of the agreement temtiseominimum cancellation fee.

For the restricted stock units granted, the nunslbshares issued on the date the restricted stoitk vest is net of the minimum statut
withholding requirements that we pay in cash toappropriate taxing authorities on behalf of ouptyees. The obligation to pay the rele
taxing authority is not included in the precediaglé, as the amount is contingent upon continuegla@mment. In addition, the amount of
obligation is unknown, as it is based in part anrarket price of our common stock when the aweeds

The expected timing of payments of the obligatiabsve is estimated based on current informatiomifig of payments and acti
amounts paid may be different, depending on the tifireceipt of goods or services, or changes teeaupon amounts for some obligations.

Our future capital uses and requirements depenuuarerous forwardeoking factors. These factors may include, butrestlimited to
the following:

» the rate of progress and cost of research and aj@weint activities
» the number and scope of our research activ
» the costs of filing, prosecuting, defending ancbecihg any patent claims and other intellectuapprty rights

* our ability to establish and maintain productadivery and development collaborations, includicejesup manufacturing costs for our
collaborators’ product candidates;

» the amount of royalties from our collaborat

« the amount of product sales fdylenexrecombinan

» the costs of obtaining and validating additiomainufacturers dflylenexrecombinan

» the effect of competing technological and markefettgpments

» the terms and timing of any collaborative, licegsamd other arrangements that we may establis|

» the extent to which we acquire orlioense new products, technologies or busine

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

This discussion and analysis of our financial ctiadiand results of operations are based on ousdtolated financial statements, wr
have been prepared in accordance with U.S. gepearatiepted accounting principles, or U.S. GAAP. Pineparation of our consolidai
financial statements requires us to make estimatdsjudgments that affect the reported amountsséta, liabilities, revenues and expe
and related disclosure of contingent assets amdities. We review our estimates on an ongoingidad#/e base our estimates on histo
experience and on various other assumptions thdielieve to be reasonable under the circumstaticesesults of which form the basis
making judgments about the carrying values of assed liabilities. Actual results may differ frotmese estimates under different assump
or conditions. We believe the following accountipglicies to be critical to the judgments and esteémaused in the preparation of
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

We generate revenues from product sales and codlab® agreements. Payments received under coliiteragreements may inclt
nonrefundable fees at the inception of the agre&snboense fees, milestone payments for specifitewements designated in the collabor:
agreements, reimbursements of research and devehtmarvices and supply of bulk rHUPH20 and/or It®gon sales of products result
from collaborative arrangements.

We recognize revenue in accordance with the au#timé guidance on revenue recognition. Revenugdsgnized when all of tl
following criteria are met: (1) persuasive evidewfean arrangement exists; (2) delivery has occuaeservices have been rendered; (3
seller’s price to the buyer is fixed or determirglaind (4) collectibility is reasonably assured.
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Refer to Note 2 for a further discussion of ouremwe recognition policies for product sales ancemees under our collaborat
agreements and Note 4 for a further discussioruptollaborative agreements.

Share-Based Payments

We use the fair value method to account for shaseth payments in accordance with the authoritajividance for sharbase!
compensation. The fair value of each option awarestimated on the date of grant using a Black-8skderton option pricing model (Black-
Scholes model) that uses assumptions regardingr@eruof complex and subjective variables. Changethése assumptions may leau
variability with respect to the amount of expenserecognize in connection with shdrased payments. Refer to Note 2 for a further disiot
of share-based payments.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses include sadaviebenefits, facilities and other overhead expenseernal clinical trial expens
research related manufacturing services, contractices and other outside expenses. Research amdogment expenses are charge
operations as incurred when these expenditureter&aour research and development efforts and havalternative future usesAfter
receiving marketing approval from the FDA or congide regulatory agencies in foreign countries f@r@duct, costs related to purchase
manufacturing of bulk rHuPH20 for such product eapitalized as inventory. The manufacturing co$tsutk rHuPH20 for the collaboratit
products, Herceptin SC, MabThera SC and HYQVIA,alhivere incurred after the receipt of the Europmanketing approvals are capitali:
as inventory. Refer to Note 2 for a further disous®f research and development expenses.

Due to the uncertainty in obtaining the FDA andeottegulatory approvals, our reliance on third iparand competitive pressures, we
unable to estimate with any certainty the additi@usts we will incur in the continued developmehbur proprietary product candidates
commercialization. However, we expect our reseancti development expenses to increase this yearasomtinue with our clinical tri
programs and continue to develop and manufacturermduct candidates.

Clinical development timelines, likelihood of susseand total costs vary widely. We anticipate tatwill make ongoing determinatic
as to which research and development projects tsupuand how much funding to direct to each projgctin ongoing basis in respons
existing resource levels, the scientific and chhigrogress of each product candidate, and othékahand regulatory developments. We |
on focusing our resources on those proprietary aoidboration product candidates that representnibst valuable economic and strat
opportunities.

Product candidate completion dates and costs vgnjfisantly for each product candidate and ardidlift to estimate. The lengt
process of seeking regulatory approvals and theesiuent compliance with applicable regulations ireqthe expenditure of substan
resources. Any failure by us to obtain, or any géhaobtaining, regulatory approvals could causeresearch and development expenditur
increase and, in turn, have a material adversetedfe our results of operations. We cannot be icertden, or if, our product candidates 1
receive regulatory approval or whether any net @afébw from our other product candidates, or depahent projects, will commence.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note 2Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Pegdidoption of Recent Accounting Pronouncemefuds a discussic
of recent accounting pronouncements and their gfifegny, on us.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarkRisk

As of December 31, 2014our cash equivalents and marketable securitiesisted of investments in money market funds amgarate
debt obligations. These investments were madedardance with our investment policy which specities categories, allocations, and rat
of securities we may consider for investment. Thimary objective of our investment activities isgmeserve principal while at the same t
maximizing the income we receive without signifittgrincreasing risk. Some of the financial instrurteethat we invest in could be subjec
market risk. This means that a change in prevailiigrest rates may cause the value of the instntsn® fluctuate. For example, if
purchase a security that was issued with a fix¢erést rate and the prevailing interest rate lases, the value of that security will probe
decline. As of December 31, 20thdsed on our current investment portfolio, we dohadieve that our results of operations would teemally
impacted by an immediate change of 10% in inteass.

We do not hold or issue derivatives, derivative oodity instruments or other financial instrumeras $peculative trading purpos
Further, we do not believe our cash, cash equitaland marketable securities have significant agklefault or illiquidity. We made th
determination based on discussions with our investradvisors and a review of our holdings. Whilebeéeve our cash, cash equivalents
marketable securities do not contain excessive wskcannot provide absolute assurance that ifutiiee our investments will not be subjec
adverse changes in market value. All of our caslivatents and marketable securities are recordéaranarket value.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary D¢

Our financial statements are annexed to this rdpginning on page F-1.

Iltem 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants orcAgnting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Control and Procedure

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresdtemtesigned to ensure that information requioelget disclosed in our Exchange
reports is recorded, processed, summarized andteelpwithin the timelines specified in the Secestand Exchange Commissisnules an
forms, and that such information is accumulated eochmunicated to our management, including our {Chiecutive Officer and Chi
Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timelgcision regarding required disclosure. In desigrind evaluating the disclosure controls
procedures, management recognized that any comtnolgrocedures, no matter how well designed aedatgd, can only provide reason:
assurance of achieving the desired control objestiand in reaching a reasonable level of assurammeagement necessarily was require
apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefiationship of possible controls and procedures.

Under the supervision and with the participationoof management, including our principal executiféicer and principal financi
officer, we conducted an evaluation of our discitestontrols and procedures, as such term is definddr Rule 134:5(e) promulgated unc
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendeskedan this evaluation, our principal executivdceif and our principal financial offic
concluded that our disclosure controls and proesiurere effective as of the end of the period avéry this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no significant changes in our natecontrol over financial reporting that occurrddring the quarter end
December 31, 2014 that have materially affectedyrereasonably likely to materially affect, oueimal control over financial reporting.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraathtaining adequate internal control over finahogorting. Internal control ov
financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f)daRule 15di5(f) promulgated under the Securities Exchange &cl934 as a proce
designed by, or under the supervision of, our [p@cexecutive andgrincipal financial officers and effected by ourabod of director:
management and other personnel, to provide reakaasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the preparation of finan
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles and atetuthose policies and procedures that:

» Pertain to the maintenance of records that in retsle detail accurately and fairly reflect the s@ctions and dispositions of our ast

* Provide reasonable assurance that transactiome@aled as necessary to permit preparation oféiahstatements in accordance \
generally accepted accounting principles, andriénaipts and expenditures are being made onlydardance with authorizations of «
management and directors; and

* Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventitimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, wusedisposition of our assets t
could have a material effect on our financial steats.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of w@unah control over financial reporting as of Ded®mn31, 2014 In making thi
assessment, our management used the criteriardebjothe Committee of Sponsoring Organizationthef Treadway Commission (COSO
Internal Controlntegrated Framework (2013 framework) (the COS@eid). Based on our assessment, management cedcthdt, as «
December 31, 2014 , our internal control over feiahreporting is effective based on the COSO usite
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The independent registered public accounting finat taudited the consolidated financial statememas are included in this Annt
Report on Form 10-K has issued an audit reporheretfectiveness of our internal control over ficiahreporting as of December 31, 2014
The report appears below.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

We have audited Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.’s in@econtrol over financial reporting as of DecemB&r 2014, based on criter
established in Internal Controllategrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commis
(2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). Halozyme Hpautics, Incs management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control o
financial reporting, and for its assessment of #ffectiveness of internal control over financiapoeting included in the accompany
Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over Fim@nReporting. Our responsibility is to express @sinion on the compang’interna
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the staisdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight lo@Jnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetdodbbtain reasonable assurance about whethectigeinternal control over financ
reporting was maintained in all material respe€ar audit included obtaining an understanding ¢érimal control over financial reportir
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg@feness of internal control based on
assessed risk, and performing such other procedisege considered necessary in the circumstancesbéleve that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is apess designed to provide reasonable assurancelireg¢he reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantfegeinerally accepted accounting princi
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclsdihose policies and procedures that (1) pertathéanaintenance of records tl
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflbet transactions and dispositions of the assetseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accorédamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalssurance regarding prevention or timely deteafounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtyver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaibject to the risk that controls may becomedénaate because of changes in conditior
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. maimé¢al, in all material respects, effective internahtcol over financial reporting as
December 31, 2014 , based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo&dnited States), tl
consolidated balance sheets of Halozyme Therapedtic. as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, andelaed consolidated statement:
operations, comprehensive loss, cash flows, arakistdders’ equity (deficit) for each of the threeays in the period end&kcember 31, 20:
of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. and our report daddedch 2, 2015 expressed an unqualified opinioneibre.

/sErnst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
March 2, 2015
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.
PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govenee

The information required by this item regardingediors is incorporated by reference to our defigitProxy Statement (the Prc
Statement) to be filed with the Securities and Bxge Commission in connection with our 208Bnual Meeting of Stockholders under
heading “Election of Directors.The information required by this item regarding @diamce with Section 16(a) of the Securities ExgeAc
of 1934, as amended, is incorporated by referemtieetinformation under the caption “Compliancehwitection 16(a) of the Exchange Att”
be contained in the Proxy Statement. The informatequired by this item regarding our code of eth& incorporated by reference to
information under the caption “Code of Conduct &ttics” to be contained in the Proxy Statement. The inféionarequired by this ite
regarding our audit committee is incorporated bigrence to the information under the caption “Bobstdetings and CommitteesAudit
Committee”to be contained in the Proxy Statement. The inféionaequired by this item regarding material chesgf any, to the process
which stockholders may recommend nominees to oardof directors is incorporated by reference wittiormation under the captioBodarc
Meetings and Committees—Nominating and Governararar@ittee” to be contained in the Proxy Statement.

Executive Officers

Helen I. TorleyM.B. Ch. B., M.R.C.P. (52), President, Chief ExégeifOfficer and Director. Dr. Torley joined Halozgnn January 20:
as President and Chief Executive Officer, andnsember of Halozyme'Board of Directors. Throughout her career, Drldyohas led sevel
successful product launches, including Kypr@lisProlia® , Sensipa® , and Miacalcin®. Dr. Torley previously served as Executive \
President and Chief Commercial Officer for Onyx iPhaceuticals (Onyx) overseeing the collaboratiothwgiayer on Nexavatand Stivarg®
and the U.S. launch of Kyprolis. She was respoadin the development of Onyx's commercial cap@dslin exdS markets and in particul
in Europe. Prior to Onyx, Dr. Torley spent 14 yearamanagement positions at Amgen Inc., servingsagaeral Manager of both the
Nephrology Business Unit and the U.S. Bone Healdsifess Unit. From 1997 to 2002, she held vari@rsos management positions
Bristol-Myers Squibb, including Regional Vice PresidenCafrdiovascular and Metabolic Sales and Head ofi@aadcular Global Marketin
She began her career at Sandoz/Novartis, wherelshmtely served as Vice President of Medical Affadeveloping and conducting post
marketing clinical studies across all therapeut&as, including oncology. Before joining the inadysDr. Torley was in medical practice &
senior registrar in rheumatology at the Royal firy in Glasgow, Scotland. Dr. Torley received Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor
Surgery degrees (M.B. Ch.B.) from the University@asgow and is a Member of the Royal College ofsiiians (M.R.C.P).

David A. Ramsay50), Vice President, Chief Financial Officer. MRamsay joined Halozyme in 2003 as Chief Financiic& anc
served in that capacity until 2009 when he was eppd Vice President, Corporate Development. Aipending four years in varic
commercial and operational roles, Mr. Ramsay wamisped Chief Financial Officer. Prior to Halozyntee served in various financial ra
including Vice President, Chief Financial Officef loathian Systems. Prior to Lathian, Mr. Ramsay Wase President, Treasurer of I(
Pharmaceuticals, now called Valeant Pharmaceuticéésnational, a multinational, specialty pharmaaal company. Mr. Ramsay join
Valeant from ARCO, where he spent four years inowar financial roles, most recently serving as MgraFinancial Planning & Analysis
the companys Retail Marketing division. Prior to ARCO, he seavas Vice President, Controller for Security Radifsian Bank, a subsidia
of Security Pacific Corporation. He began his cam@® an Auditor at Deloitte & Touche, where he otetd his CPA license. Mr. Rams
received his B.S in Business Administration frora thniversity of California, Berkeley, and his MBA Finance and Strategic Managen
from The Wharton School at the University of Pervayia.
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Athena Countouriotis, M.D(43), Senior Vice President, Chief Medical Offic&r. Countouriotis joined Halozyme in 2015. Fi
February 2012 to January 2015, Dr. Countouriotisest as chief medical officer at Ambit Biosciend@gsrporation which was acquired
Daiichi Sankyo in November 2014. From August 200 Fébruary 2012, Dr. Countouriotis was a clinieglder within the Pfizer Inc. Oncolc
Business Unit. From October 2005 to August 200@,whs director of oncology global clinical reseaattBristolMyers Squibb Company.
publicly-traded global pharmaceutical company, wigsponsibility for leading clinical development 8prycel® in acute lymphoblast
leukemia and chronic myeloid leukemia. Earlier &r leareer, she held the position as associate aladirector at Cell Therapeutics, Inc
biopharmaceutical company. Dr. Countouriotis reeéia B.S. from the University of California, Los deles, and an M.D. at Tufts Univer:
School of Medicine. She received her initial tragin pediatrics at the University of Californiagd. Angeles, and additional training at the |
Hutchinson Cancer Research Center in the Pediagénmsatology/Oncology Program.

Item 11. Executive Compensatio
The information required by this item is incorpedby reference to the information under the capti&xecutive Compensatidnto be
contained in the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aihnagement and Related Stockholder Matt

Other than as set forth below, the information nexflby this item is incorporated by referencette information under the caption “
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners Mahagement and Related Stockholder Mattéosbe contained in the Proxy Statement.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes our compensationplander which our equity securities are authorfpedssuance as of
December 31, 2014 :

Number of
Shares
Number of Remaining
Shares to Be Available for
Issued upon Weighted-Average Future Issuance
Exercise of Exercise Price under Equity
Outstanding of Outstanding Compensation
Options and Options and Plans (Excluding
Restricted Stock Restricted Stock Shares Reflected
Units Units @ in Column (a))
Plan Category (€) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by stockholéers 7,247,45; $9.18 4,681,21.
Equity compensation plans not approved by stocldrsld — — —
7,247,45; $9.18 4,681,21.

(1) Represents stock options and restricted stock unider the Amended and Restated 2011 Stock Pl&8 tbck Plan, 2006 Stc
Plan, 2005 Outside Directors’ Stock Plan, and 28@¢tk Plan.

(2) This amount does not include restricted stock wastthere is no exercise price for restricted stotis

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, aditector Independenc

The information required by this item is incorpactby reference to the information under the capticCertain Relationships ai
Related Transactior” to be contained in the Proxy Statement.
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Servict

The information required by this item is incorp@atoy reference to the information under the capti@rincipal Accounting Fees a
Services to be contained in the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul

€)) Documents filed as part of this report

1. Financial Statements

Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfingn F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2QiL2GkB F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for Eacheliears Ended December 31, 2014, 2013

and 2012 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Lossdoh Bf the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013
and 2012 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for Eacheofriears Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equityfi(iit for Each of the Years Ended December 31,

2014, 2013 and 2012 F-6
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements F-7

2. List of all Financial Statement schedules.

The following financial statement schedule of Hgloe Therapeutics, Inc. is filed as part of this AahReport on Form 18-on pag:
F-33 and should be read in conjunction with thesotidated financial statements of Halozyme Ther&pguinc.

Schedule II: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules are omitted because they ateapplicable or the required information is shownthie Financial Statements
notes thereto.

3. List of Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regfibn S-K. See part (b) below.

(b)  Exhibits.

The exhibits listed in the accompanying “Exhibitiéx” are incorporated herein by reference.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules.See Item 15(a) 2 abo
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Date:

March 2, 2015

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regiithas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.
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Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.,
a Delaware corporation

By: /s/ Helenl. Torley, M.B. Ch.B., M.R.C.P.
Helen I. Torley, M.B. Ch.B., M.R.C.P.
President and Chief Executive Officer




POWER OF ATTORNEY

Know all persons by these presents, that each pevhose signature appears below constitutes angiregpgHelen |. Torley and David
Ramsay, and each of them, as his true and lawtfiodnetys-infact and agents, with full power of substitutiordaesubstitution, for him and
his name, place, and stead, in any and all capactth sign any and all amendments to this AnnealoR, and to file the same, with all exhi
thereto, and other documents in connection thehewitth the Securities and Exchange Commissiomtgrg unto said attorneys-fiact ant
agents, and each of them, full power and authddtylo and perform each and every act and thingisgéquand necessary to be don
connection therewith, as fully to all intents angrginses as he might or could do in person, heralifying and confirming that all se
attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them aor threhis substitute or substituted, may lawfully or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Annual Report has been sigpedow by the following perso

on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacitiesan the dates indicated.

Signature Title
/sl Helen |. Torley, M.B. Ch.B., M.R.C.P. President and Chief Executive Officer
Helen I. Torley, M.B. Ch.B., M.R.C.P. (Principal Executive Officer), Director
/sl David A. Ramsay Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
David A. Ramsay (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/sl Kathryn E. Falberg Chair of the Board of Directors

Kathryn E. Falberg

/s/ Jean-Pierre Bizzari Director
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. as of mbee 31, 2014 and 2013, ¢
the related consolidated statements of operatammaprehensive loss, cash flows, and stockholaersity (deficit) for each of the three year
the period ended December 31, 2014. Our auditsiatduded the financial statement schedule ligtetthe Index at Item 15(a). These finan
statements and schedule are the responsibilithefQompany's management. Our responsibility isxfiress an opinion on these finan
statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstas of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaglo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet dodibtain reasonable assurance about whethdimidngcial statements are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on altasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respedi® tonsolidated financial position
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. at December 31, 2012013, and the consolidated results of its opmmatand its cash flows for each of
three years in the period ended December 31, 20Jebnformity with U.S. generally accepted accoogtprinciples. Also, in our opinion, t
related financial statement schedule, when consitler relation to the basic financial statemenitetiaas a whole, presents fairly in all mate
respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bog@dnited States), Halozyr
Therapeutics, Inc.’s internal control over finahaieporting as of December 31, 2014, based onriaitestablished in Internal Control -
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee onSpiong Organizations of the Treadway Commissidil8framework) and our rep
dated March 2, 2015 expressed an unqualified opitiiereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
March 2, 2015
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except per share data)

December 31,

December 31,

2014 2013
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 61,38¢ $ 27,357
Marketable securities, available-for-sale 74,23¢ 44,14¢
Accounts receivable, net 9,14¢ 9,097
Inventories 6,40¢ 6,17(
Prepaid expenses and other assets 10,14: 8,42°¢
Total current assets 161,32: 95,19¢
Property and equipment, net 2,951 3,42
Prepaid expenses and other assets 1,20t 2,67¢
Restricted cash 50C 50C
Total assets $ 165,97 $ 101,79
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 3,000 % 3,13t
Accrued expenses 13,96: 14,36¢
Deferred revenue, current portion 7,367 7,39¢
Total current liabilities 24,33: 24,90:
Deferred revenue, net of current portion 47,26° 45,74t
Long-term debt, net 49,86( 49,77:
Other long-term liabilities 3,161 1,36¢
Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)
Stockholders’ equity (deficit):
Preferred stock — $0.001 par value; 20,000 sharé®ezed; no shares issued and outstandin — —
Common stock —®&.001 par value; 200,000 shares authorized; 125Ad1114,534 shares isst
and outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013ctgply 12¢ 11t
Additional paid-in capital 491,69: 361,93(
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income (47) 17
Accumulated deficit (450,42 (382,05
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) 41,35: (29,990
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equityefitit) $ 165,97 $ 101,79:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finana#tistents.
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share data)

Revenues:
Product sales, net
Revenues under collaborative agreements
Royalties
Total revenues
Operating expenses:
Cost of product sales
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Other income (expense):
Investment and other income, net
Interest expense
Net loss

Basic and diluted net loss per share

Shares used in computing basic and diluted netdesshare

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
37,82 $ 2443¢ $ 2,881
28,08¢ 30,32; 39,43¢
9,42t 33 —
75,33 54,79¢ 42,32t
22,73: 6,24¢ 1,09¢
79,69¢ 96,64( 70,04
35,94: 32,34’ 24,81
138,37( 135,23 95,95(
(63,03¢) (80,439 (53,621

242 22¢ 73
(5,581) (3,279 —

(68,379 $ (83,479 $ (53,55:)
(0.56) $ 079 $ (0.4
122,69 112,80! 111,07

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsdistents.
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Net loss $ (68,375 $ (83,479 $ (53,557)
Other comprehensive (loss) income:

Unrealized (loss) gain on marketable securities (58) 17 —
Total comprehensive loss $ (68,43) $ (83,461 $ (53,559

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Operating activities:
Net loss $ (68,37H $ (83,479 $ (53,55
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities:
Share-based compensation 15,27« 9,53¢ 8,34¢
Depreciation and amortization 1,762 1,223 1,07¢
Non-cash interest expense 2,02t 15¢€ 9
Amortization of premiums on marketable securities, 1,457 1,11¢€ —
Loss on disposal of equipment 23¢ — 7
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net (52 6,60¢ (13,44)
Inventories (23¢€) (3,499 (2,109
Prepaid expenses and other assets (26%) 1,95¢ (4,427
Restricted cash — (200 5C
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (81€) 7,88¢ (3,269
Deferred revenue 1,49( 9,297 2,96:
Other liabilities (15) (48) 45
Net cash used in operating activities (47,519 (49,339 (64,279
Investing activities:
Purchases of marketable securities (88,889 (48,94 —
Proceeds from maturities of marketable securities 57,30 3,37¢ —
Purchases of property and equipment (1,36¢) (2,297 (1,419
Net cash used in investing activities (32,95) (47,869 (1,419
Financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net 107,71: — 81,47"
Proceeds from issuance of common stock underyempgientive
plans, net 6,78¢ 5,07¢ 1,68(
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net — 19,98! 29,66
Net cash provided by financing activities 114,50: 25,06¢ 112,81t
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent 34,03: (72,149 47,12¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 27,351 99,50: 52,37¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 61,38¢ $ 27,357 % 99,50:
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid $ 346( $ 3,09¢ $ 19
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing arah€ing activities:
Amounts accrued for purchases of property and eogiip $ 15€ $ 10C $ 154
Capitalized property and liability associated watbuild-to-suit lease
arrangement $ — 3 (1,450 $ 1,45(

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tistents.
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DE FICIT)
(in thousands)

Accumulated

Common Stock Additional Other Total
Paid-In Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Equity (Deficit)
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2012 103,98¢ $ 104 $ 25581¢ $ — 3 (245,02) $ 10,90:
Share-based compensation expense — — 8,34¢ — — 8,34¢
Issuance of common stock for cash, net 7,82( 8 81,46¢ — — 81,47
Issuance of common stock pursuant to exercise of
stock options and vesting of restricted stock units
net 52¢€ 1 1,67¢ — — 1,68(
Issuance of restricted stock awards 374 — — — — —
Net loss — — — — (53,559 (53,55
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2012 112,70¢ 11z 347,31! — (298,577 48,85t
Share-based compensation expense — — 9,53¢ — — 9,53¢
Issuance of common stock pursuant to exercis
stock options and vesting of restricted stock ur
net 1,36: 1 5,07¢ — — 5,07¢
Issuance of restricted stock awards 462 1 Q) — — —
Other comprehensive income — — — 17 — 17
Net loss — — — — (83,479 (83,479
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2013 114,53« 11¢ 361,93( 17 (382,05)) (29,990
Share-based compensation expense — — 15,27 — — 15,27
Issuance of common stock for cash, net 8,84¢ 9 107,70« — — 107,71z
Issuance of common stock pursuant to exercise of
stock options and vesting of restricted stock units
net 1,552 1 6,78 — — 6,78¢
Issuance of restricted stock awards 78¢ 1 Q) — — —
Other comprehensive loss — — — (58 — (58
Net loss — — — — (68,375 (68,375
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2014 125727 $ 12¢  § 49169« § (4) $  (45042) 8 41,35:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&sients.
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Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Busines

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. is seeking to transdateunique knowledge of the tumor microenvironntentreate novel therapies that
improve cancer survival. Our research focuses omamienzymes that alter the extracellular matrix &mdor microenvironment. TI
extracellular matrix is a complex matrix of protiand carbohydrates surrounding the cell that gdesvistructural support in tissues
orchestrates many important biological activitiesjuding cell migration, signaling and survivalv€ many years, we have developed un
technology and scientific expertise enabling ugusue this target-rich environment for the develept of therapies.

Our proprietary enzymes can be used to facilitate delivery of injected drugs and fluids, potetfianhancing the efficacy and -
convenience of other drugs or can be used to alteormal tissue structures for clinical benefit. Wé¥e chosen to exploit our technology
expertise in a balanced way to modulate both ris#t spend by: (1) developing our own proprietarydpieis in therapeutic areas w
significant unmet medical needs, with a focus oootwgy, and (2) licensing our technology to biophaceutical companies to collaborati
develop products which combine our technology it collaborators' proprietary compounds.

The majority of our approved product and producididates are based on rHuPH20, our patented recambhuman hyaluronide
enzyme. rHUPH20 temporarily breaks down hyalurawmid (HA), a naturally occurring substance that imajor component of the extracell
matrix in tissues throughout the body such as akith cartilage. We believe this temporary degradatieates an opportunistic window for
improved subcutaneous delivery of injectable bimsgsuch as monoclonal antibodies and other ldrgmpeutic molecules, as well as s
molecules and fluids. We refer to the applicatidnrtduPH20 to facilitate the delivery of other drugs fluids as Enhanzé technology
rHUPH20 is also the active ingredient in our fasinmercially approved produdtylenex® recombinant.

Our proprietary development pipeline consists pritpaf clinical stage product candidates in onapland diabetes. Our lead oncol
program is PEGPH20 (PEGylated recombinant humalutgr@dase), a new molecular entity, under develepinfor the systemic treatment
tumors that accumulate HA. When HA accumulatestumaor, it can cause higher pressure in the tuneolycing blood flow into the tumor a
with that, reduced access of cancer therapiesetdgumor. PEGPH20 works by temporarily degrading $it#rounding some cancer cells
results in reduced pressure and increased bloadtidhe cancer with increased amounts of anticatreatments administered concomita
gaining access to the tumor. We are currently iasei? clinical testing for PEGPH20 in metastaticcp@atic cancer (Study 1@92), and w
have recently initiated a clinical trial in non-dirvell lung cancer (Study 107-201).

Regarding Enhanze, we currently have collaboratisitis F. Hoffmann-La Roche, Ltd. and Hoffmaha-Roche, Inc. (Roche), Bax
Healthcare Corporation (Baxter), Pfizer Inc. (Pfizand Janssen Biotech, Inc. (Janssen), with onduot approved in the U.S. and tt
products approved for marketing in Europe from Wuhie are receiving royalties and several othevaabus stages of development.

Except where specifically noted or the context pilige requires, references to “Halozyme,” “the Camg” “we,” “our,” and “us”in
these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemefids t@ Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. and its whollyned subsidiary, Halozyme, Inc., ¢
Halozyme, Inc.'s wholly owned subsidiary, Halozyradings Ltd.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include teants of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. and our lyhmivned subsidiary, Halozyr
Inc., and Halozyme, Inc.'s wholly owned subsididdglozyme Holdings Ltd. All intercompany accountsldransactions have been eliminated

Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have been reclasstfiecbnform to the current period presentation.c8jpally, we have reclassifie#l0.€
million from accrued expenses to other long-tem@bilities in the consolidated balance sheet at Bées 31, 2013.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesiémtconformity with U.S. generally accepted acdmg principles (“U.S. GAAPY
requires management to make estimates and assmsighiat affect the amounts reported in our conatdd financial statements ¢
accompanying notes. On an ongoing basis, we ewatuat estimates and judgments, which are basedstoribal and anticipated results :
trends and on various other assumptions that mamagebelieves to be reasonable under the circuresamBy their nature, estimates
subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty asnduah, actual results may differ from manageme#fgnates.

Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investtsemeadily convertible to cash, that mature withinety days or less from date
purchase. Our cash equivalents consist of monekanhamds.

Marketable securities are investments with origimaturities of more than ninety days from the date@urchase that are specific:
identified to fund current operations. Marketakdegities are considered available-fae. These investments are classified as curssets
even though the stated maturity date may be onegremore beyond the current balance sheet datehwieflects management's intentiol
use the proceeds from the sale of these investmerfitsd our operations, as necessary. Such al@ifabsale investments are carried at
value with unrealized gains and losses recordedhiar comprehensive gain (loss) and included &parate component of stockholders' ec
(deficit). The cost of marketable securities isuatd for amortization of premiums or accretiordistounts to maturity, and such amortiza
or accretion is included in investment and oth@ome, net in the consolidated statements of opaimtiWe use the specific identificat
method for calculating realized gains and lossesnarketable securities sold. Realized gains anseband declines in value judged t
other-thantemporary on marketable securities, if any, arduphed in investment and other income, net in thesobdated statements
operations.

Restricted Cash

Under the terms of the leases on our facilities,aneerequired to maintain letters of credit as sgcdeposits during the terms of si
leases. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, restrazsh of $0.5 million was pledged as collateraltii@rletters of credit.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The authoritative guidance for fair value measumamestablishes a three tier fair value hierarettyich prioritizes the inputs used
measuring fair value. These tiers include: Levetldfined as observable inputs such as quoted piricastive markets; Level 2, defined
inputs other than quoted prices in active markeds are either directly or indirectly observabledd evel 3, defined as unobservable inpu
which little or no market data exists, thereforguiging an entity to develop its own assumptions.

Our financial instruments include cash equivalemtgailable-forsale marketable securities, accounts receivablepam expense
accounts payable, accrued expenses andteEmg-debt. Fair value estimates of these instrusnard made at a specific point in time, base
relevant market information. These estimates maguigective in nature and involve uncertainties amatters of significant judgment &
therefore cannot be determined with precision. ddreying amount of cash equivalents,
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accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, accoun&blgagnd accrued expenses are generally consitietesl representative of their respec
fair values because of the shtetm nature of those instruments. Further, basetth®morrowing rates currently available for loavith similai
terms, we believe the fair value of long-term degigproximates its carrying value.

Available-forsale marketable securities consist of corporate deburities, commercial paper and certificatesdeposit and we
measured at fair value using Level 2 inputs. Lév&hancial instruments are valued using marketgsion less active markets and proprie
pricing valuation models with observable inputs;liiling interest rates, yield curves, maturity daissue dates, settlement dates, rep
trades, brokedealer quotes, issue spreads, benchmark secuwitiether market related data. We obtain the faineaf Level 2 investmer
from our investment manager, who obtains thesevilires from a thirgharty pricing service. We validate the fair valuwéd evel 2 financie
instruments provided by our investment managerdmyparing these fair values to a third-party prickogirce.

The following table summarizes, byajor security type, our cash equivalents and ntabte securities that are measured at fair valua
recurring basis and are categorized using thevédire hierarchy (in thousands):

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Total estimated Total estimated
Level 1 Level 2 fair value Level 1 Level 2 fair value
Cash equivalents:
Money market funds $ 4268 $ — 3 42,68t $ 5711 $ — 3 5,711
Availab!e_—for-sale marketable
securities:
Corporate debt securities — 74,23¢ 74,23¢ — 35,147 35,141
Commercial paper — — — — 5,99¢ 5,99¢
Certificate of deposit — — — — 3,00( 3,00(
$ 42,68 $ 74,23¢  $ 116,91¢ $ 5711 $ 44,14¢  $ 49,857

There were no transfers between Level 1 and LewltBe fair value hierarchy for the years ended¢ddeber 31, 2014 and 2013Ve
have no instruments that are classified within LL&vas of December 31, 2014 and 2013 .

Concentrations of Credit Risk, Sources of Supplyda8ignificant Customers

We are subject to credit risk from our portfolioaafsh equivalents and marketable securities. Tingestments were made in accord
with our investment policy which specifies the cptees, allocations, and ratings of securities way reonsider for investment. The prim
objective of our investment activities is to pregeprincipal while at the same time maximizing theome we receive without significan
increasing risk. We maintain our cash and cashvetgnt balances with one major commercial bank madketable securities with anot
financial institution. Deposits held with the fir@al institutions exceed the amount of insuranaevigled on such deposits. We are expos:
credit risk in the event of a default by the finahdnstitutions holding our cash, cash equivaleatsl marketable securities to the ex
recorded on the balance sheet.

We are also subject to credit risk from our acceurgceivable related to our product sales and @gmnder our license ¢
collaborative agreements. We have license andbmidive agreements with pharmaceutical compameégruwhich we receive payments
license fees, milestone payments for specific agments designated in the collaborative agreemeaisibursements of research
development services and supply of bulk formulatémHuPH20. In addition, we selylenex® recombinant in the United States to a lim
number of established wholesale distributors in pharmaceutical industry. Credit is extended basedan evaluation of the customer’
financial condition, and collateral is not requirddanagement monitors our exposure to accountsviade by periodically evaluating t
collectibility of the accounts receivable basedaorariety of factors including the length of tinetreceivables are past due, the financial h
of the customer and historical experience. Basa&uh tpe review of these factors, we recorded nonaiwe for doubtful accounts Becembe
31, 2014 and 2013 . Approximately 76% and 8dRthe accounts receivable balance at Decembe2@®4 and 2013, respectively, repres
amounts due from Roche and Pfizer.
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The following table indicates the percentage ddltotvenues in excess of 10% with any single custom

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Roche 57% 64% 45%
Janssen 20% — —
Baxter 3% 10% 17%
Pfizer 1% 4% 22%

We attribute revenues under collaborative agreesntenthe individual countries where the collabarasoheadquartered. We attrib
revenues from product sales to the individual coestto which the productis shipped. Worldwide emwes from external customers
summarized by geographic location in the followiable (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
United States $ 31,397 $ 19,01¢ $ 22,72«
Switzerland 42,79: 35,157 18,91
All other foreign 1,14¢ 622 68€
Total revenues $ 7533: % 54,79¢ $ 42,32t

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 artl,20& had no foreign based operations. As of Déegr81, 2014 and 2013ve ha
$0.4 million and $0.8 million of research equipmenGermany.

We rely on two third-party manufacturers for thepEly of bulk rHUPH20 for use in the manufactureryflenexrecombinant and o
other collaboration products and product candidd&agments due to these suppliers represented 8%%f the accounts payable balanc
December 31, 2014 and 2013 , respectively. We ralsoon a third-party manufacturer for the fill afidish of Hylenexrecombinant produ
under a contract. Payments due to this supplieresemted 6% and 2% of the accounts payable baEnBecember 31, 2014 and 2013
respectively.

Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable is recorded at the invoicedwarhand is nonnterest bearing. Accounts receivable is recordatcoh allowances fc
doubtful accounts, cash discounts for prompt payndistribution fees and chargebacks. We recordedllowance for doubtful accounts
December 31, 2014 and 2013 as the collectibilitgadounts receivable was reasonably assured.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost or markest is determined on a first-in, firstit basis. Inventories are reviewed periodicalk
potential excess, dated or obsolete status. Managieevaluates the carrying value of inventoriesaaegular basis, taking into account ¢
factors as historical and anticipated future sate®pared to quantities on hand, the price we exjgeobtain for products in their respec
markets compared with historical cost and the ramgishelf life of goods on hand.

Prior to receiving marketing approval from the UF8od and Drug Administration (“FDA9r comparable regulatory agencies in for
countries, costs related to purchases of bulk rHiPENd raw materials and the manufacturing of tleelyct candidates are recordec
research and development expense. All direct matwiag costs incurred after receiving marketingrapal are capitalized as inventc
Inventories used in clinical trials are expensethattime the inventories are packaged for theadirtrials.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , inventories isteth of $3.0 million and $2.6 million oflylenex recombinant inventor
respectively, and $3.4 million and $3.5 milliof bulk rHUPH20, respectively, for use in the mamtfire of Roche's collaboration produ
Roche received European marketing approval for éfetic SC® and MabTherd® SC in August 2013 and March 2014, respectively sésh
direct manufacturing costs of bulk rHUPH20 for #hesllaboration products incurred after the recefpthe European marketing approvals
capitalized as inventory.
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Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, lEmsraulated depreciation and amortization. Equipngedepreciated using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives atthyears and leasehold improvements are amortigied the straighine method over tt
estimated useful life of the asset or the leagm,tarhichever is shorter. Leased buildings undeldaa-suit lease arrangements are capita
and included in property and equipment when weararelved in the construction of the structural impements or take construction risk p
to the commencement of the lease. Upon completidheoconstruction under the build-soHt leases, we assess whether those arrange
qualify for sales recognition under the skdaseback accounting guidance. If we continue taheedeemed owner, the facilities would
accounted for as financing leases.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We account for long-lived assets in accordance witthoritative guidance for impairment or dispostilong-lived assets. Lonkied
assets are reviewed for events or changes in cétzumoes, which indicate that their carrying valusymot be recoverable. For the year el
December 31, 2014, we recorded an impairment & §0llion relating to manufacturing equipment. For the yeateel December 31, 20:
there was no impairment of the value of long-liesdets.

Deferred Rent

Rent expense is recorded on a stralgtg-basis over the initial term of the lease. Tifference between rent expense accruec
amounts paid under lease agreements is recordiafersed rent in the accompanying consolidatedncalaheets.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the ehamgquity during the period from transactions atfier events and circumstan
from non-owner sources.

Revenue Recognition

We generate revenues from product sales and collib® agreements. Payments received under coliiberagreements may inclt
nonrefundable fees at the inception of the agre&snboense fees, milestone payments for specifitewements designated in the collabor:
agreements, reimbursements of research and devehdmarvices and supply of bulk rHUPH20, and/oaligs on sales of products resul
from collaborative arrangements.

We recognize revenues in accordance with the atatige guidance for revenue recognition. We reéogmrevenue when all of t
following criteria are met: (1) persuasive evideméean arrangement exists; (2) delivery has occuaeservices have been rendered; (3
seller’s price to the buyer is fixed or determirglaind (4) collectibility is reasonably assured.

Product Sales, Net
Hylenex Recombinant

In December 2011, we reintroduckglenexrecombinant to the market. We sHllenexrecombinant in the U.S. to wholesale pharmacei
distributors, who sell the product to hospitals attier enddser customers. Sales to wholesalers provide flinge@rices that are fixed on t
date of sale, although we offer discounts to cerggtioup purchasing organizations (“GPOdipspitals and government programs.
wholesalers take the title to the product, bearrigle of loss of ownership and have economic sulzgtdo the inventory. Further, we have
significant obligations for future performance &ngrate pull-through sales.

Prior to December 31, 2018lylenexrecombinant had a limited sales history, and wddcoot reliably estimate expected returns
chargebacks of the product at the time the produast sold to the wholesalers. Accordingly, we deférthe recognition of revenue on sale
Hylenexrecombinant to wholesalers, and instead, recognmizeghue at the time when evidence existed to warthiat pullthrough sales fro
wholesalers to the hospitals or other ersg+ customers had occurred or the right of retertonger existed, whichever occurred earlier.h&
time product sales revenue was recognized, we dedallowances for product returns and chargebiaaged on our best estimates at the
Shipments of product that were not recognized asmge were treated as deferred revenue.

F-11




At December 31, 2013, we had developed sufficigstotical experience and data to reasonably estiffitditire returns and chargeback
Hylenexrecombinant. As a result, effective December 31,32@ve began recognizirtdylenexrecombinant product sales and related cc
product sales at the time title transfers to thelesalers.

Upon recognition of revenue from product salesiglenexrecombinant, we record certain sales reserves llowdaaces as a reduction
gross revenue. These reserves and allowances énclud

e Product Returns. We allow the wholesalers to return product tsadamaged or received in error. In addition, weeptcinuse
product to be returned beginning six months prioahd ending twelve montHsllowing product expiration. Our estimates
expected returns of expired products are basedapitinon an ongoing analysis of historical retuattprns.

» Distribution Fees. The distribution fees, based on contractualledeined rates, arise from contractual agreementsave witt
certain wholesalers for distribution services tipegvide with respect télylenexrecombinant. These fees are generally a
percentage of the price of the product purchasetidoyholesalers.

 Prompt Payment Discoun. We offer cash discounts to certain wholesaleraragncentive to meet certain payment terms
estimate prompt payment discounts based on con@datérms, historical utilization rates, as avdiéakand our expectatio
regarding future utilization rates.

e Other Discounts and FeesWe provide discounts to entser members of certain GPOs under collective @msioly contrac
between us and the GPOs. We also provide discaordsrtain hospitals, who are members of the GRik, which we do nc
have contracts. The engser members purchase products from the wholesales contracted discounted price, and
wholesalers then charge back to us the differeeteden the current retail price and the price tidusers paid for the produ
We also incur GPO administrative service fees fasé transactions. In addition, we provide predatexd discounts und
certain government programs. Our estimate for tlebsggebacks and fees take into consideration il terms, historic
utilization rates, as available, and our expecatatiegarding future utilization rates.

Allowances for product returns and chargebacksbased on amounts owed or to be claimed on theetkkdles. We believe that
estimated product returns fétylenexrecombinant requires a high degree of judgmentiaramiibject to change based on our experienc
certain quantitative and qualitative factors. Imerto develop a methodology to reliably estimatture returns and provide a basis
recognizing revenue on sales to wholesale distilsutve analyzed many factors, including, withamitthtion: (1) actuaHylenexrecombinar
product return history, taking into account prodexpiration dating at the time of shipment, (2)order activities of the wholesalers as we
their customers and (3) levels of inventory atwhwlesale channel. We have monitored actual rdiigtory on an individual product lot ba
since product launch. We considered the datingroflycct at the time of shipment into the distribatichannel and changes in the estim
levels of inventory within the distribution channelestimate our exposure for returned product.cdfesidered historical chargebacks act
and current contract prices to estimate our exgofar returned product. Based on such data, wevmhlve have the information neede
reasonably estimate product returns and chargebacks

We recognize product sales allowances as a reduetiproduct sales in the same period the relaednue is recognized. Because o
shelf life of Hylenexrecombinant and our lengthy return period, therg bra significant period of time between whengheduct is shippe
and when we issue credits on returned productctifad results differ from our estimates, we will leguired to make adjustments to tt
allowances in the future, which could have an ¢ftecproduct sales revenue and earnings in thegefiadjustments.

Bulk rHUPH20

Subsequent to receiving marketing approval fromRB& or comparable regulatory agencies in foreigantries, sales of bulk rHuPH
for use in collaboration commercial products amgnized as product sales when the materials hatealithe specifications required for
customer's acceptance and title and risk of los® heansferred to the customer. Following the matseof European marketing approval:
Roche's Herceptin SC product in August 2013 andTMaba SC product in March 2014 and Baxter's HYQV [#oduct in May 2013, reven
from the sales of bulk rHUPH20 for these collaboraproducts are recognized as product sales.Heoyears ended December 31, 2014
2013, we recognized $23.5 million and $13.7 milliorproduct sales of bulk rHUPH20 for Roche's callabion products, respectively. For
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, we re@utzero and $1.1 milliorin product sales of bulk rHUPH20 for Baxter's dotietior
product, respectively.
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Revenues under Collaborative Agreements

We have license and collaboration agreements uwtiash the collaborators obtained worldwide rights the use of our propriete
rHUPH20 enzyme in the development and commerciaizaf the collaboratorshiologic compounds. The collaborative agreementgaic
multiple elements including nonrefundable paymaeattshe inception of the arrangement, license fegslusivity fees, payments based
achievement of specified milestones designatechéncollaborative agreements, annual maintenance feembursements of research
development services, payments for supply of budkiFH20 for the collaborator and/or royalties onesabf products resulting frc
collaborative agreements. We analyze each elenfepnuiocollaborative agreements and consider a tyaé¢ factors in determining tl
appropriate method of revenue recognition of edement.

In order to account for the multipllement arrangements, we identify the deliverainielsided within the agreement and evaluate w
deliverables represent units of accounting. Analyzhe arrangement to identify deliverables requihe use of judgment, and each delivel
may be an obligation to deliver services, a righticense to use an asset, or another performahtgation. The deliverables under
collaborative agreements include (i) the licenseunrHuPH20 technology, (ii) at the collaborasorequest, research and development sel
which are reimbursed at contractually determingédstaand (iii) at the collaboratsrrequest, supply of bulk rHUPH20 which is reimledra
our cost plus a margin. A delivered item is congdea separate unit of accounting when the delivéean has value to the collaborator ¢
standalone basis based on the consideration ofreglevant facts and circumstances for each arrangenfe@actors considered in t
determination include the research capabilitiesth&f collaborator and the availability of researctpeatise in this field in the gene
marketplace.

Arrangement consideration is allocated at the iticemf the agreement to all identified units o€acnting based on their relative sel
price. The relative selling price for each delil#eais determined using vendor specific objectivelence (“WSOE") of selling price or third-
party evidence of selling price if VSOE does nasexf neither VSOE nor thirgharty evidence of selling price exists, we uselmst estima
of the selling price for the deliverable. The amiooinallocable arrangement consideration is limi@@mounts that are not contingent upor
delivery of additional items or meeting other sfiedi performance conditions. The consideration ikewkis allocated among the separate |
of accounting, and the applicable revenue recagnitriteria are applied to each of the separatts.u@hanges in the allocation of the s
price between delivered and undelivered elementsiro@act revenue recognition but do not changettks revenue recognized under
agreement.

Nonrefundable upfront license fee payments aregrized upon delivery of the license if facts andtwinstances dictate that the lice
has standalone value from the undelivered itemschwhenerally include research and developmenticesvand the manufacture of b
rHUPH20, the relative selling price allocation leétlicense is equal to or exceeds the upfront diedae, persuasive evidence of an arrange
exists, our price to the collaborator is fixed etetminable and collectibility is reasonably asduképfront license fee payments are deferr
facts and circumstances dictate that the licenss dot have standalone value. The determinatidimeoiength of the period over which to dt
revenue is subject to judgment and estimation anchave an impact on the amount of revenue recediiiza given period.

The terms of our collaborative agreements provieniilestone payments upon achievement of certaweldpment and regulatc
events and/or specified sales volumes of comméethlproducts by the collaborator. We account fdestone payments in accordance \
the provisions of ASU No. 2010-1Revenue Recognition - Milestone MethoWe recognize consideration that is contingentnup
achievement of a milestone in its entirety as rereeim the period in which the milestone is achiewaly if the milestone is substantive in
entirety. A milestone is considered substantivemiheneets all of the following criteria:

1. The consideration is commensurate with eitherentitys performance to achieve the milestone or the exément of the value
the delivered item(s) as a result of a specificonte resulting from the entity’s performance toiech the milestone,

2. The consideration relates solely to past perforraaant
3. The consideration is reasonable relative to athefdeliverables and payment terms within the aearent

A milestone is defined as an event (i) that cary drd achieved based in whole or in part on eitherdntitys performance or on t
occurrence of a specific outcome resulting from #mity’s performance, (ii) for which there is substantiuecertainty at the date f
arrangement is entered into that the event wik&igeved and (iii) that would result in additiopalyments being due to the vendor.
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Reimbursements of research and development semiieagcognized as revenue during the period ictwthie services are performe
long as there is persuasive evidence of an arraagerthe fee is fixed or determinable and collecid the related receivable is reason
assured. Revenue from the manufacture of bulk rHA@PI4 recognized when the materials have met atifipations required for tl
collaborator's acceptance and title and risk of loave transferred to the collaborator. We do meictly control when any collaborator v
request research and development services or supphplk rHuPH20; therefore, we cannot predict whea will recognize revenues
connection with research and development servicdsapply of bulk rHUPH20.

Since we receive royalty reports 60 days after tguand, royalty revenue from sales of collaborapooducts by our collaborators v
be recognized in the quarter following the quairierhich the corresponding sales occurred.

The collaborative agreements typically providedbBaborators the right to terminate such agreerimewhole or on a product-byroduc
or target-by-target basis at any time upon 30 to&@s prior written notice to us. There are no penénce, cancellation, termination or ref
provisions in any of our collaborative agreemehg tontain material financial consequences to us.

Refer to Note 4;Collaborative Agreements, for further discussion on our collaborative agaments.

Cost of Product Sales

Cost of product sales consists primarily of rawemats, thirdparty manufacturing costs, fill and finish costgidht costs, internal co:
and manufacturing overhead associated with theuystamh of Hylenexrecombinant and bulk rHUPH20 for use in approvelfaboratior
products. Cost of product sales also consistsefitite-down of excess, dated and obsolete invesg@nd the writeff of any inventories th
do not meet certain product specifications, if any.

Prior to European marketing approvals of Rochdlalgoration products Herceptin SC in August 2018 dabThera SC in March 20:
and Baxter's collaboration product HYQVIA in May 13) all costs related to the manufacturing of bikiPH20 for these collaborati
products were charged to research and developmpenses in the periods such costs were incurreekefdre, cost of product sales of tr
bulk rHUPH20 for the year ended December 31, 2048 mvaterially reduced due to the exclusion of th@ufacturing costs that were char
to research and development expenses in the pgniamdo receiving marketing approvals.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, cost of ptahles of bulk rHUPH20 excluded $1.0 millisnmanufacturing costs, of whi
$0.9 million and $0.1 million were charged to resbaand development expenses in the years endezhiber 31, 201and 2012, respective
For the year ended December 31, 2013, cost of ptaghles of bulk rHUPH20 excluded $10.0 millionmianufacturing costs, of whic$9.(
million and $1.0 millionwere charged to research and development expamsles years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 cteshe. As
of December 31, 2013, bulk rHUPH20 inventory folladmration products which were sold in 2014 exeldicb1.0 millionin manufacturin
costs. There was no bulk rHUPH20 for HyQvia on handf December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses include satamiebenefits, facilities and other overhead expenseernal clinical trial expens
research related manufacturing services, contmctices and other outside expenses. Research amdlogment expenses are charge
operations as incurred when these expenditureterédaour research and development efforts and Inavalternative future usesAfter
receiving approval from the FDA or comparable ragaly agencies in foreign countries for a prodwtsts related to purchases
manufacturing of bulk rHUPH20 for product are caled as inventory. The manufacturing costs oklduPH20 for the collaboratic
products, Herceptin SC, MabThera SC and HYQVIA,umed after the receipt of the European marketipgravals are capitalized
inventory.

In accordance with certain research and developagmrtements, we are obligated to make certain mipfrayments upon execution
the agreement. Advance payments, including nondzfiole amounts, for goods or services that will eduor rendered for future research
development activities are deferred and capitalifeth amounts will be recognized as an expensbeasclated goods are delivered or
related services are performed or such time whedaugot expect the goods to be delivered or sesuwiwde performed.

Milestone payments that we make in connection witlicensed technology for a particular research am@bbpment project that have
alternative future uses (in other research and Idpreent projects or otherwise) and therefore nassp economic values are expense
research and development costs at the time the emstincurred. We have no linensed technologies that have alternative futiges il
research and development projects or otherwise.
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Clinical Trial Expenses

Payments in connection with our clinical trials afeen made under contracts with multiple contrasearch organizations that cont
and manage clinical trials on our behalf. The fiiahterms of these agreements are subject to ia¢igot and vary from contract to contr
and may result in uneven payment flows. Genertiligse agreements set forth the scope of work fretfermed at a fixed fee, unit price or
a time and materials basis. Payments under thegeacts depend on factors such as the successhllreant or treatment of patients or
completion of other clinical trial milestones.

Expenses related to clinical trials are accruecedbasn our estimates and/or representations fromiceeproviders regarding wc
performed, including actual level of patient enra@ht, completion of patient studies and progresthefclinical trials. Other incidental co
related to patient enrollment or treatment arewstmwhen reasonably certain. If the contracted amscare modified (for instance, as a rest
changes in the clinical trial protocol or scopenairk to be performed), we modify our accruals adoagly on a prospective basis. Revision
the scope of a contract are charged to expensheirpériod in which the facts that give rise to tkegision become reasonably cert
Historically, we have had no material changes inicdl trial expense accruals that had a materngact on our consolidated results
operations or financial position.

Share-Based Compensation

We record compensation expense associated witlk stptions and other shabmsed awards in accordance with the authoril
guidance for stockased compensation. The cost of employee sengcesved in exchange for an award of an equity imsént is measured
the grant date, based on the estimated fair vdltizecaward, and is recognized as expense on igtgtime basis, net of estimated forfeitul
over the requisite service period of the award.r&based compensation expense recognized during thedpge based on the value of
portion of share-based payment awards that is atély expected to vest during the period. Shm®ed compensation expense for an a
with a performance condition is recognized whenatigievement of such performance condition is d@texd to be probable. If the outcom
such performance condition is not determined tophEbable or is not met, no compensation expensedegnized and any previou
recognized compensation expense is reversed. As-shaed compensation expense recognized is basedlandsaultimately expected to ve
it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. Jiidance requires forfeitures to be estimated atithe of grant and revised, if necessar
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differnfrahose estimates. Pre-vesting forfeitures weremagtd to be approximately 1096r
employees for the years ended December 31, 2018, &d 2012 based on our historical experiencthyears then ended.

Income Taxes

We provide for income taxes using the liability hmed. Under this method, deferred income tax assetdiabilities are determined ba
on the differences between the financial statersarying amounts of existing assets and liabilist®ach year end and their respective
bases and are measured using enacted tax ratéfsdanfer the year in which the differences are exted to affect taxable income. Deferrec
assets and other tax benefits are recorded whemibre likely than not that the position will bestained upon audit. Valuation allowan
have been established to reduce our net deferredsiets to zerpas we believe that it is more likely than nottteach assets will not
realized.

Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per common share is computed byidiyiloss for the period by the weighted averagmlmer of common shar
outstanding during the period, without consideratior common stock equivalents. Stock options, stec restricted stock awards (“RSAs”
and unvested restricted stock units (“RSUaf¢ considered common stock equivalents and ane inoluded in the calculation of dilut
earnings per common share when their effect igidduBecause of our net loss, outstanding stodlong, outstanding RSUs and unve:
RSAs totaling approximately 8,405,903 , 8,070,14d &,444,333vere excluded from the calculation of diluted retsl per common share
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2@Epectively, because their effect was dliititive. Since the performance conditions
performance restricted stock units (“PRSU&8re not satisfied at December 31, 2014, such giesuare excluded from potentially dilut
securities.
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Segment Information

We operate our business in osegment, which includes all activities relatedhe tesearch, development and commercializatiorut
proprietary enzymes. This segment also includegmaees and expenses related to (i) research andogment and APl manufacturi
activities conducted under our collaborative agrets with third parties and (ii) product salestyflenexrecombinant. The chief operat
decision-maker reviews the operating results oaggregate basis and manages the operations afeierating segment.

Pending Adoption of Recent Accounting Pronouncemgnt

In August 2014, the Financial Accounting Standddard (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update RD14-15,Presentation ¢
Financial Statement— Going Conceri{*ASU 2014-15"). The provisions of ASU 201¥ provide that in connection with preparing finizt
statements for each annual and interim reportingoge an entity's management should evaluate whethere are conditions or evel
considered in the aggregate, that raise substalttidit about the entity's ability to continue agpang concern within one year after the date
the financial statements are issued (or within pear after the date that the financial statemergsagailable to be issued when applica
ASU 2014415 is effective for the annual reporting period iegdafter December 15, 2016, and for annual aretimt periods thereafter. Ea
adoption is permitted. The adoption of ASU 2aBlwill not have a material impact on our consdkdiafinancial position or results
operations.

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standargsldie No. 2014-0Revenue from Contracts with Custom@iSU 2014-09).
ASU 2014-09 will eliminate transaction-specific andustryspecific revenue recognition guidance under cur@hfP and replace it with
principle-based approach for determining revengegeition. ASU 20149 will require that companies recognize revenusetan the vall
of transferred goods or services as they occuhéncbntract. ASU 20189 also will require additional disclosure abouw thature, amout
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flovisiray from customer contracts, including signifitardgments and changes in judgments
assets recognized from costs incurred to obtaifulfil a contract. ASU 20149 is effective for annual reporting periods begignafte
December 15, 2016. Early application is not peedittEntities can transition to the standard eitleéospectively or as a cumulatieéect
adjustment as of the date of adoption. We haveyebselected a transition method and we are cuyremtluating the effect that the upde
standard will have on our consolidated financiateshents and related disclosures.

In July 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Stand&iddate No. 2013-1lincome Taxes (Topic 740), Presentation of an Urgeze(
Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss CarryforwadSimilar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforwardigts (“ASU 2013-11"). The
provisions of ASU 20131 require entities to present unrecognized taetitsras a decrease in a net operating loss, sitakaoss or tax crec
carryforward if certain criteria are met. The detgration of whether a deferred tax asset is avilabbased on the unrecognized tax be
and the deferred tax asset that exists at the tiegafate and presumes disallowance of the taxiposat the reporting date. The guidance
eliminate the diversity in practice in the preséintaof unrecognized tax benefits but will not altee way in which entities assess deferre:
assets for realizability. The amendments are é¥kedor fiscal years, and interim periods withirosle fiscal years, beginning after Decern
15, 2014. The amendments should be applied pragpicto unrecognized tax benefits that exist & #ffective date. Early adoption
permitted. The adoption of ASU 2013-11 will not baavmaterial impact on our consolidated finanoasition or results of operations.
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3. Marketable Securities

Available-for-sale marketable securities consistkethe following (in thousands):

December 31, 2014

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Estimated Fair
Description Amortized Cost Gains Losses Value
Corporate debt securities $ 74,278 $ 2 % 43) $ 74,23

December 31, 2013

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Estimated Fair
Description Amortized Cost Gains Losses Value
Corporate debt securities $ 3513( $ 2C % 3 $ 35,14%
Commercial paper 5,99¢ — — 5,99¢
Certificate of deposit 3,00( — — 3,00(
$ 44,12¢  $ 2C $ 3 $ 44,14¢

As of December 31, 2014 , all of our available-$sate marketable securities were scheduled to matithén the next twelve montt
There were $57.3 million of available-for-sale s@ges that matured during the year ended Decer@beP014 . There were rrealized gain
or losses for the year ended December 31, 201£2ah8. As of December 31, 2014 , we had 14 avaH#islsale marketable securities i
gross unrealized loss position, all of which haérbé such position for less than twelve monthsseBaon our review of these market:
securities, we believe we had no other-than-tenmrgonapairments on these securities as of DecembgP@l4because we do not intend to
these securities and it is not more likely thanthat we will be required to sell these securiiefore the recovery of their amortized cost basi:

4. Collaborative Agreement:
Roche Collaboration

In December 2006, we and Roche entered into adecand collaborative agreement under which Rockeirea a worldwide, exclusi
license to develop and commercialize product coatins of our patented rHUPH20 enzyme and up ttethiRoche target compounds (
“Roche Collaboration”). As of December 31, 2014ocRe had elected a total of fiexclusive targets and retains the option to develu
commercialize rHUPH20 with thresdditional targets, provided that Roche continwepay annual maintenance fees to us. Roche rec
European marketing approval in August 2013 forcitlaboration product, Herceptin SC, for the treatinof patients with HERPeositive
breast cancer and launched Herceptin SC in thepgaroUnion (“EU”) in September 2013.

In March 2014, Roche received European marketimgaal for its collaboration product, MabThera 3@, the treatment of patiet
with common forms of non-Hodgkin lymphoma (“NHLh June 2014, Roche launched MabThera SC in thevkich triggered &5.0 millior
sales-based payment to us for the achievemengdirtt commercial sale pursuant to the terms efRloche Collaboration.

Roche assumes all development, manufacturingcelinfegulatory, sales and marketing costs undeiRihche Collaboration, while
are responsible for the supply of bulk rHUPH20. &vie entitled to receive reimbursements for progdiesearch and development services
bulk rHUPH20 to Roche at its request.
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Under the terms of the Roche Collaboration, Rochespus a royalty on each product commercializecutite agreement consisting «
mid-single digit percent of the net sales of such pcbdUnless terminated earlier in accordance wishtérms, the Roche Collaborat
continues in effect until the expiration of Rocheldigation to pay royalties. Roche has the obiayato pay royalties with respect to e
product in each country, during the period equah®longer of: (a) the duration of any valid claaour patents covering rHuPH20 or of
specified patents developed under the collaboratieich valid claim covers the product in such coymr (b) tenyears following the date
the first commercial sale of such product in suahntry.

As of December 31, 2014 , we have received $78I8omi, excluding royalties and reimbursements for prmgdresearch ar
development services and supplying bulk rHuPH26mfrRoche. The amounts received consisted of theO$2@lion upfront license fe
payment for the application of rHUPH20 to the alithree Roche exclusive targets, $22.3 milliowamnection with Roche's election wio
additional exclusive targets and annual licensentenance fees for the right to designate the renmitargets as exclusive targe$i,3.(
million in clinical development milestone paymer#8,0 million in regulatory milestone payments &id.0 million in sale®ased paymen
Due to our continuing involvement obligations (Batample, support activities associated with rHuPHB8/enues from the upfront paymi
exclusive designation fees, annual license maimenéees and saldmsed payment were deferred and are being amoudizsdthe remainir
term of the Roche Collaboration.

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an?2l 2@& recognized approximately $8.1 million , $mélion , and $2.0 million,
respectively, of Roche deferred revenues as rewemuder collaborative agreements. In additionftieryears ended December 31, 2014,
and 2012, we recognized approximately $2.0 milli&1.3 million and $1.4 million respectively, of deferred bulk rHUPH20 sales nexea
product sales revenue. Total Roche deferred rewewas approximately $42.7 million and $41.6 millias of December 31, 205hd 201:
respectively. For the year ended December 31, 20&2ecognized $8.0 millioas revenues under collaborative agreements in dacoe witl
the Milestone Method related to the achievementesfain regulatory milestones pursuant to the tesinthe Roche Collaboration. Nsuct
revenues were recognized for the years ended Desre3ibh 2014 and 2013.

Gammagard Collaboration

In September 2007, we entered into a license atidbooative agreement with Baxter, under which Baxbbtained a worldwid
exclusive license to develop and commercialize HY®Va combination of Baxter's current product GAMIBARD LIQUID ™ and ou
patented rHUPH20 enzyme (the “Baxter Collaborajiom’ May 2013, the European Commission granted Baxtaketing authorization in
EU Member States for the use of HYQVIA (solutiom smbcutaneous use), a combination of GAMMAGARD UIQ and rHuPH20 in du
vial units, as replacement therapy for adult pasievith primary and secondary immunodeficiencieaxtBr launched HYQVIA in the first E
country in July 2013 and in additional EU countiileshe second half of 2013 and in 2014. The FDAraped HYQVIA for treatment of ad
patients with primary immunodeficiency in SeptemBéi4. In October 2014, Baxter announced the la@mchfirst shipments of HYQVIA
the U.S.

The Baxter Collaboration is applicable to bothdad formulation combinations. Baxter assumes aleigment, manufacturing, clinic
regulatory, sales and marketing costs under thaeBaXollaboration, while we are responsible for supply of bulk rHUPH20. We perfo
research and development activities and supply HdilPH20 at the request of Baxter, and are reingauis/ Baxter under the terms of
Baxter Collaboration. In addition, Baxter has derfaroduct development and commercialization obitges in major markets identified in 1
Baxter Collaboration.

Unless terminated earlier in accordance with itsng the Baxter Collaboration continues in effentiluthe expiration of Baxtel
obligation to pay royalties. Baxter has the obligato pay royalties, with respect to each proda@ach country, during the period equal tc
longer of: (a) the duration of any valid claim afrgpatents covering rHUPH20 or other specified miateleveloped under the collabora
which valid claim covers the product in such cowrdr (b) tenyears following the date of the first commerciadlesaf such product in su
country.
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As of December 31, 2014 , we have received $17l0omiunder the Gammagard Collaboration, excluding rigsltThe amoun
received consisted of the $10.0 million upfronetise fee payment, a $3.0 million regulatory milestpayment and a $4.0 million salesse!
payment. Baxter pays us a royalty on HYQVIA cornisgbf a midsingle digit percent of the net sales of such pchdDue to our continuir
involvement obligations (for example, support atieg associated with rHuPH20 enzyme), the upfeord saledased payments were defel
and are being recognized over the term of the Ba3td#laboration. We recognized revenue from theanifand salebased payments in t
amount of approximately $0.8 million , $0.6 milli@nd $0.5 million for the years ended December281l4, 2013 and 2012respectively
Deferred revenue relating to the upfront and shised payments under the Gammagard Collaboratisrapgroximately $10.9 millioanc
$10.5 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013peetively.

Other Collaborations

In December 2014, we and Janssen entered intdabondtion and license agreement, under which &arisas the worldwide license
develop and commercialize products combining otergad rHUPH20 enzyme with Janssen proprietanpgio$ directed at up to fiviarget:
(the “Janssen Collaboration”). Targets may be setkon an exclusive or na@xclusive basis. As of December 31, 2014, we hateived
$15.0 million payment for the license fee of onedfled exclusive target and the right to electrfadditional targets ithe future upo
payment of additional fees. Unless terminated eaiti accordance with its terms, the Janssen Guitdion continues in effect until the late
(i) expiration of the last to expire of the validainns of our patents covering rHuUPH20 or other H@et patents developed under
collaboration which valid claim covers a productveleped under the collaboration, and (ii) expimataf the last to expire royalty term fo
product developed under the collaboration. The ltgyierm of a product developed under the Janssalfalidration, with respect to e¢
country, consists of the period equal to the lorafer(a) the duration of any valid claim of our @ats covering rHUPH20 or other speci
patents developed under the collaboration whicidwahim covers the product in such country or téy) years following the date of the fi
commercial sale of such product in such countrgssen may terminate the agreement prior to expirdtir any reason in its entirety or o
target-by-target basis upon 90 day®r written notice to us. Upon any such termioafithe license granted to Janssen (in total dr veispec
to the terminated target, as applicable) will tevaté, provided, however, that in the event of extjmn of the agreement, the licenses gre
will become perpetual, non-exclusive and fully pajd

In December 2012, we and Pfizer entered into aaboHation and license agreement, under which Pfiasrthe worldwide license
develop and commercialize products combining otengad rHUPH20 enzyme with Pfizer proprietary biids directed at up to stargets (th
“Pfizer Collaboration”). Targets may be selectedamnexclusive or non-exclusive basis. As of Decarie 2014 , we have receivédl1.(
million in upfront and license fee payments for tioenses to four specified exclusive targets amal ddditional targets which Pfizer has
right to elect in the future upon payment of addfitil fees. Unless terminated earlier in accordamitie its terms, the Pfizer Collaborati
continues in effect until the later of (i) expiti of the last to expire of the valid claims of qatents covering rHUPH20 or other spec
patents developed under the collaboration whicldva@him covers a product developed under the boHation, and (ii) expiration of the last
expire royalty term for a product developed undwer ¢ollaboration. The royalty term of a product@leped under the Pfizer Collaborati
with respect to each country, consists of the jgeeigual to the longer of: (a) the duration of aayid/claim of our patents covering rHUPH2(
other specified patents developed under the calldiom which valid claim covers the product in swduntry or (b) teryears following th
date of the first commercial sale of such prodacsuch country. Pfizer may terminate the agreemsat to expiration for any reason in
entirety or on a target-by-target basis upon 3G gapr written notice to us. Upon any such termioatithe license granted to Pfizer (in tote
with respect to the terminated target, as appl&abiill terminate, provided, however, that in theeet of expiration of the agreement,
licenses granted will become perpetual, non-exetuand fully paid-up.
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At the inception of the Pfizer and Janssen arramgesn we identified the deliverables in each areamgnt to include the license, resei
and development services and supply of bulk rHURPN2@ have determined that the license, researcldanelopment services and suppl
bulk rHUPH20 individually represent separate uniteiccounting, because each deliverable has stamelaialue. The estimated selling pr
for these units of accounting were determined basednarket conditions, the terms of comparableabalfative arrangements for sim
technology in the pharmaceutical and biotech inmgustd entityspecific factors such as the terms of our previmilborative agreements, «
pricing practices and pricing objectives. The agement consideration was allocated to the delifesabased on the relative selling p
method and the nature of the research and develdpsaerices to be performed for the collaborator.

The amount allocable to the delivered unit or uoitsaccounting is limited to the amount that is rontingent upon the delivery
additional items or meeting other specified perfance conditions (the noncontingent amount). As swah excluded from the allocal
arrangement consideration the milestone paymentsja exclusivity fees and royalties regardlesshef probability of receipt. Based on
results of our analysis, we allocated the $11.0ignillicense fees from Pfizer and the $15.0 milligofront license fee from Janssen to
license fee deliverable under each of the arrangtsn&Ve determined that the upfront payments weammesl upon the granting of -
worldwide, exclusive right to our technology to t@laborators in these arrangements. As a resaltecognized the $11.0 millidicense fee
under the Pfizer Collaboration and the $15.0 milligpfront license fee under the Janssen Collabora®mevenues under collabora
agreements in the period when such license fees eeamed. There were mevenues recognized related to milestone paymerderuhes
collaborations for the years ended December 314,22013 and 2012.

The collaborators are each solely responsible Her development, manufacturing and marketing of amducts resulting from the
respective collaborations. We are entitled to nexgiayments for research and development servicgssapply of rHUPH20 API to the
collaborators if requested by such collaborator. &eognize amounts allocated to research and dawelot services as revenues ui
collaborative agreements as the related servicesparformed. We recognize amounts allocated tostles of APl as revenues un
collaborative agreements when such APl has metegllired specifications by the collaborators anel thlated title and risk of loss ¢
damages have passed to the collaborators. We cpreditt the timing of delivery of research and @lepment services and API as they a
the collaborators' requests.

In May 2011 and June 2011, we entered into colidimr and license agreements with ViroPharma Irmated and Intrexc
Corporation, respectively. These collaboration egrents were terminated effective May 2014 .

Pursuant to the terms of our collaboration agreésnith Roche and Pfizer, certain future paymen¢ginthe definition of a milestone
accordance with the Milestone Method of Accountige are entitled to receive additional milestongnpants for the successful developn
of the elected targets in the aggregate of up pocgimately $55.0 milliorupon achievement of specified clinical developnraiiéstone even
and up to approximately $12.0 milliarpon achievement of specified regulatory milestewents in connection with specified regulatorynfili
and receipt of marketing approvals.

5. Certain Balance Sheet Item

Accounts receivable, net consisted of the follow(imgthousands):

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
Accounts receivable from product sales to collatuosa $ 6,361 $ 4,49t
Accounts receivable from other product sales 2,13: 1,50¢
Accounts receivable from revenues under collabeeagreements 1,26¢ 3,707
Subtotal 9,76( 9,707
Allowance for distribution fees and discounts (611) (610)
Total accounts receivable, net $ 9,14¢ § 9,091
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Inventories consisted of the following (in thousand

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
Raw materials $ 55: $ 1,137
Work-in-process 5,201 4,28(
Finished goods 64€ 753
Total inventories $ 6,40¢ $ 6,17(
Prepaid expenses and other assets consisted follthveing (in thousands):
December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
Prepaid manufacturing expenses $ 6,33¢ $ 5,88¢
Prepaid research and development expenses 2,38( 3,522
Other prepaid expenses 1,094 1,33¢
Other assets 1,63t 35€
Total prepaid expenses and other assets 11,34¢ 11,10:
Less long-term portion 1,20¢ 2,67¢
Total prepaid expenses and other assets, current $ 10,14:  $ 8,42t
Property and equipment, net consisted of the faligwin thousands):
December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
Research equipment $ 8,47/ $ 7,714
Computer and office equipment 2,17¢ 1,94¢
Leasehold improvements 1,51¢ 1,40¢
Subtotal 12,17( 11,07:
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (9,219 (7,649
Property and equipment, net $ 2,951 % 3,422

Depreciation and amortization expense was apprdrig&1.8 million , $1.2 million and $1.1 milliorof the years endedecember 3:
2014, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Accrued expenses consisted of the following (iruznds):

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013

Accrued compensation and payroll taxes $ 592 $ 7,07¢
Accrued outsourced research and development expense 4,38: 3,371
Accrued outsourced manufacturing expenses 2,112 3,23:
Other accrued expenses 2,02 1,23t
Total accrued expenses 14,44 14,92(
Less long-term accrued outsourced research andogenent expenses 48( 551
Total accrued expenses, current $ 13,96. $ 14,36¢
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Long-term accrued outsourced research and develumicluded in other long-term liabilities inetltonsolidated balance sheets.

Deferred revenue consisted of the following (inus@ands):

December 31, December 31,

2014 2013
Collaborative agreements $ 53,47¢ $ 51,18t
Product sales 1,15¢ 1,95¢
Total deferred revenue 54,63¢ 53,14
Less current portion 7,367 7,39¢
Deferred revenue, net of current portion $ 47,260 $ 45,74

6. Long-Term Debt, Net

In December 2013, we entered into an Amended asthRel Loan and Security Agreement (the “Loan Agrea”) with Oxford Financ
LLC (“Oxford”) and Silicon Valley Bank (“SVB”) (cdekctively, the “Lenders”),amending and restating in its entirety our origiter
agreement with the Lenders, dated December 2012 L d8hn Agreement provided for an additional $20iamlprincipal amount of new ter
loan, bringing the total term loan balance to $50ion . The proceeds are to be used for working capitel general business requireme
The amended term loan facility matures on Janua?p18 .

In January 2015, we entered into the second amemtdtoethe Loan Agreement with the Lenders, amending restating the lo
repayment schedules of the Loan Agreement. The deaeand restated term loan repayment schedulede®vorinterest only paymer
through January 2016followed by consecutive equal monthly paymentgohcipal and interest in arrears starting in Eeloy 2016 an
continuing through the previously established nigtuatate of January 2018. Consistent with the aagloan, the Loan Agreement provides
a 7.55% interest rate on the term loan and a fiiatest payment equal to 8.5% of the original @pal amount, or $4.25 millionwhich is du
when the term loan becomes due or upon the prepayohéhe facility. We have the option to prepag tutstanding balance of the term loa
full, subject to a prepayment fee of 1% to 3% deljremupon when the prepayment occurs.

In connection with the term loan, the debt offeraagts have been recorded as a debt discount inomgolidated balance sheets wk
together with the final payment and fixed intenede payments, are being amortized and record@dersst expense throughout the life of
term loan using the effective interest rate method.

The amended term loan is secured by substantithlyf she assets of the Company and our subsididatpzyme, Inc., except that
collateral does not include any equity interest$lalozyme, Inc., any intellectual property (inclagiall licensing, collaboration and sim
agreements relating thereto), and certain othetudgd assets. The Loan Agreement contains customemesentations, warranties
covenants by us, which covenants limit our abii@yconvey, sell, lease, transfer, assign or ottesrwlispose of certain of our assets; enga
any business other than the businesses currergbged in by us or reasonably related thereto;difei or dissolve; make certain manage!
changes; undergo certain change of control evergafe, incur, assume, or be liable with respecettain indebtedness; grant certain liens:
dividends and make certain other restricted paysjanbke certain investments; make payments on abgrdinated debt; and enter i
transactions with any of our affiliates outsidettid ordinary course of business or permit our slidges to do the same. In addition, subje
certain exceptions, we are required to maintait 8B our primary deposit accounts, securities ant®and commodities, and to do the s
for our domestic subsidiary.

The Loan Agreement also contains customary indecatiibn obligations and customary events of defantiuding, among other thing
our failure to fulfill certain of our obligationsnder the Loan Agreement and the occurrence of amahtdverse change which is defined
material adverse change in our business, operatiorc®ndition (financial or otherwise), a mateiiapairment of the prospect of repaymer
any portion of the loan, or a material impairmenthe perfection or priority of lender's lien iretbollateral or in the value of such collatera
the event of default by us under the Loan AgreentbptLenders would
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be entitled to exercise their remedies thereundelyding the right to accelerate the debt, upoilictviive may be required to repay all amo
then outstanding under the Loan Agreement, whiehdcbarm our financial condition.

As of December 31, 2014 , we were in compliandth all material covenants under the Loan Agreeiraand there was no matel
adverse change in our business, operations ordialacondition.

Future maturities and interest payments undereim loan as of December 31, 2014 , are as follawth¢usands):

2015 $ 3,77¢
2016 25,071
2017 27,01z
2018 6,501
2019 —
Total minimum payments 62,36¢
Less amount representing interest (12,36¢)
Gross balance of long-term debt 50,00(
Less unamortized debt discount (240
Present value of long-term debt 49,86(

Less current portion of long-term debt —

Long-term debt, less current portion and unamadtirebt discount $ 49,86(

Interest expense, including amortization of debtdint, related to the long-term debt for the yeaed December 31, 2014 and 2013
was approximately $5.6 million and $3.3 milliorespectively.

7.  Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)

During 2014, we issued an aggregate of 1,432s?@es of common stock, in connection with the @ges of stock options for cast
the aggregate amount of approximately $7.8 milliom addition, we issued 789,34fhares of common stock, net of RSAs cancele
connection with the grants of RSAs and 120,043eshaf common stock upon vesting of certain RSUg RBU holders surrendergd,32¢
RSUs to pay for minimum withholding taxes totalmgproximately $1.0 million .

In February 2014, we completed an underwritten ipubifering and issued 8,846,153 shares of comstonk, including 1,153,84
shares sold pursuant to the full exercise of agr-allotment option granted to the underwriters. Afltbe shares were offered at a pu
offering price of $13.00 per share, generatingragimately $107.7 million in net proceeds.

During 2013, we issued an aggregate of 1,270sBB2es of common stock in connection with the @gescof stock options for cash in
aggregate amount of approximately $5.5 million atfdition, we issued 461,72®ares of common stock, net of RSAs canceled, imectior
with the grants of RSAs and 92,201 shares of comstock upon vesting of certain RSUs. The RSU haldairrendered 61,9BSUs to pa
for minimum withholding taxes totaling approximat&0.4 million .

In February 2012, we completed an underwrittenipudffering and issued 7,820,000 shares of comnoeksincluding 1,020,008hare
sold pursuant to the full exercise of an oaélotment option granted to the underwriter. Alltbé shares were offered at a public offering |
of $10.61 per share, generating approximately $&tilkon in net proceeds. Of the 7,820,080ares of common stock sold, Randal J. Ki
member of our board of directors, through his i@fils, purchased 1,360,080ares of common stock in this offering at the jpubifering price
of $10.61 per share for a total of approximatelst.8Imillion .
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8. Equity Incentive Plans

We currently grant stock options, restricted stagkards and restricted stock units under the Amerashetl Restated 2011 Stock F
("2011 Stock Plan"). In May 2013, our stockholdapproved the Amended and Restated 2011 Stock Whach provides for the grant of up
12.5 million shares of common stock (subject to certain linoteti as described in the Amended and Restated 2@tk Blan) to select
employees, consultants and non-employee membearsrdoard of Directors (“Outside Directorsdp stock options, stock appreciation ric
restricted stock awards, restricted stock unit awand performance awards. The 2011 Stock Plarapm®ved by the stockholders. Awe
are subject to terms and conditions establishetthéyCompensation Committee of our Board of Direct@uring the year endddecember 3:
2014 , we granted share-based awards under theX0tk Plan. At December 31, 2014 , 7,247,4Bares were subject to outstanding awn
and 4,681,212 shares were available for futuretgrahsharéhased awards. At the present time, managementdmtEnissue new comm
shares upon the exercise of stock options, issuainesstricted stock awards and settlement of imstt stock units.

Total share-based compensation expense relaté@dte-based awards was comprised of the followimgh@usands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Research and development $ 793¢ $ 4.47¢ $ 4,191
Selling, general and administrative 7,33t 5,06: 4,15¢
Share-based compensation expense $ 15,27: $ 9,53t $ 8,34¢

Total unrecognized estimated compensation expensgpe of award and the weightedterage remaining requisite service period
which such expense is expected to be recognizetigirsands, unless otherwise noted):

December 31, 2014

Remaining
Weighted-Average
Unrecognized Recognition Period
Expense (years)
Stock options $ 15,67¢ 2.7
RSAs $ 7,15 1.6
RSUs $ 3,991 2.6

Cash flows resulting from tax deductions in excefshe cumulative compensation cost recognizedofitions exercised (excess
benefits) are classified as cash inflows providgdfibancing activities and cash outflows used irem@ping activities. Due to our net I
position, no tax benefits have been recognizetiérconsolidated statements of cash flows.

Stock Options.Options granted under the Plans must have anisggutce equal to at least 10@the fair market value of our comn
stock on the date of grant. The options will geliyedfaave a maximum contractual term of ten yeard aest at the rate of one-fourdi the
shares on the first anniversary of the date of tgaad 1/480f the shares monthly thereafter. Certain optiomrale provide for accelerat
vesting if there is a change in control (as defimethe Plans).
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A summary of our stock option award activity asnfl for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2012Gtlis as follows:

Weighted
Average
Shares Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Underlying Average Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Stock Options Price per Share  Term (years) Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2012 5,869,78: $5.82
Granted 1,215,44: $9.90
Exercised (444,63) $4.56
Canceled/forfeited (260,729 $8.34
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 6,379,86 $6.59
Granted 1,806,39: $7.14
Exercised (1,270,36) $4.34
Canceled/forfeited (214,98) $8.18
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 6,700,91! $7.11
Granted 2,271,14 $13.02
Exercised (1,432,20i) $5.43
Canceled/forfeited (1,185,961 $9.39
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 6,353,89; $9.18 6.5 $11.Z million
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2014 6,025,88: $9.05 6.4 $10.¢ million
Exercisable at December 31, 2014 3,944,40i $7.36 4.6 $8.€ million

The weighted average grant-date fair values obaogtgranted during the years ended December 3%, 2013 and 2012 were $8.p8i
share, $4.40 per share and $5.63 per share, reghgcThe intrinsic value of options exercised idgrthe years endebecember 31, 201
2013 and 2012 was approximately $8.1 million , $&iBion and $2.9 million, respectively. Cash received from stock optiorr@sges for th
years endeDecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was approxim@#e8/ million , $5.5 million and $2.0 million , resgtively.

The fair value of each option award is estimatedtton date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Mertptiom pricing model (“Black-
Scholes model”}hat uses the assumptions noted in the followibtetaExpected volatility is based on historicalatdity of our common stoc
The expected term of options granted is based atyses of historical employee termination rates apiion exercises. The rigkee interes
rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield for aogeconsistent with the expected term of the optioeffect at the time of the grant. 1
dividend yield assumption is based on the expextaif no future dividend payments by us. Assumgtiosed in the Blackcholes model we
as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Expected volatility 66.6-71.8% 70.1-72.5% 64.0-69.2%
Average expected term (in years) 5.7 5.7 5.€
Risk-free interest rate 1.732.04% 0.862.00% 0.80-.15%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
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Restricted Stock AwardsRestricted stock awards are grants that entitlehtiider to acquire shares of our common stock &t ae ¢
fixed price, which is typically nominal. The shaczs/ered by a restricted stock award cannot be ptddged, or otherwise disposed of until
award vests and any unvested shares may be readtdpyirus for the original purchase price followthg awardee termination of service. T
restricted stock awards will generally vest at thte of onefourth of the shares on each anniversary of the datgrant. Annual grants
restricted stock awards to Outside Directors tylpiczest in full the first day the awardee may ®aolur stock in compliance with our insi
trading policy following the date immediately preagg the first annual meeting of stockholders faoilog the grant date.

The following table summarizes our restricted staslard activity during the years ended Decembef314, 2013 and 2012 :

Weighted
Average
Number of Grant Date
Shares Fair Value
Unvested at January 1, 2012 347,88: $6.51
Granted 380,15 $10.29
Vested (339,759 $6.51
Forfeited (5,967) $10.81
Unvested at December 31, 2012 382,32( $10.21
Granted 476,09t $6.88
Vested (211,179 $8.78
Forfeited (14,367 $8.17
Unvested at December 31, 2013 632,87: $8.23
Granted 1,055,12; $11.15
Vested (263,76 $8.33
Forfeited (265,77) $10.86
Unvested at December 31, 2014 1,158,45 $10.26

The fair value of the restricted stock awards isdslaon the market value of our common stock ord#te of grant. The total gradate
fair value of restricted stock awards vested duthmey years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2@&2approximately $2.2 million$1.<
million and $2.2 million , respectively. We recoged approximately $5.4 million , $2.2 million and.$ million of sharebased compensati
expense related to restricted stock awards foydlaes ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 201 2eatasgly.
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Restricted Stock Units A restricted stock unit is a promise by us to éssushare of our common stock upon vesting of thie The
restricted stock units will generally vest at thterof one-fourth of the shares on each anniveidate date of grant.

The following table summarizes our restricted stook activity during the years ended December2814, 2013 and 2012 :

Weighted
Average
Grant
Date Weighted Aggregate
Number of Fair Average Remaining Intrinsic
Shares Value Contractual Term (yrs) Value
Unvested at January 1, 2012 148,00(
Granted 682,14¢ $10.61
Vested (128,000
Forfeited (20,000
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 682,14¢
Granted 323,70  $6.69
Vested (154,12,
Forfeited (115,36)
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 736,35!  $9.06
Granted 305,53"  $13.71
Vested (194,369 $9.12
Forfeited (385,20() $8.84
Outstand|ng at December 31, 2014 462,32: $11.12 2.6 $4.5 million

The estimated fair value of the restricted stocitsuwas based on the market value of our commocksta the date of grant. The tc
intrinsic value of restricted stock units vestedinig the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ah? ®@s approximately $2.6 milliors]1.1
million and $0.9 million , respectively. We recoged approximately $2.0 million , $1.8 million andl.% million of sharebased compensati
expense related to the restricted stock unitshieryears ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2@%gedtively.

In July 2014, we granted 540,742RSUs to our executive officers, which are notuded in the table above. For the year e
December 31, 2014 , there were 109,504 PRSUs tedieAs of December 31, 2014, the aggregate indrinalue of the 431,23®RSU:
outstanding was $4.2 million . For the year endeztédnber 31, 2014 , there was expense recognized related to the PRSUs, ¢
achievement of the performance conditions was atarchined to be probable.

9. Commitments and Contingencie
Operating Leases

Our administrative offices and research facilittge located in San Diego, California. We lease ggregate of approximately6,00(
square feet of office and research space in foildihgs. The leases commenced in June 2011 and rilose 2013 and continue throt
January 2018 . The leases are subject to appraiynab% to 3.0%annual increases throughout the terms of the les¢eslso pay a pro r:
share of operating costs, insurance costs, usiléied real property taxes.

We received incentives under the leases, includémg@nt improvement allowances and reduced or fee¢ which the unamortiz
deferred rent balances associated with these invesnivas $1.0 million as of December 31, 2014 &B32

Additionally, we lease certain office equipment endperating leases. Total rent expense was appabely $1.9 million $1.7 millior
and $1.6 million for the years ended December 81422013 and 2012 , respectively.
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Approximate annual future minimum operating leaggnpents as of December 31, 2014 are as followth@usands):

Operating

Year: Leases
2015 $ 2,13¢
2016 2,14;
2017 2,162
2018 82
Total minimum lease payments $ 6,51¢

Other Commitments

In order to scale up the production of bulk rHUPH2@ to identify another manufacturer that woulthbheeet anticipated producti
obligations arising from our proprietary progranra aour collaborations, we entered into a Technoldggnsfer Agreement and a Clini
Supply Agreement with Cook Pharmica LLC (“CookThe technology transfer was completed in 2008. 0692 multiple batches of bt
rHUPH20 were produced to support planned futureazl studies.

In March 2010, we entered into a Commercial Sugidyeement with Cook (the “Cook Commercial Supplyrégment”).Under th
terms of the Cook Commercial Supply Agreement, Cadkmanufacture certain batches of bulk rHuPHRattwill be used for commerc
supply of certain products and product candidafesler the terms of the Cook Commercial Supply Agrest, we are committed to cert
minimum annual purchases of bulk rHUPH20 equabto fiuarters of forecasted supply. At Decembe2814 , we had nminimum purchas
obligation in connection with the Cook Commerciapfly Agreement.

In March 2010, we amended our Commercial SupplyeAgrent (the “March 2010 Avid Amendmentijith Avid Bioservices, Inc
(“Avid”) which was originally entered into in February 20@%d amended in December 2006. Under the termseofviirch 2010 Avi
Amendment, we are committed to certain minimum ahpurchases of bulk rHUPH20 equal to three quaxéforecasted supply. In additi
Avid has the right to manufacture and supply aaienpercentage of bulk rHUPH20 that will be use#iyfenexrecombinant. ADecember 3.
2014 , we had no minimum purchase obligations thith agreement.

In March 2010, we entered into a second CommeS8ualply Agreement with Avid (the “Avid Commercial galy Agreement”)Undel
the terms of the Avid Commercial Supply Agreemeve,are committed to certain minimum annual purchageéoulk rHUPH20 equal to thr
quarters of forecasted supply. In addition, Avid tiae right to manufacture and supply a certaicgrgage of bulk rHUPH20 that will be u
in the collaboration products. At December 31, 204 had a $9.6 million minimum purchase obligatio connection with this agreement.

In June 2011, we entered into a commercial manuifilmgt and supply agreement with Baxter, under wieltter provides the final f
and finishing steps in the production processigienexrecombinant for a limited period of time. The ialtterm of the agreement with Bay
was extended to December 31, 2015, subject to duréixtensions in accordance with the terms and ittons of the agreement.
December 31, 2014 , we had a minimum purchaseatldigin connection with this agreement of appraadiety $1.7 million .

In June 2011, we entered into a services agreewidmanother third party manufacturer for the temlbgy transfer and manufacture
Hylenexrecombinant. At December 31, 2014 , we had a $lllmminimum purchase obligation in connectiorthwthis agreement.

Contingencies

We have entered into an in-licensing agreement avithsearch organization, which is cancelable abption with 90 daysvritten notice
Under the terms of this agreement, we have recdigedse to knowkow and technology claimed, in certain patentsatemt applications. W
are required to pay fees, milestones and/or ra@gatin future sales of products employing the telciyyoor falling under claims of a patent, i
some of the agreements require minimum royalty pays We continually reassess the value of thadieeagreement. If the licensed an
research candidate is successfully developed, webmaequired to pay milestone payments of appratéty $9.3 millionover the life of thi
agreement in addition to royalties on sales of dffected products. Due to the uncertainties of deegelopment process, the timing
probability of the milestone and royalty paymerdsmot be accurately estimated.
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Legal Contingencies

From time to time, we may be involved in disputasjuding litigation, relating to claims arising toof operations in the normal courst
our business. Any of these claims could subjedbustly legal expenses and, while we generalliebe that we have adequate insuranc
cover many different types of liabilities, our imance carriers may deny coverage or our policytirmay be inadequate to fully satisfy
damage awards or settlements. If this were to hapgpe payment of any such awards could have ariabselverse effect on our consolide
results of operations and financial position. Attdially, any such claims, whether or not successfulld damage our reputation and busit
We currently are not a party to any legal procegslithe adverse outcome of which, in managersenqtinion, individually or in the aggrege
would have a material adverse effect on our codatdid results of operations or financial position.

10. Income Taxe!

Significant components of our net deferred tax tasaé December 31, 2014 and 20dr@ shown below (in thousands). A valua
allowance of $179.0 million and $162.0 million Hasen established to offset the net deferred tastass of December 31, 2014 and 20173
respectively, as realization of such assets isntmioe

December 31,

2014 2013
Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards $ 120,700 $ 116,57.
Deferred revenue 18,03¢ 13,32«
Research and development credits 34,14¢ 28,86
Share-based compensation 5,381 2,49t
Other, net 891 852
179,15¢ 162,11:
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets (178,969 (161,969
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation 194 14:Z

Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation (199 (149
Net deferred tax liabilities (199 (149
Net deferred tax assets $ — 8 —

The provision for income taxes on earnings sulifgédcome taxes differs from the statutory fedémabme tax rate due to the followi
(in thousands):

December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Federal income tax at 34% $ (23,24) $ (28,389 $ (18,209
State income tax, net of federal benefit (1,767 (1,745 (3,029
Increase in valuation allowance 16,99¢ 33,52t 20,95¢
Foreign income subject to tax at other than fedetedlitory rate 12,74] — —
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses and other 54C 5,21¢ 1,29:
Research and development credits (5,277) (8,61¢) (1,01¢

$ — $ — 3 —
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At December 31, 2014 , we had federal and Califotak net operating loss carryforwards of approxaéiya$341.9 million and307.¢
million , respectively. Included in these amounts &deral and California net operating losses pgraximately $34.3 million an&32.¢
million , respectively, attributable to stock option, RS &kSU deductions for which the tax benefit will dredited to equity when realiz
The federal and California tax loss carryforwardl egin to expire in 2018 and 2015 , respectiveiyless previously utilized.

At December 31, 2014 , we also had federal andf@@aia research and development tax credit carwdods of approximatel$26.]
million and $12.2 million , respectively. The fedkresearch and development tax credits will bégiexpire in 2024unless previously utilize
The California research and development tax creditsarryforward indefinitely until utilized.

Pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 382artheal use of the net operating loss carryforwartsresearch and developmenti
credits could be limited by any greater than 50%mexship change during any thrgear testing period. As a result of any such owhrip
change, portions of our net operating loss carwéods and research and development tax creditsudject to annual limitations. We rece
completed an updated Section 382 analysis regatmtjmitation of the net operating losses an@aesh and development credits as of
30, 2014. Based upon the analysis, we determinadaivnership changes occurred in prior years. Hewethe annual limitations on 1
operating loss and research and development tadit aarryforwards will not have a material impaat the future utilization of su
carryforwards.

At December 31, 2014 and 2018ur unrecognized income tax benefits and uncettai positions were not material and would n¢
recognized, affect the effective tax rate. Intesesd/or penalties related to uncertain income t@sitipns are recognized by us as a compc
of income tax expense. For the years ended Decedih@014, 2013 and 2012 , we recognized no irttergzenalties.

We do not provide for U.S. income taxes on the sinihuted earnings of our foreign subsidiary ais ibur intention to utilize tho:
earnings in the foreign operations for an indeéirperiod of time. At December 31, 2014, there wer@ndistributed earnings in the fore
subsidiary.

We are subject to taxation in the U.S. and in varietate and foreign jurisdictions. Our tax years1998 and forward are subjec
examination by the U.S. and California tax autlesitdue to the carryforward of unutilized net opiatalosses and research and develop
credits.

11. Employee Savings Pla

We have an employee savings plan pursuant to $etfib(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. All emplayaee eligible to participa
provided they meet the requirements of the plan.a’¢enot required to make matching contributiondeurthe plan. However, we volunta
contributed to the plan approximately $0.7 millip$0.6 million and $0.5 million for the years endedcember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
respectively.

12. Related Party Transaction:

In June 2011, we and Intrexon entered into theekatn Collaboration, under which Intrexon obtainedaldwide exclusive license {
the use of rHUPH20 enzyme in the development aft@aneous injectable formulation of Intrexon’sambinant human alphadntitrypsir
(rHUA1AT). The Intrexon Collaboration was termindie May 2014 . Intrexors chief executive officer and chairman of its boafdlirectors
Randal J. Kirk, is also a member of our Board afebiors. The collaborative arrangement with Intrexeas reviewed and approved by
Board of Directors in accordance with our relatedty transaction policy. For the years ended Deear8lh, 2014, 2013 and 2012we
recognized zero , $1.0 million and $1.0 milliprespectively, in revenue under collaborative egrents pursuant to the terms of the Intre
Collaboration. See Note €ollaborative Agreementdor a further discussion of the Intrexon Colladtan.
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13. Restructuring Expense

In November 2014, we completed a corporate reorgdion to focus our resources on advancing our FMEXBFoncology proprieta
program and Enhanze collaborations. This reorgnizaesulted in a reduction in the workforce opegpximately 13%, primarily in researc
and development.

We recorded approximately $1.2 million of severapey and benefits expense in connection with tleegamnization, of whict$1.1
million and $0.1 millionwas included in research and development expergsealing, general and administrative expense e@spely, in thi
consolidated statement of operations for the yealee@ December 31, 2014. Naher restructuring charges were incurred. We nzad
payments of $0.7 millionelated to the restructuring expense for the yaded December 31, 2014. As of December 31, 20&4rettructurin
liability was approximately $0.5 million and wasinded in current accrued expenses. The balaregicted to be paid in 2015.
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14. Summary of Unaudited Quarterly Financial Information

The following is a summary of our unaudited qudytegsults for the years ended December 31, 20@4843 (in thousands):

Quarter Ended
2014 (Unaudited): March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,

Total revenue® $ 11,96¢ $ 18,38 $ 14,60¢ $ 30,373
Gross profit on product sales $ 3,04¢ % 3,57C % 447¢ $ 3,997
Total operating expenses $ 37,18: $ 33,32¢ $ 33,63: $ 34,22¢
Net loss $ (26,549 $ (16,27) $ (20,280 $ (5,279
Net loss per share, basic and diluted $ 0.22) $ 0.19 $ (0.1¢) $ (0.09
Shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss

per share 118,94: 123,71 124,04 124,27

Quarter Ended
2013 (Unaudited): March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,

Total revenues $ 11,837 $ 14,45 $ 16,01: $ 12,49¢
Gross profit on product salés $ 76¢ % 1,81€ $ 9,34: $ 6,26¢€
Total operating expenses $ 30,33( % 36,57« % 34,507 $ 33,82:
Net loss $ (19,289 $ (22,91 $ (19,29) $ (21,986
Net loss per share, basic and diluted $ (0.17) $ (0.20 $ (0.17) $ (0.19
Shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss

per share 112,41 112,48t 112,76! 113,55(

(1) Revenues for the quarter ended December 314 2tcluded $15.0 milliorin revenue under collaborative agreements fron
Janssen Collaboration.

(2) Gross profit on product sales for the quarters éndiegne 30, 2013, September 30, 2013 and DecemheP@B exclude
manufacturing costs related to the product saldsitif rHuPH20 for Herceptin SC and HyQuvia in thecamts of $0.9 million $6.£
million and $2.6 million, respectively. Such costs were incurred prior toogean marketing approvals for Herceptin SC
HyQvia, and therefore, they were charged to rebeand development expenses in the periods the wesésincurred.
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

Schedule I

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
(in thousands)

Balance at
Beginning of Balance at End of
Period Additions Deductions Period
For the year ended December 31, 2014
Accounts receivable allowanc&s $ 61C $ 4,51¢ 3% (4,519 $ 60¢
For the year ended December 31, 2013
Accounts receivable allowanc&s $ 17¢  $ 2,97¢ % (25547 $ 61C
For the year ended December 31, 2012
Accounts receivable allowanc&s $ 15 % 771 % (608) $ 17¢

(1) Allowances are for chargebacks, prompt payrdestounts and distribution fees relatedHdenexrecombinant product sal
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Exhibit 10.3¢

SECOND AMENDMENT
TO
AMENDED AND RESTATED LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT
AND
FIRST AMENDMENT TO DISBURSEMENT LETTER

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT to Amended and Restated Laad Security Agreement and First Amendment to Distment Lette
(this “ Amendment”) is entered into as of January 23, 2015, by andrigOXFORD FINANCE LLC (“Oxford”) as collateral agent (in st
capacity, the ‘Collateral Agent "), the Lenders listed on Schedule 1.1 of the Loan é&ment or otherwise a party thereto from time tae
including, without limitation, Oxford in its capdgias a Lender, an8ILICON VALLEY BANK (in such capacity, each a “Lendeahc
collectively, the “Lenders”), antHALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC. , a Delaware corporation, anALOZYME, INC. , a Californii
corporation (individually and collectively, jointgnd severally, Borrower ”).

Recitals

A. Collateral Agent, Lenders and Borrower have entdregd that certain Amended and Restated Loan anclriy
Agreement dated as of December 27, 2013 (as the kasibeen and may from time to time further benaleé, modified, supplemented
restated, collectively, thelfoan Agreement”). Lenders have extended credit to Borrower far plurposes permitted in the Loan Agreement.

B. Collateral Agent, Lenders and Borrower have entantmthat certain Disbursement Letter dated aBaexfember 27, 20:
(as the same may from time to time be amended,fraddsupplemented or restated, collectively, tiiEsbursement Letter”).

C. Borrower has requested that Collateral Agent antlees amend the Loan Agreement and the Disbursepetiet to mak
certain revisions to the Loan Agreement and Dislment Letter as more fully set forth herein.

D. Collateral Agent and Lenders have agreed to so droertain provisions of the Loan Agreement and Disement Lette
but only to the extent, in accordance with the g&reubject to the conditions and in reliance upgwnrepresentations and warranties set
below.

Agreement

Now, Therefore, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and otheod and valuable consideration, the receipt ahefjuacy ¢
which is hereby acknowledged, and intending toelgally bound, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Adment shall have the meanings given to them ir_te
Agreement.
2. Amendments to Loan Agreement
2.1 Section 2.2( Term Loans ). Section 2.2(b) hereby is amended by deletingréierence to “thirtysix (36

months” and replacing it with “twenty-four (24) nbs”.




2.2 Section 2.5( Fees). Section 2.5 hereby is amended to delete the Wwamd” at the end of clause (e) (F
Amendment Fee), change the title “(f) Fees FullynEd .” to “(g) Fees Fully Earned’ and insert the following new clause (f) as
penultimate paragraph of such Section:

(H Second Amendment Fe®n the Second Amendment Effective Date, a fullsned norrefundable fee of One Hundi
Eighty Thousand Dollars ($180,000.00) (the&sécond Amendment Feé) to be shared between the Lenders pursuant to thspectiv

Commitment Percentages; and
2.3 Section 13.1 (Definitions) The following term and its definition hereby @mended in Section 13.1 of the L

Agreement as follows:

“ Amortization Date " is February 1, 2016.

2.3 Section 13.1 (Definitions) The following terms and their respective defonits hereby are added to Section
in their appropriate alphabetical order:

“ Second Amendment Effective Daté means January 23, 2015.

“ Second Amendment Feéis defined in Section 2.5(f).

3. Amendment to Disbursement Letter. The Disbursement Letter hereby is amended byacapgi the Amortization Tak
with the Amortization Table attached hereto as Bl .
4, Limitation of Amendments.

4.1 The amendments set forth in Sections 2 and 3, alaweeeffective for the purposes set forth hereid shall b

limited precisely as written and shall not be degitoe(a) be a consent to any amendment, waiveraalifination of any other term or conditi
of any Loan Document, or (b) otherwise prejudicg aght or remedy which Collateral Agent or any den may now have or may have in
future under or in connection with any Loan Docutnen

4.2 This Amendment shall be construed in connectiorhvaihd as part of the Loan Documents and all t
conditions, representations, warranties, coveramisagreements set forth in the Loan Documentgptas herein amended, are hereby ra
and confirmed and shall remain in full force aniet.

5. Representations and WarrantiesTo induce Collateral Agent and Lenders to entey this Amendment, Borrower here
represents and warrants to Collateral Agent andiéenas follows:

5.1 Immediately after giving effect to this Amendmea) t(he representations and warranties containékeir_oar
Documents (as such may be modified by the updagetd&ion Certificate delivered to the Collaterajeft on or around the date hereof)
true, accurate and complete in all material respastof the date hereof (except to the extent sgptesentations and warranties relate |
earlier date, in which case they are true and cbireall material respects as of such date), &dno Event of Default has occurred an
continuing;

5.2 Borrower has the power and authority to executedslider this Amendment and to perform its obliga unde
the Loan Agreement, as amended by this Amendment;

5.3 The organizational documents of Borrower most rédgetelivered to Collateral Agent and Lenders anee
accurate and complete and have not been amenggalesiented or restated and are and continue to fudl force and effect;

5.4 The execution and delivery by Borrower of this Arderent and the performance by Borrower of its olbide
under the Loan Agreement, as amended by this Amentrave been duly authorized;

5.5 The execution and delivery by Borrower of this Arderent and the performance by Borrower of its olbidye
under the Loan Agreement, as amended by this Amentrdo not and will not contravene (a) any mat&equirement of Law binding on
affecting Borrower, (b) any material agreement yolv Borrower is bound in a manner that constitate®vent of default thereunder, (c)
order, judgment or decree of any court or otheregomental or public body or authority, or subdiersthereof, binding on Borrower, or (d)
organizational documents of Borrower;




5.6 The execution and delivery by Borrower of this Arderent and the performance by Borrower of its olbide
under the Loan Agreement, as amended by this Amentrdo not require any order, consent, approicnse, authorization or validation
or filing, recording or registration with, or exetigh by any governmental or public body or authgridr subdivision thereof, binding
Borrower, except as already has been obtained demiis being obtained pursuant to Section 6.d{he Loan Agreement; and

5.7 This Amendment has been duly executed and deliieyeBorrower and is the binding obligation of Bomer,
enforceable against Borrower in accordance withtéisns, except as such enforceability may be liniby bankruptcy, insolvenc
reorganization, liquidation, moratorium or othemgar laws of general application and equitablengiples relating to or affecting creditors’
rights.

6. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in any number ofitesparts and all of such counterparts taken t@g
shall be deemed to constitute one and the sanrernnsit.

7. Effectiveness.This Amendment shall be deemed effective uponh@)due execution and delivery to Collateral Agerd
Lenders of this Amendment; (b) Borrowemayment of the Second Amendment Fee in an armexurdl to One Hundred Eighty Thous
Dollars ($180,000.00); and (c) Borrower’s paymeralbLenders’ Expenses incurred through the déthis Amendment.

[ Balance of Page Intentionally Left Blank




In Witness Whereof,the parties hereto have caused this Amendment wulyeexecuted and delivered as of the date fingtten

above.
COLLATERAL AGENT: BORROWER:
OXFORD FINANCE LLC HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.
By: /sl Mark Davis By: /s/ David A. Ramsay
Name: Mark Davis Name: David A. Ramsay
Title: Vice President - Finance, Secretary & Treasurer Title:  CFO
LENDERS:
OXFORD FINANCE LLC HALOZYME, INC.
By: /sl Mark Davis By: /sl David A. Ramsay
Name: Mark Davis Name: David A. Ramsay
Title: Vice President - Finance, Secretary & Treasurer Title: CFO

SILICON VALLEY BANK

By: /s/ Anthony Flores
Name: Anthony Flores
Title: Vice President

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO SECOND AMENDMENT TO
AMENDED AND RESTATED LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT
AND FIRST AMENDMENT TO DISBURSEMENT LETTER]




Exhibit A

AMORTIZATION TABLE

Oxford Finance & SVB
Amortization Table

Halozyme AAO1
Start Date: 12/27/2013 Disclaimer:
Interest Rate: 7.55% THIS IS A STANDARD AMORTIZATION
Term: 48 2410 +24 Pl  SCHEDULE. IT IS NOT INTENDED TO BE
Payment:  $1,350,669.95 USED FOR PAYOFF PURPOSES.
Final
Payment:  $2,550,000.00 8.50%
Amount: 30,000,000.00
PMT Payment Beginning Monthly Ending

No. Date Balance Payment Interest Principal Balance

1/1/14 Interim Interest Due $30,000,000.0
1 2/1/14 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.0! $0.00 $30,000,000.0
2 3/1/14 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.0! $0.00 $30,000,000.0
3 4/1/14 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.01 $0.00 $30,000,000.0
4 5/1/14 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.0! $0.00 $30,000,000.0
5 6/1/14 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.01 $0.00 $30,000,000.0
6 7/1/14 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.0! $0.00 $30,000,000.0
7 8/1/14 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.0! $0.00 $30,000,000.0
8 9/1/14 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.01 $0.00 $30,000,000.0
9 10/1/14 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.0! $0.00 $30,000,000.0
10 11/1/14 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.01 $0.00 $30,000,000.0
11 12/1/14 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.01 $0.00 $30,000,000.0
12 1/1/15 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.0! $0.00 $30,000,000.0
13 2/1/15 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.01 $0.00 $30,000,000.0
14 3/1/15 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.0! $0.00 $30,000,000.0
15 4/1/15 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.01 $0.00 $30,000,000.0
16 5/1/15 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.01 $0.00 $30,000,000.0
17 6/1/15 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.0! $0.00 $30,000,000.0
18 7/1/15 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.01 $0.00 $30,000,000.0
19 8/1/15 $30,000,000.0 $188,750.01 $188,750.0! $0.00 $30,000,000.0




20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
Final

9/1/15
10/1/15
11/1/15
12/1/15

1/1/16

2/1/16

3/1/16
4/1/16

5/1/16

6/1/16

7/1/16

8/1/16

9/1/16
10/1/16
11/1/16
12/1/16

1/1/17

2/1/17

3/1/17

4/1/17

5/1/17

6/1/17

7/1/17

8/1/17

9/1/17
10/1/17
11/1/17
12/1/17

1/1/18

1/1/18

$30,000,000.0
$30,000,000.0
$30,000,000.0
$30,000,000.0
$30,000,000.0
$30,000,000.0
$28,838,080.0
$27,668,849.6
$26,492,262.9
$25,308,273.4
$24,116,834.7
$22,917,899.8
$21,711,421.6
$20,497,352.7
$19,275,645.3
$18,046,251.3
$16,809,122.3
$15,564,209.8
$14,311,464.6
$13,050,837.6
$11,782,279.2
$10,505,739.4

$9,221,168.1

$7,928,514.7

$6,627,728.3

$5,318,757.8

$4,001,551.7

$2,676,058.2

$1,342,225.1

Final

$188,750.01

$188,750.01

$188,750.01

$188,750.01

$188,750.01
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9
$1,350,669.9

$2,550,000.0

$188,750.01
$188,750.0!
$188,750.01
$188,750.01
$188,750.0!
$188,750.01
$181,439.5!
$174,083.1!
$166,680.4!
$159,231.2.
$151,735.0!
$144,191.7!
$136,601.0:
$128,962.5!
$121,275.9
$113,541.01
$105,757.3!
$97,924.8:
$90,042.9°
$82,111.5:
$74,130.1°
$66,098.6:
$58,016.5:
$49,883.5°
$41,699.4¢
$33,463.8!
$25,176.4:
$16,836.8°
$8,444.8:
$2,550,000.0

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$1,161,919.9
$1,169,230.3
$1,176,586.7
$1,183,989.4
$1,191,438.7
$1,198,934.8
$1,206,478.1
$1,214,068.9
$1,221,707.4
$1,229,394.0
$1,237,128.9
$1,244,912.5
$1,252,745.1
$1,260,626.9
$1,268,558.4
$1,276,539.7
$1,284,571.3
$1,292,653.4
$1,300,786.3
$1,308,970.4
$1,317,206.1
$1,325,493.5
$1,333,833.0
$1,342,225.1

$0.00

Totals

$39,496,078.83

$9,496,078.83

$30,000,000.00

$30,000,000.0
$30,000,000.0
$30,000,000.0
$30,000,000.0
$30,000,000.0
$28,838,080.0
$27,668,849.6
$26,492,262.9
$25,308,273.4
$24,116,834.7
$22,917,899.8
$21,711,421.6
$20,497,352.7
$19,275,645.3
$18,046,251.3
$16,809,122.3
$15,564,209.8
$14,311,464.6
$13,050,837.6
$11,782,279.2
$10,505,739.4
$9,221,168.1
$7,928,514.7
$6,627,728.3
$5,318,757.8
$4,001,551.7
$2,676,058.2
$1,342,225.1
$0.00




Oxford Finance & SVB
Amortization Table

Halozyme AAQ02
Start Date: 12/27/2013 Disclaimer:
Interest Rate: 7.55% THIS IS A STANDARD AMORTIZATION
Term: 48 2410+ 24 Pl SCHEDULE. IT IS NOT INTENDED TO BE
Payment: $900,446.63 USED FOR PAYOFF PURPOSES.
Final
Payment:  $1,700,000.00 8.50%
Amount: 20,000,000.00
PMT Payment Beginning Monthly Ending

No. Date Balance Payment Interest Principal Balance

1/1/14 Interim Interest Due $20,000,000.0
1 2/1/14 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3. $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
2 3/1/14 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3. $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
3 4/1/14 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3: $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
4 5/1/14 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3. $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
5 6/1/14 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3: $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
6 7/1/14 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3: $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
7 8/1/14 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3. $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
8 9/1/14 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3: $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
9 10/1/14 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3. $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
10 11/1/14 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3: $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
11 12/1/14 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3. $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
12 1/1/15 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3. $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
13 2/1/15 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3: $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
14 3/1/15 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3. $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
15 4/1/15 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3. $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
16 5/1/15 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3: $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
17 6/1/15 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3. $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
18 7/1/15 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3: $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
19 8/1/15 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3. $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
20 9/1/15 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3. $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
21 10/1/15 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3: $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0
22 11/1/15 $20,000,000.0 $125,833.3. $125,833.3. $0.00 $20,000,000.0




23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
a7
48

Final

12/1/15
1/1/16
2/1/16
3/1/16
4/1/16
5/1/16
6/1/16
7/1/16
8/1/16
9/1/16

10/1/16

11/1/16

12/1/16
1/1/17
2/1/17
3/1/17
4/1/17
5/1/17
6/1/17
7/1/17
8/1/17
9/1/17
10/1/17
11/1/17
12/1/17
1/1/18
1/1/18

$20,000,000.0
$20,000,000.0
$20,000,000.0
$19,225,386.7
$18,445,899.7
$17,661,508.6
$16,872,182.3
$16,077,889.8
$15,278,599.9
$14,474,281.1
$13,664,901.8
$12,850,430.2
$12,030,834.2
$11,206,081.5
$10,376,139.8
$9,540,976.4
$8,700,558.4
$7,854,852.8
$7,003,826.3
$6,147,445.4
$5,285,676.4
$4,418,485.5
$3,545,838.5
$2,667,701.1
$1,784,038.8
$894,816.7!
Final

$125,833.3.
$125,833.3.
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$900,446.6:
$1,700,000.0

$125,833.3!
$125,833.3!
$125,833.3!
$120,959.7.
$116,055.4!
$111,120.3:
$106,154.1!
$101,156.7.
$96,127.8t
$91,067.3!
$85,975.0:
$80,850.6:
$75,694.0(
$70,504.9:
$65,283.2:
$60,028.6-
$54,741.0:
$49,420.1:
$44,065.7:
$38,677.6¢
$33,255.7:
$27,799.6¢
$22,309.2:
$16,784.2¢
$11,224.5¢
$5,629.8¢
$1,700,000.0

$0.00

$0.00
$774,613.3
$779,486.9:
$784,391.1
$789,326.3:
$794,292 4!
$799,289.9:
$804,318.7!
$809,379.2
$814,471.6:
$819,596.0:
$824,752.6-
$829,941.71
$835,163.4.
$840,417.9!
$845,705.6:
$851,026.5:
$856,380.8!
$861,768.9
$867,190.9:
$872,647.0!
$878,137.41
$883,662.3!
$889,222.01
$894,816.7!

$0.00

Totals

$26,330,719.22

$6,330,719.22

$20,000,000.00

$20,000,000.0
$20,000,000.0
$19,225,386.7
$18,445,899.7
$17,661,508.6
$16,872,182.3
$16,077,889.8
$15,278,599.9
$14,474,281.1
$13,664,901.8
$12,850,430.2
$12,030,834.2
$11,206,081.5
$10,376,139.8
$9,540,976.4
$8,700,558.4
$7,854,852.8
$7,003,826.3
$6,147,445.4
$5,285,676.4
$4,418,485.5
$3,545,838.5
$2,667,701.1
$1,784,038.8
$894,816.7!
$0.00



SUBSIDIARIES OF HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

Name of Subsidiary
Halozyme, Inc.
Halozyme Holdings Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiafyHalozyme, Inc.

State or Jurisdiction of
Incorporation or Organization

California
Bermuda

EXHIBIT 21.1

Percent
Owned

100%
100%



EXHIBIT 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:
(1) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-179444) of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.,
(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-119969) pertaining to the Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2004 Stock Plan and
Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement with Andrew Kim and Assumed Options Under the Deliatroph Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Amended and Restated 2001 Stock Plan of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.,

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-133829) pertaining to the Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2005 Outside
Directors’ Stock Plan and Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2006 Stock Plan of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.,

(4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-152914) pertaining to the Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2008 Outside
Directors’ Stock Plan and Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2008 Stock Plan of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.,

(5) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-174013) pertaining to the Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2011 Stock Plan of
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc., and

(6) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-188997) pertaining to the Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. Amended and
Restated 2011 Stock Plan of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.;

of our reports dated March 2, 2015 , with respect to the consolidated financial statements and schedule of Halozyme Therapeutics,

Inc. and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. included in this Annual Report
(Form 10-K) of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2014 .

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
March 2, 2015



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Helen I. Torley, M.B. Ch.B, M.R.C.P. , Chief Eowgive Officer of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. dgrthat:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKLOf Halozyme Therapeutics, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact otamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the

period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andlfie periods presented in this rep

4, The Registrant’s other certifying officer andré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

a)

b)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaoee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

designed such internal control over finanaggilarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

evaluated the effectiveness of the Registratitslosure controls and procedures and presentgilsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on

such evaluation; and
disclosed in this report any change in the Regt’s internal control over financial reportithgat occurred during the

Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Reaigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and thetazainmittee of the Registrant’s board of direct@mspersons performing the

equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsdsehe design or operation of internal contraéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refreahcial information
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslynanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the
Registrant’s internal control over financial refogt

Date: March 2, 2015 /sl Helen I. Torley, M.B. Ch.B, M.R.C.P.

Helen I. Torley, M.B. Ch.B, M.R.C.P.
President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, David A. Ramsay, Chief Financial Officer of Halane Therapeutics, Inc. certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKLOf Halozyme Therapeutics, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact otamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the

period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andlfie periods presented in this rep

4, The Registrant’s other certifying officer andré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

a)

b)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaoee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

designed such internal control over finanaggilarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

evaluated the effectiveness of the Registratitslosure controls and procedures and presentgilsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on

such evaluation; and
disclosed in this report any change in the Regt’s internal control over financial reportithgat occurred during the

Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Reaigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and thetazainmittee of the Registrant’s board of direct@mspersons performing the

equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsdsehe design or operation of internal contraéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refreahcial information
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslynanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the
Registrant’s internal control over financial refogt

Date: March 2, 2015 /sl David A. Ramsay

David A. Ramsay
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HalozymeeTdpeutics, Inc. (the “Registrant”) on Form 10-K tlee fiscal year ended December 31,
2014 , as filed with the Securities and Exchangm@ssion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, HeleTorley, M.B. Ch.B, M.R.C.P. , Chief
Executive Officer of the Registrant, certify, puastito 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted purdagdection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m); a

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanmialdition and results of operations of the
Registrant.

/sl Helen I. Torley, M.B. Ch.B, M.R.C.P.
Helen I. Torley, M.B. Ch.B, M.R.C.P.
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: March 2, 2015

In connection with the Annual Report of HalozymeeTdpeutics, Inc. (the “Registrant”) on Form 10-K tlee fiscal year ended December 31,
2014 , as filed with the Securities and Exchangm@ission on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Db#&i Ramsay, Chief Financial Officer of
the Registrant, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. iBect350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 ob#mbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the

best of my knowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m); a

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanmaldition and results of operations of the
Registrant.

/s/ David A. Ramsay

David A. Ramsay
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Dated: March 2, 2015
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and commercial milestones, business intentions, financial conditions and results of operations and prospects and other statements concerning future

u o

matters. Words such as “expects,

anticipates,” “intends,

"o " on won n o

plans,” “believes,” “seeks,

estimates” and similar expressions or variations of such words

are intended to identify forward-looking statements, but are not the exclusive means of identifying forward-looking statements in the Annual Report.

Actual results could differ materially from the expectations contained in forward-looking statements as a result of several factors, including unexpected

expenditures and costs, unexpected results or delays in development and regulatory review, regulatory approval requirements, unexpected adverse events
and competitive conditions. These and other factors that may result in differences are discussed in greater detail in the Company’s reports on Forms 10-K,
10-Q, and other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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